STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
MONDAY, JANUARY 5, 2015 2:00 P.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN

VICE-CHAIRMAN

JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. SWEARING IN OF NEWLY ELECTED OFFICIALS

2. CALL TO ORDER AT 2:00 P.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for January 5, 2015

5. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN TO THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD
OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE TERM OF ONE YEAR Pursuant to Storey County Code
2.04.008

6. APPOINTMENTS TO SERVE ON STATE, COUNTY AND REGIONAL BOARDS
1. Safety Committee

Legislative Representative

Historic Fourth Ward School and Museum Board

NACO

Nevada Works

Virginia City Senior Center

Lockwood Senior Center

St. Mary’s Art Center

Western Nevada Development District

10 Carson Water Subconservancy District

11. State Land Use Planning Advisory Council

12. Natural Resources Conservation District (USDA)
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8.

13. Truckee River Flood Management Authority (Technical Advisory Committee)
14. Comstock Historic District
15. Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V& T Railway
16. Virginia City Tourism Commission
17. Oversight of Fire and Public Works
18. Economic Development
a. EDAWN
b. NNDA
19. Storey County Wildlife Advisory Board

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for November 12, 2014
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for December 2, 2014

CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of

the

Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and

acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 11/24/14 for $112,014.02, $50,132.19, $428.55,
date 12/05/14 for $403,461.04 and date 12/19/14 for $308,980.93. Accounts payable checks date
11/26/14 for $112,558.00 and $26,707.85, date 12/12/14 for $1,003,098.49 and $4,166.85, date
12/17/14 for $1,000, date 12/26/14 for 382,977.88, $3,761.33, $33.60 and $1,055.71.

For possible action approval of November 2014 Treasurer Report

For possible action Approval of update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including: 701 Health Insurance Coverage; 702 Life Insurance Coverage; 703 Retirees (health
coverage); 705 Workers’ Compensation/Transitional Duty; and 706 Education Assistance.
Additionally, Policy 703A Retiree Health Benefits to be replaced with Policy 704 Retiree Health
Benefits.

For possible action Approval of update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including: 603 Sick Leave; 605 FMLA Leave; and 609 Military Leave.

For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -
a. ROSENDIN ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 880 Mabury Road ~ San Jose, CA (electrical
contractor)

b. PANDA RESTAURANT GROUP - General / 745 Sparks Blvd ~ Sparks (caterer)

c. PEED EQUIPMENT CO - Contractor / 1480 Nandina Avenue ~ Perris, CA (heavy equipment)

d. SCHUFF STEEL COMPANY - Contractor / 1841 West Buchanan ~ Phoenix, AZ (steel erector)

e. QUALITY CONTROL SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 61 Continental Drive ~ Reno (hvac
contractor)

f. SURFACE PREP & MAINTENANCE - Contractor / 240 Linden Street ~ Reno (asphalt
contractor)




g. STERLING CRANE, LLC - Contractor / 2211 5% Street ~ Elko (heavy lift services)

h. ANNING-JOHNSON CO - Contractor / 13250 Temple Avenue ~ City of Industry, CA (metal
deck install)

i. SUNVELOPE SOLAR, INC. - Contractor / 96 Glen Carran Cir ~ Sparks (solar contractor)

j.  SAFWAY SERVICES, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 1991 ~ Milwaukee, WI (scaffolding equip)

k. ANSBERRY SIGNCRAFT - General / 10865 Osage Road ~ Reno (signage manufacturer)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

14. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): A presentation by the Bureau of Land Management, Carson
City District regarding their draft Resource Management Plan (RMP)/Environmental Impact
Statement (EIS). The 120-day public comment period runs from November 28, 2014 through
March 27, 2015. A hard copy of the draft document is available for review in the Planning
Department.

15. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
16. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTTION: Approval of Storey County Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended June 30, 2014.

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the second reading of Ordinance 14-261, an
ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change the name to
Brothels, amending the procedure for revoking a license, and changing requirements on work
cards, and providing for other properly related matters.

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Resolution 15-418 setting the fees for
applications for a brothel license, the licensing of brothels, and setting penalty fees.

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve Memorandum of Understanding between The
Nevada Rural Counties Retired and Senior Volunteer Program, Inc. and Storey County and
authorize County Manager to sign the Memorandum of Understanding.

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Adopting and approving the Second Amended Interlocal
Agreement for Western Nevada Regional Youth Center, an agreement between Carson City,
Churchill County, Douglas County, Lyon County, Storey County, the First Judicial District, the
Third Judicial District, the Ninth Judicial District, and the Tenth Judicial District, for the
operation of the Western Nevada Regional Youth Center to solidify the relationship between the
Center’s Operation Technical Committee (OTC) and the Administrator and provide direction and
clarification.

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of application to add Donny Gilman as a
Co-Manager to the World Famous Mustang Ranch Brothel.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
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24,

25.

26.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-020 (Continued from 12/02/14) by
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the text of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning
Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone. The intent of the proposed
I-C Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use industrial and commercial uses where found
appropriate by the board with recommendation by the planning commission. Additional
information including, but not limited to, reports and the draft zone text may be obtained from
the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org. Item is most likely to be
continued to the February 3, 2015 meeting.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-021 (Continued from 12/02/14
meeting) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature
Conservancy, LLC and the Union Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County
Zoning Map. The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land
located in McCarran, Nevada (river District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in
July of 2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by mean of boundary line
adjustment. The subject area is described approximately as portions of Section 31 and 32,
Township 20 North, Range 22 East; Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East; Section 36,
Township 20 North, Range 21 East; Sections 2 and 11, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; and
Section 1, Township 19 North, Range 21 East, all in the Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian
(MDB&M). The specific zones and subject properties will be as follows: (a) F Forestry zoning will
be applied to land located as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APN) 004.161.98, 004.161.99, 004.162.01,
and 004.162.02; (b) N-R Natural-Resources zoning will be applied to land located at APNs
004.161.85, 004.161.86, 004.161.88, and 004.161.96; (c) I-C Industrial-Commercial zoning will be
applied to land located at APNs 005.121.01, 005.121.02, 005.121.03, 005.121.04, and 005.121.05; and
(d) P Public will be applied to land located at 004.161.87, 004.161.89, 004.161.90, 004.161.91,
004.161.92, 004.161.93, 004.161.94, 004161.95, and 004.161.97, all within the approximate subject
area described above. The purpose of the zone map amendment is to apply zoning to newly
acquired land in Storey County that is consistent with surrounding uses and the Storey County
Master Plan. Prior to their transfer into Storey County, the properties were zoned in Washoe
County as Agriculture, Medium Density Rural, Industrial, and Public Infrastructure. Additional
information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be obtained from the Planning
Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org. Item is most likely to be continued to
the February 3, 2015 meeting.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance No. 14-262, an Ordinance
creating interim development regulations affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code by
creating Title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements for subdivision map approvals
and Title 17A by limiting master plan amendments for approvals of planned unit developments
during the master plan approval process, and providing for other properly related matters. The
moratorium on subdivisions and planned unit developments will be in effect until the
comprehensive update to the Storey County Master Plan is adopted, or December 18, 2015,
whichever comes first.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: The Applicant, Comstock Mining, LLC, requests an
amendment to Special Use Permit (SUP) Number 2000-222-A-4 to modify and expand the
existing SUP boundary. The amendment applies to modifying boundaries related to surface and
underground mining (mining), mine definition, exploration, milling, beneficiation (processing)

4




27.

28.

29.

30

and ancillary uses on the subject lands in American Flat and Gold Hill and located approximately
in Township 16 North, Range 20 East, Section 1 and 12; and Township 16 North, Range 21 East,
Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 in the Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian in Storey County, Nevada.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: The Applicant, Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, requests a
Parcel Map dividing one parcel into two parcels located on a portion of the Southeast Quarter of
the Southeast Quarter of Section 16, Township 19 North, Range 21 East, Mount Diablo Baseline
and Meridian, in the Lockwood-Peri Ranch and Mustang areas, in Storey County, Nevada
(Assessor Parcel Number: 004-111-28).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: The Applicant, Fulcrum Sierra BioFuels, LLC, requests a
Zone Map Amendment to the Official Storey County Zoning Map to change the zoning of a land
parcel (a portion of current APN: 004-111-28) from Agricultural (A) to Heavy Industrial (I-2) on a
portion of the Southeast Quarter of Section 16, Township 19 North, Range 21 East in Mount
Diablo Baseline and Meridian in the Lockwood-Peri Ranch and Mustang areas in Storey County,
Nevada. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: The Applicant, International Investments, LLC, requests a
Zone Map Amendment to the Official Storey County Zoning Map to change the zoning of land
parcels (APNs 004-111-29 and a portion of APN 004-111-27 and a portion of current APN 004-
111-28) from Agricultural (A) to Light Industrial (I-1); and for land parcels (APNs 004-111-30,
004-111-19 and a portion of APN 004-111-27) from Heavy Industrial (I-2) to Light Industrial (I-1)
in portions of Sections 15 and 16, township 19 North Range 21 East in Mount Diablo Baseline and
Meridian in the Lockwood-Peri Ranch and Mustang areas, in Storey County, Nevada.
Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be obtained from the
Storey County Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning@storeycounty.org

. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

AB2C, LLC -~ Home Business / 157 South B Street (hat sales) VC

ROPO, INC. - General / 1337 Crest Valley Drive ~ Reno (janitorial)

SNAP ON TOOLS, INC. - General / 1617 South Deer Run Road ~ Carson City (tool sales)
LEGACY PAINTING, LLC - Contractor / 870 Deming Way ~ Sparks (painting contractor)
HATTON’S CRANE & RIGGING - Contractor / 3643 Depot Road ~ Hayward, CA (crane
SVCS.)

NEVADA BBQ CO dba BJ’s BBQ - General / 80 East Victorian ~ Sparks (catering)
PRICELESS CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 1175 Flint Street ~ Fernley (contractor)
HARRIS INDUSTRIAL GASES - General / 236 East Sydney (welding equip supply) TRI
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31. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

32. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

e Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.
o Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.
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¢ Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

e Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before December 30, 2014; Virginia
City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands
Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

By J@ﬁmmﬂ%aﬁ%
Vanessa Stephens, ClerkfTreasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Appointments to serve on State, County and Regional Boards

2. Recommended motion: Move to approve committee appointments as recommended by staff
(or as alternatively determined)

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioners Telephone: 847-0968
4. Staff summary: Annually at the first Commission meeting in January, the Commission

appoints certain individuals to serve on various Committees. Please see the attached list of
recommended appointments for each Committee/Board.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None other than mileage to attend various meetings

Funds Available: Yes Fund: As budgeted Comptroller
7. Legal review required: No
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
s N —Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[] Approved [
[1] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

el )

Agenda Item No. (p



2014 Appointments to Serve on State, County and Regional Boards

1.

W

S

10.
11.

12.
13.

14.
15.

16.

17.
18.

19.

Safety Committee — To be determined by Safety Committee (was Shannon Gardner) —
Chair; Vanessa Stephens — Vice Chair
Legislative Representative — Marshall McBride with all others, including staff as needed
(Was Bill Sjovangen)
Historic Fourth Ward School and Museum Board — JackMcGuffey (Was Bill Sjovangen)
NACO — Jack McGuffey with Austin Osborne as secondary (Was Bill Sjovangen with
Austin as secondary)
Nevada Works — Lance Gilman with Austin Osborne as secondary (Remains the samc)
Virginia City Senior Center — Cherie Nevin (Remains the same)
Lockwood Senior Center — Lance Gilman, Cherie Nevin and Maggie Lowther (Remains
the same)
St. Mary’s Art Center — Jack McGuffey (Was Bill Sjovangen)
Western Nevada Development District — Dean Haymore (Remains the same)
Carson Water Subconservancy District — Austin Osborne (Remains the same)
State Land Use Planning Advisory Council — Austin Osborne with Dessie Redmond as
secondary (Substitutes Dessie for Dean Haymore)
Natural Resources Conservation District (USDA) — Dean Haymore (Remains the same)
Truckee River Flood Management Authority (Technical Advisory Committee) — Lance
Gilman with Austin Osborne and Dessie Redmond as alternates (Remains the same)
Comstock Historic District — Marshall McBride (Remains the same)
Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V& T Railway — Jack McGuffey (Was
Bill Sjovangen)
Virginia City Tourism Commission — Lance Gilman as Commissioner designate (Was Bill
Sjovangen) and confirming continued appointments of Scott Jolcover, Molly Burnet,
Angelo Petrini and Ron Gallagher (Remains the same)
Oversight of Fire and Public Works — Marshall McBride (Remains the same)
Economic Development — Lance Gilman (Remains the same)

a. EDAWN - Lance Gilman (Remains the same)

b. NNDA - Lance Gilman (Remains the same)
Storey County Wildlife Advisory Board — Rob DuFresne (Replacing Deny Dotson) and
confirming continued appointments of Greg “Bum” Hess, Jim Clark and Rich Bacus
(Remains the same)



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January S, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for November 12, 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
fs*‘\/C:)unty Manager Other agency review:

T —

9. Board action:
i1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[r— p——
T

Agenda Item No. 'fl—



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2014 12:00 P.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA
MINUTES

MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL MADDOX

CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY

LANCE GILMAN

VICE-CHAIRMAN

BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
"COMMISSIONER ' 2 & CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Marshall McBride, Commissioner Bill Sjovangen, District Attorney Bill Maddox,
Deputy District Attorney Anne Langer, Outside Counsel Robert Morris, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa
Stephens, County Manager Pat Whitten, Chief Deputy Melanie Keener, Community Services Director
Cherie Nevin and Comptroller Hugh Gallagher.

Absent: Vice-Chairman Gilman

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 12:00 P.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 12:10pm

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman McBride acknowledged the recent passing of Grant Gerber, Elko County Commissioner.
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for November 12, 2014

Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City Resident: Requested Item 8 of the Consent Agenda be pulled
for discussion.

Dave Thomas, Virginia Highlands Resident:  Requested these comments be reflected in the
Minutes. “At the Tuesday, October 21, 2014, Commissioners Meeting, Commissioner Gilman
requested - in his capacity as a Storey County Commissioner - that an item be entered into today’s
Commissioner meeting agenda for a vote of censure against Sheriff Antinoro. Commissioner Gilman
spoke for approximately 8 minutes on this topic at the October 215t meeting during which he
requested the vote for censure three different times. I'm asking why the agenda item requested by
Commissioner Gilman does not appear on the agenda for today’s Commissioner’s meeting. Given
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statements made by Commissioner Gilman at the October 215t meeting, I feel that the citizens of
Storey County deserve an explanation why the agenda item requested by Commissioner Gilman does
not appear on today’s agenda”.

District Attorney Bill Maddox, said staff researched the issue of censure. Nevada’s Dillon Rule states
censure can only be done when specifically authorized by the Legislature. Staff was unable to find
anything in the Nevada Revised Statutes discussing the censure of public officials by a County
Commission. The County Manager and Commissioner Gilman have been advised of these findings.
The request for censure should not be on the agenda.

Motion: Approve Agenda for November 12, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for September 16, 2014

Motion: Approve Minutes for September 16, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
. Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for October 7, 2014

Motion: Approve Minutes for October 7, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for October 9, 2014

Motion: Approve Agenda for October 9, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

For possible action approval of October 2014 Treasurer Report (Originally listed as item 8 under the
Consent Agenda.)

Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City Resident: Stated concerns regarding the Treasurer’s Report.
Specifically, Fund 190 Park and Fund 210, Sheriff’s Jail building fund. Fund 210 has been removed by
Resolution. The report Fund 210 has a negative fund balance. Why hasn’t this fund been taken off
the books? Fund 190 Park, also shows a negative balance.

County Manager, Pat Whitten suggested the Comptroller address these issues in the Staff Report.

Motion: Approve October 2014 Treasurer Report, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

CONSENT AGENDA




7. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 10/24/14 for $296,939.22, date 10/30/14 for
$106,322.11 and $49,467.91. Accounts payable checks date 10/17/14 for $743,890.64 and
$7,646.13, date 10/31/14 for $1,149,529.21 and $12,398.27.

8. For possible action approval of October 2014 Treasurer Report
9. For possible action approval of Justice Court Quarterly Report

10. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -
a. 1IQ TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS - Contractor / 5595 Equity Avenue ~ Reno (IT Services)
b. QUALITY FENCE OF NEVADA - Contractor / 59 Red Rock Road ~ Mound House (fence
contractor)
MONTANA STEAKHOUSE - General / 688 Poleline Road ~ Twin Falls, ID (caterer)
d. LARGO CONCRETE, INC. - Contractor / 2741 Walnut Ave ~ Tustin, CA (concrete
contractor)
e. DIELCO CRANE SERVICE, INC. - Contractor / 5454 Arville Street ~ Las Vegas (crane
operator) ,
f. ACE ROOFING - Contractor / 5185 Nola Way ~ Reno (roofing contractor)
g. LEAL, INC dba SI AMIGOS MEXICAN RESTAURANT - General / 1553 S Virginia ~ Reno
(caterer)
h. WALKER CELLULAR, INC. - Contractor / 4021 Alvis Court ~ Rocklin, CA (cell tower
contractor) ’ )
i. LIFE RESCUE, INC. - Contractor / 1424 East 36th Ln ~ Bellingham, WA (safety consulting)

n

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve consent agenda, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded
by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance no. 14-260, an ordinance
adding chapter 3.50 to the Storey County Code creating the Storey County Economic
Diversification District No. 1 and providing for other properly related matters.

County Manager Pat Whitten said the Nevada Legislature recently passed Senate Bill 1. This bill has
created the option for the State and Counties to establish Economic Diversification Districts. It is
important to note this is the first reading of the proposed ordinance. There are other related matters
to be taken care of, including items provided for in Senate Bill 1. The documents have been approved
by County legal counsel and staff, as well as Tesla.

District Attorney Bill Maddox said the Ordinance states that Tesla will pay sales taxes to the State.
The State will remit the amounts received from Tesla to the County. The County will pay to Tesla
from those funds remitted to the County by the State. Tesla will be required to show costs incurred
which would be equal to the amount to be reimbursed by the County. This will be for 20 years. An
agreement must be entered into with the State for the State to remit the funds to the County.
Another agreement will be needed to reimburse Tesla. This ordinance does not become effective
until an agreement with Tesla is reached.




Nicole Barde, Storey County resident: Asked why the name Tesla is not used in the Ordinance
rather than “participant”. Should those requirements and standards for other companies to
participate in the abatements, be included in the Ordinance. The requirements under SB 1 should be
stated.

Mr. Whitten explained the Ordinance was worded to apply to any business, with very few changes,
that may come along in the future. The Senate Bill specifically identifies a “lead participant”, in this
case Tesla. There are other participants that have been identified. Businesses would have to comply
with a number of requirements in SB 1, including minimum investment, number of Nevada residents
hired, and obtaining eligibility from the Governor’s Office of Economic Development.

Mr. Whitten said the Ordinance is specifically directed to the land owned by Tesla. Language
directly from SB 1 allows the County to negotiate costs from Tesla.

Ms. Barde asked for an explanation of the difference between the infrastructure billing indicated in
the Ordinance and the infrastructure currently billed to Storey County from TRI.

Mr. Whitten said the infrastructure agreement with TRI is for improvements made on a pre-approved
basis. Mr. Whitten reviewed language of the Ordinance pertaining to costs and requirements.

District Attorney Maddox suggested reading SB 1, the Agreement with TRI, and the Ordinance.

Chairman McBride clarified that this Ordinance is simply a “sales tax pass through”. The County is
not losing any tax revenue and it is not costing the County.

District Attorney Maddox read the Ordinance:

An Ordinance adding Chapter 3.50 to the Storey County Code creating the Storey
County Economic Diversification District #1 and providing for other properly
related matters.

Motion: Approve first reading of Ordinance no. 14-260, Action: Approve Moved by Commissionér
Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

12. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Merilee Miller, River District:

e Ms. Miller passed out photos of the Park showing repairs and clean- up to the grounds and
landscaping. There have been requests from several residents for replacement of the swing-
set for smaller children.

¢ Repairs have been made to the Lockwood-Rainbow Bend Community Building, including the
over-hangs on both sides, replacement of trim around doors and windows, and installation of
a storage shed.

* A garage sale was held.

e At a resident’s birthday party, many great comments were received about the re-furbished
building.
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Comptroller Hugh Gallagher

In regards to the Treasurer’s Report, there is negative cash balance - not ending fund balance-
in the Park and Jail funds. The funds are there waiting for the audited financial report for June
2014. When the report is received, there will be a full accounting, any differences will be
rectified and adjustments will be made to the June 2014 report. Those statements are expected
any day.

Mr. Gallagher, along with Austin Osborne, attended a Public Employees Retirees System
annual conference. PERS does not anticipate any further increases in PERS contribution rates
this up-coming Legislative session. However, Mr. Gallagher does feel there will be an increase.

Community Services Director Cherie Nevin

On October 30, the Governor Sandoval urged residents to participate in singing “Home Means
Nevada” at the same time in an attempt to set the world record. There were 198 participants at
Pipers Opera House, along with participants at Hillside Elementary School, helping to set that
record.

The Community Health Nurse has been busy setting up. The Community Health Nurse is
there every other Wednesday until January 1t and then every Wednesday. Ms. Nevin is
working to get interns from UNR to help Community Chest develop an electronic records
management system and to assist with software for fee recovery and other items.

The seismic, structural condition assessment report for the Courthouse has been completed.
An application for a Historic Preservation Grant is being prepared for assistance with some of
the recommendations.

The “facelift” at the Lockwood Senior Center looks great. Thanks Jason, Jeff & Larry from
Public Works for all the work at the Center.

Next Saturday Navy personnel will be doing community service work at the Mark Twain
Center and the Fire Museum in Virginia City.

Chief Deputy Melanie Keener

Sheriff Antinoro is at the Nevada Sheriffs and Chiefs Conference in Las Vegas.

The new vehicles are expected to arrive in 4 to 6 weeks. Four, possibly five of those vehicles,
will be available to other County offices if there is a need.

CERT team has been extremely helpful with the last events. Three more have graduated the
CERT Academy. Paperwork is being completed.

Sheriff Antinoro is glad the general election is past and all can move forward, with all areas of
the County coming together to do the work of the people.

County Manager Pat Whitten, on behalf of Fire Chief Gary Hames

Once again the Storey County Fire Department has been selected for the Nevada State
Firefighters Association as the host county for its June 2015 conference. Chief Hames will be
reaching out to all departments to help make this event happen.

On the December 2nd agenda, there will be an item from the USDA from the loan closing on
the purchase of the structure engines.

Replacement chassis for the ambulances have been ordered. A delivery date has not been
received.




The new Fire Prevention Officer, Fritz Klingler, has completed all of the requisite fire
certification courses. This was accomplished in five months rather than the one year
requirement. Mr. Klingler has become a vital member of the team.

The Fire Department has purchased a module to coincide with the Fire House/Fire Records
Management System for fire inspections. This will assist in keeping track of how much time is
spent in the field on new building and annual building inspections.

County Manager Pat Whitten

The Ardagh Open House at TRI was a great event.

Currently there is no other Commission meeting scheduled for November.

The next regular scheduled Commission meeting will be December 2°d. The December 16t
meeting may not be held. Special meetings will be set if necessary.

Vice Chair Gilman is meeting today with another large facility wanting to locate in the County.
Congratulations to Commissioner-elect Jack McGuffey. Mr. McGuffey will be attended the
NACO conference in Ely.

The County has found the right formula with Carson City Health and the Community Nurse.
It is greatly appreciated.

Thanks to Commissioner Sjovangen for the observation of the roofing material on the
Courthouse roof, and how to address the stability of the building. There is a great structure
base so the County can go forward with future Historic Preservation Grants.

13. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Commissioner Sjovangen

Following up on BDR’s - there are approximately 560 at this time. Because of the new
dynamics after the election, some of the BDR’s are now obsolete and some will be combined.
Commissioner Sjovangen, with several others, attended an event at Gold Hill Depot on
Nevada Day, with standing room only. This is a wonderful venue and everyone is
encouraged to visit the depot to see what has been done. A portrait commissioned by
Comstock Mining was presented at this event.

Chairman McBride

The Nevada Day Parade in Virginia City was spectacular. Storey County was also represented
in the Carson City parade the next day. Both were well attended. The Navy band participated
in the Virginia City Parade and was the highlight.

The Veteran’s Day Parade was outstanding and very special.

Chair McBride attended the grand opening of Ardagh, a can manufacturing at TRI. This plant
will produce 2 million cans per day with 70 employees. At full production, Ardagh will staff
approximately 140 employees and produce 5 million cans per day. These are good paying jobs
and reflective of economic development. Ardagh does receive some abatements like every
other company with a big investment into Nevada. This company hires a lot of engineers to
operate its equipment.

Congratulations to everyone on the election, those who ran and won, and also those who ran
and did not succeed.




County Manager Pat Whitten commended the staff and volunteers for the quality of the work and
results during the election. Mr. Whitten thanked Vanessa Stephens and the staff in the Clerk’s office
for the outstanding job.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of ordinance 14-259 amending Storey
County Code section 3.12.012 updating the plan of projects for the proceeds of the infrastructure
tax, and providing for other properly related matters.

Robert Morris, Outside Counsel, stated on September 16, 2014, the Board approved a plan of projects
for the infrastructure tax, along with certain expenditures. This Ordinance meets the requirements of
NRS 377b.110, that the specific purpose of the funds be included in the Ordinance.

Dave Thomas, Virginia Highlands resident: Questioned replacement of the Lakeview Water Line as
an appropriate use of County funds as Mr. Thomas feels it subsidizes less than 25% of the residents.

The item under Building and Grounds, D/A-Sheriff's Building purchase should not be in the
infrastructure fund. The building was purchased in 2012. In the 2012 audit report, the expenditure
for that building was charged to the Sheriff's Department Capital Improvements. The same project
cannot be charged to two different funds. Mr. Thomas suggested moving the funds to a new project
- Highlands Community Center. The Highlands is the only residential area without a community
center.

Mr. Thomas questioned increased cost of the Courthouse parking lot renovation.

County Manager, Pat Whitten said initial cost estimates were a best guess. The engineering company
engaged by the County has presented low-side and high-side estimates. After soil testing on the
stability of the wall at the back of the parking lot, a final amount will be available.

Mr. Thomas asked if funds have been expended under TRI County Road Repair and County
Drainage and Erosion. Since the County is no longer responsible for the maintenance of USA
Parkway, shouldn’t these items be removed from the plan of projects.

Mr. Whitten is not aware that any funds have been expended out of this plan. Further, the funds
should not be removed from the plan. There are ancillary roads still requiring maintenance and up-
grades.

Mr. Thomas continued stating the Highlands is the only community in the County without a
Community Center and there are no funds in the plan going to the Highlands. Mr. Thomas is going
to circulate a petition in the Highlands for a community center.

Mr. Whitten said as there has never been a formal request for a community center in the Highlands,
a suggestion would be to go to the homeowner associations and have those associations request
being considered for inclusion on the plan of projects.

Commissioner Sjovangen reported attending a meeting in the Highlands where a list of what the
residents would like to have, including a community center, was received. These requests have never
been submitted to the Board. Commissioner Sjovangen suggested a representative from the
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Highlands attend Commission meetings. Mr. Sjovangen also suggested the possibility of forming a
GID so there is leadership and organization.

Mr. Thomas said the Highlands needs to create an informal community council.

In reference to the plan of projects, Mr. Whitten stated from time to time, there will be items on the
list that will drop off and never happen, leaving room for other projects. There are a number of ways
to look toward meeting the needs of the residents of the Highlands once those needs are known.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher discussed the 2012 DA/Sheriff building purchase. Documents were
signed the last day of the fiscal year. At that time there was not a plan, so the purchase was made a
capital out-lay project under the Sheriff’'s Department with a long-term obligation in the General
Fund. There is money still owing on this project. If available and legal, the payments would come
out of the infrastructure fund.

Motion: Approve second reading of ordinance 14-259 amending Storey County Code section 3.12.012
updating the plan of projects for the proceeds of the infrastructure tax, and providing for other
properly related matters, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by
Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Canvass of the election results for the General Elechon
held in and for Storey County, State of Nevada on November 4, 2014

County Manager Pat Whitten explained that NRS requires election results be canvassed by the
governing board. The Clerk/Treasurer, who is also the Registrar of Voters, has advised that since
this information is identical to information provided to the Secretary of State and publicly posted on
that website, as well as on the Storey County website, it is requested the Board canvass the results of
the election for November 4, 2014.

Motion: Approve canvass of the election results for the General Election held in and for Storey
County, State of Nevada on November 4, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance 14-261, an ordinance amending
Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change the name to Brothels, amending the
procedure for revoking a license, and changing requirements on work cards, and providing for
other properly related matters.

Pat Whitten clarified that this item was actually brought to the Board by Mr. Kris Thompson on
behalf of the Lance Gilman Family Trust, rather than the existing brothel as stated in the agenda.

Robert Morris, Outside Counsel, read the proposed Ordinance:
An Ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change

the name to Brothels, amending the procedure for revoking a license, and changing
requirements on work cards, and providing for other properly related matters.




Robert Morris said written comments and suggested changes to the Ordinance will be provided to
the Board prior to the second reading.

Dave Thomas, Virginia Highlands Resident: On page 2 - 5.16.040 after not, strike the word “be”.
Mr. Thomas expressed concern about the licensee being the party that makes the suggested changes
to the Ordinance which regulates the licensee. Mr. Thomas also questioned the speed with which this
Ordinance is going through. Why not wait for feedback from the District Attorney and the Sheriff,
and have the first reading in December.

Mr. Morris reviewed the process and said the first reading is presented to decide whether or not the
matter should be introduced. The second reading is a public hearing where comments are expected.
If the Ordinance is not complete at that time, the Board would be asked to do a second, second

reading.

County Manager Pat Whitten said a sense of urgency has not been indicated in this matter, only that
sooner or later it is time to do something. There are small issues in the Ordinance that need to be
addressed and revised.

District Attorney Bill Maddox said it is not unusual for the licensee to participate in the process of up-
dating an Ordinance.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Ms. Barde does not understand the rush and does not
believe this item provides required information to the public. The public needs the opportunity to
review the “first work” and provide input so by the second reading it can be taken into consideration.

Commissioner Sjovangen suggested Ms. Barde submit comments and input in writing regarding the
Ordinance, prior to the second reading,.

Chairman McBride explained there is not a rush. If the Ordinance is not ready by the time of the next
meeting, the matter will be continued until such time as it is ready.

Ms. Barde asked if Kris Thompson works for TRL

Mr. Whitten replied Mr. Thompson represents the Lance Gilman Family Trust and is the transaction
coordinator for the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.

District Attorney Maddox said this is a more effective way to pass or amend an ordinance, enabling
comments and input from the public which can be then be integrated into the Ordinance.

Chief Deputy Melanie Keener: Ms. Keener, on behalf of the Sheriff, reported that there will be
discussion at the next meeting as the Sheriff has significant concerns with the proposals that warrant
further discussion.

Motion: Approve first reading of Ordinance 14-261, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)




17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance 14-258, an ordinance amending
Storey County Code chapter 10.16 to repeal driving while impaired and to change the amount of
alcohol in a driver’s blood to .08 to be unlawful to drive or be in actual physical control of a
vehicle and providing for other properly related matters.

Deputy District Attorney, Anne Langer, read the proposed Ordinance:

An Ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 10.16 to repeal driving
while impaired and to change the amount of alcohol in a driver’s blood

to .08 to be unlawful to drive or be in actual physical control of a vehicle

and providing for other properly related matters.

The amendment reflects language consistent with NRS. The current code has been in effect since
1985-86.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City Resident: Mr. Phillips referred to section of the Ordinance
which discusses a person in physical control of a vehicle or on premises to which the public has
access. Does this apply to persons who would be walking or.sitting in a bar?

Ms. Langer said the Ordinance applies to a vehicle.

" Motion: Approve first reading of Ordinance 14-258, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Pursuant to NRS 533.363 section 4, consideration of
applications to appropriate the waters of the State of Nevada from within Hydrographic basin
026, Mud Meadow in the county of Humboldt, Nevada. The proposed place of use is within the
Churchill Valley, Dayton Valley and Tracy Segment, Hydrographic Basins 102, 103 and 083,
respectively, within both Lyon and Storey County.

County Manager Whitten said there has been no contact with anyone regarding this matter. The
County’s and TRI's engineering firm is not aware of any applications within the County. It is
recommended that the Commission direct counsel and staff to file formal protests on Applications
84429 and 84430, and request further detailed information in order to make a more informed
decision.

Motion: Direct staff and counsel to file a formal protest, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
19. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
a. PERFORMANCE CONTRACTING, INC. - Contractor / 16400 College Blvd ~ Lenexa, KS
(specialty contracting)
b. MNW CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 1123 Northfield Drive ~ Carson City (contractor)
c. STORMS, LLC - Contractor / 299 South Arlington, Reno (contractor)
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d. BRAND ENERGY & INFRASTRUCTURE - Contractor / 1325 Cobb Int'l ~ Henderson

(scaffolding)

e. KC CUSTOM CONCEPTS - Contractor / 5084 Washoe Circle ~ Stagecoach (mfg housing
contractor)

f. SIERRA ELECTRONICS - Contractor / 690 East Glendale Avenue ~ Sparks (wireless
contractor)

g. HARRIS INDUSTRIAL GASES - General / 236 East Sydney (welding equip supply) TRI
h. ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC. - General / 900 Waltham Way (can mfg) TRI

County Manager Whitten, on behalf of Community Development, requested item g. be continued.

Motion: Continue item g, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by
Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

County Manager Whitten, on behalf of Community Development, requested approval of items a., b,,
c,d., e, f,andh.

Motion: Approve items a-f and h, Action: Appfove Moved. by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded
by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

20. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action

Judy Cohen, Storey County Business owner/Resident: Asked what is done to enforce Ordinances
and are certain businesses exempt?

District Attorney Bill Maddox answered if the staff was available, every Ordinance would be
enforced to the letter. Since staff is limited, enforcement of Ordinances has to be prioritized.

Commissioner Sjovangen said if there is a specific matter Ms. Cohen is referring to, County Staff
should be advised.

Chairman McBride said if the matter is criminal in nature, go to the Sheriff. On a civil matter, the
District Attorney can provide assistance or direction.

Ms. Cohen feels a few are exempt from the enforcement of an ordinance while others are being
enforced for the same ordinance.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Asked why the County did not sell the portion of USA
Parkway recently reconveyed to TRI to the State? In the reconveyance to TRI, why didn’t the
County receive a portion of what TRI is receiving from the State in order to offset the previous debt
shifted to the County?

Pat Whitten said the interchange section Ms. Barde is referring to, is still owned by the County.

The County assumed the debt on a small section of the roadway given up by the County. This was
done pursuant to a negotiated trade-off for the maintenance of the entire section of USA Parkway.
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Dave Thomas, Storey County Resident: = What is the mileage of the portion of the road quit -
claimed to Tesla? Is TRI is receiving consideration from two different parties for the same asset.

District Attorney Maddox answered that is correct. The County broke even.
Chairman McBride said the maintenance of USA Parkway has been alleviated forever.

Kris Thompson, Transaction Coordinator for TRI: Stated that from TRI’s perspective, the County
has benefitted greatly from the amounts invested by the developer in USA Parkway. The benefit has
been realized in the number of businesses being brought into TRI due to the dedicated roadway.

Representatives from NDOT have looked at the USA Parkway right-of-way. Mr. Thompson believes
the right-of-way will be re-surfaced for completely redone in order to bring the roadway into
compliance as a State highway. Funds for this project would be in the millions. This represents a
large return for the money to the County.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City Resident: There is a conflict with the Planning Commission
and Bureau of Land Management meetings, both set on November 13, 2014. These are meetings the
public should attend however the meetings are at the same time.

Mr. Phillips questioned the attendance of Vice Chair Commissioner Lance Gilman.

Gunther Prosser, River District: Mr. Prosser expressed an observation that if more people would
express concerns, the Commission would look into those matters. More people from outlying areas
are coming forward. Mr. Prosser acknowledged the Board for its work in helping the outlying areas.
More residents are becoming more confident in asking the County for assistance.

Chairman McBride: Reported on an economic impact study prepared by the Governor’s Office of
Economic Development. Ten years from now millions of dollars will be received in the County from
Tesla. The economic impact with growth of other businesses at TRI, is a big win for the County.

21. CORRESPONDENCE
a. Denied agenda item request from Kim Fegert regarding the fire alarm system at the Gold
Hill Depot.

22. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 2:32pm

Respectfully submitted,
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Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for December 2, 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer ' ' . Teleplione: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
S. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
36_ Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
R County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

fr—
—_——

Agenda Item No. 8



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 2, 2014 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner Sjovangen, District Attorney
Bill Maddox, County Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Deputy District
Attorney Anne Langer, Special Counsel Robert Morris, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Administrative
Officer/Planner Austin Osborne, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Community Services Director Cherie
Nevin, Public Works Director Mike Nevin, and Commissioner Elect Jack McGuffey.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The Chair called the meeting to order at 10:00am

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for December 2, 2014 County Manager, Pat
Whitten, recommended continuing items 20, 26, and 27 to the January 5% meeting.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City Resident: Questioned items 5, 6, 7 and 8 on the Consent
Agenda.

Chair McBride stated item 6, Treasurer’'s Report, is not available at this time. This item will be
continued to the next meeting.

County Manager Pat Whitten indicated the Treasurer’s Report would be completed by the end of
the year and will be provided to the Commissioners and posted to the County website at that time.
Items 7 and 8 have been previously approved by the Board.




Austin Osborne stated that the posting date for the zone changes was reported in the newspaper as
January 6%, Mr. Osborne clarified those items that were continued will be heard on January 5% at 2
PM, not January 6.

Motion: Approve Agenda for December 2, 2014 with the continuation of items 20, 26 and 27, Action:
Approve Moved by Commission Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for October 21, 2014

Motion: Approve Minutes for October 21, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commission
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA

5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 11/07/14 for $418,371.73, date 11/21/14 for
$309,990.23. Accounts payable checks date 11/13/14 for $1,727,548.65 and $5,840.76.

6. For possible action approval of November 2014 Treasurer Report (Continued.)

7. For possible action approval of the Board of Commissioners to authorize the Chairman to sign
the Loan Closing documents when closing is scheduled for the type one triple combination fire
engines and three ambulances through the USDA Loan.

8. For possible action approval and signature by the Chairman of the USDA Loan Resolution
Security Agreement Form RD 1942-9, OMB No. 0575-0015, as revised 10-96. This is required to
close the USDA loan in order to release funding for three structural fire engines, new ambulance
chassis and ambulance chassis change over which was heard and approved on September 2,
2014.

9. For possible action cancelation of the regularly scheduled meeting on December 16, 2014.

10. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -

AB2C, LLC - Home Business/157 South B Street (hat sales) VC

ROPO, INC. - General/1337 Crest Valley Drive, Reno (janitorial)

SNAP ON TOOLS, INC. - General/1617 South Deer Run Road, Carson City (tools sales)
LEGACY PAINTING, LLC - Contractor/870 Deming Way, Sparks (painting contractor)
HATTON’S CRANE & RIGGING - Contractor/3643 Depot Road, Hayward, CA (crane svcs.)
NEVADA BBQ CO dba BJ's BBQ - General/80 East Victorian, Sparks (catering)

PRICELESS CONSTRUCTION - Contractor/1175 Flint Street, Fernley (contractor)

NN

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda with continuation of item 6, Action: Approve Moved by
Commission Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)




11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 14-415, 2014 Community Service
Annual Award

Ron Gallagher, on behalf of the Board of Commissioners and the VCTC, presented the 2014
Community Service Annual Award to businessman Angelo Petrini. Mr. Gallagher read the
Resolution. Mr. Gallagher reviewed Mr. Petrini’s many years of service to the community.

Motion: Approve Resolution 14-415 the 2014 Community Service Annual Award given to Angelo
Petrini, Action: Approve Moved by Commission Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance no. 14-260, an ordinance
adding chapter 3.50 to the Storey County Code creating the Storey County Economic
Diversification District No. 1 and providing for other properly related matters.

County Manager Pat Whitten said there have been no changes since the first reading of this item.
This Ordinance will not go into effect until Tesla and the County have successfully negotiated and
approved the two of the provisions in Senate Bill 1 of the Special Session.

Kay Dean, Virginia Highlands Resident: Ms. Dean questioned descriptions and ownership of
various tracts at Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.

Mr. Whitten said the County’s GIS group has verified this is the property Tesla acquired from TRI.

Planner Austin Osborne stated there are many parcels that are part of the original Tesla maps. If
requested, these townships, ranges, and sections can be tracked fairly easily from Mr. Osborne’s
office.

Vice Chair Gilman indicated that a portion of the parcels are owned by TRI, are under option to
Tesla, and are not part of the original purchase of 980 acres.

Ms. Dean asked about the development tract and said it is difficult to ascertain where these
properties are.

Mr. Osborne said the approximate 1,100 acres originally talked about, includes all the land reviewed
as part of the Tesla project. This is the land in and around Tesla, as well as land along Electric
Avenue and where the project is actually to be constructed.

Ms. Dean said the windfarm tract is not within the TRI boundaries. Vice Chair Gilman stated the
windfarm is in the TRI and is part of the 104,000 acres owned and under development.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Ms. Barde questioned the requirements and standards for a
business to qualify for the benefits of being in the Economic Diversification District.

District Attorney Bill Maddox stated that SB1 sets out the requirements. The State has to approve tax
abatements and approval is forwarded to the County.




Motion: Approve Second reading of Ordinance no. 14-260, an ordinance adding chapter 3.50 to
the Storey County Code creating the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1 and
providing for other properly related matters, Action: Approve Moved by Commission
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Community Services Director Cherie Nevin:

e The Community Health Nurse is busy setting up at the Health Center. Community
Services is working with UNR to have interns develop a records management system.
Open House is tentatively set for January 21, 2015.

e On November 15, approximately 30 Navy personnel volunteered at Mark Twain
Community Center and at the Fire Museum in Virginia City. The work they did at both
locations was greatly appreciated. A Certificate of Appreciation will be sent.

e Community Chest has started the annual Holiday Angel Tree. Trees can be seen
throughout the community.

e Ms. Nevin attended the NACO convention and appreciates the opportunity to participate.

Administrative Officer/Planner Austin Osborne:

o Developments at TRI include Montana Steakhouse coming in from Idaho providing food
services at the Tesla site for workers coming at the facility. This will be a full-service
restaurant housed in an 18-wheeler. Philly’s - a restaurant permanently on site - is
working with the County to provide a food truck service at the Tesla site as well as other
distant places at TR

¢ An authorization will be given to Art Wilson for a small operations mine near Silver City.
Mr. Wilson will be giving a presentation to the Silver City Town Advisory Board this
evening. Mr. Osborne will attend.

e Mr. Osborne is working with Dessie Redmond to retain an intern from UNR to primarily
work with data mining and other activities related to completing the Master Plan. Work
on the Master Plan will be ramping up in the near future with an anticipated completion
date of July or August 2015.

o The yearly weed abatement program in Six & Seven Mile Canyons and Gold Canyon was
unable to be completed this year due to lack of funding. Mr. Osborne will contact all
potential funding sources to obtain funds and to interlocal with Dayton Valley
Conservation District for use of its resources - crews, trucks and equipment. Hopefully
the work will be done in April or May 2015.

Public Works Mike Nevin:

o Public Works participated with NDOT in a planning workshop discussing the possibility
of rehabilitation work on exit 22 at the Lockwood Interchange off Interstate 80. NDOT has
listed this as a high priority in next year’s work program. The curb and gutter situation in
Virginia City was also reviewed. Hopefully some of the bad sections along C Street will
be repaired in the next year. The pavers in front of the Firemen’s Museum were looked at.
There may be an opportunity to obtain assistance through a transportation assistance
program sponsored by NDOT.
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o USA Parkway maintenance is in the process of transitioning to NDOT. This includes the
existing 6 miles of paved section. At a recent meeting, it was agreed that the County
would assist in snow removal along that route for the next couple of months, as additional
staff is hired by NDOT and needed equipment is obtained. NDOT will be responsible for
pre-treatment of that route. In return, the County’s sand and salt usage at TRI will be free
of charge from NDOT for this coming season.

e The Five Mile Reservoir projects are underway. Weather permitting, the Five Mile project
will be substantially completed in the next couple of weeks. Fencing posts have been
installed at the Divide Reservoir.

¢ All of the major components manufactured off-site for the Sewer Treatment Plant Project
have arrived and are being assembled. The control building is going up. Issues will be
discussed this week with a representative from USDA, including what to do with a
remaining contingency of approximately $400,000. This could be used for replacement of
some sewer lines possibly along R Street and Washington to L Street.

o The Six Mile Canyon Drainage Project is progressing. Farr West Engineering has
completed aerial over-views and on-site survey. A field review will be done this week.

e The Courthouse roof project has been underway for a couple of months. The contractor
has had a few challenges, including a chimney that had not been capped off. This has
been resolved.

o Core samples will be taken this week on the Courthouse parking expansion. A portion of
the gravel area will be closed off for this work.

Chair McBride asked if there had been a discussion with NDOT regarding extending the west-bound
acceleration lane at the Lockwood Interchange. Residents have complained that this acceleration lane
is too short. Mr. Nevin said he would discuss this with NDOT representatives to see if this can be
included in the work at the interchange.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:

o Mr. Gallagher attended a recent POOL/PACT meeting. A discussion was held regarding
the increase in heart-lung expenditures. After 5 years of continuous service, all public
safety employees are eligible for heart-lung expenditures. The agency is concerned about
this issue. The POOL provides insurance for equipment and buildings. There are
concerns with older buildings within the group. This includes accidents happening within
the infrastructure of the buildings. This increases premiums. Cherie Nevin is working to
obtain funding to “shore-up” the courthouse building. POOL is considering low-interest
loans or funding for all of the Counties insured with POOL to make sure the older
buildings remain standing for a considerable period of time.

e Additional areas being looked at by POOL/PACT include information technology
services and health insurance.

o Dean Haymore gave a great presentation at the NACO conference regarding the business
license and permit processes.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:
o Sheriff Antinoro has been meeting with the Governor’s Office, the Department of
Agriculture and wild horse advocacy groups in preparation of an agreement between the
advocacy groups and the Department of Agriculture for the management of wild horses
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on the Virginia Range. This will allow for localized management of the horses, including
birth control and diversionary measures helping to keep the horses out of populated areas.
A reminder this is trapping season through February 28t. Be aware if you are in the back
country. Harassing or interfering with a trap is a crime. Trapping is regulated by the
State and there are rules on both sides. If trappers or residents have an issue, contact the
Sheriff’s Office or the Department of Wildlife.

District Attorney Bill Maddox:

Mr. Maddox introduced the new Deputy District Attorney, Keith Lumos. Mr. Lumos
discussed his previous experience.

Deputy District Attorney Anne Langer:

Ms. Langer, in recognizing Mr. Lumos, said it is important to have a civil deputy that can
assist with all departments and issues in Storey County. Outside counsel, Bob Morris, will
continue to work on ordinances that need to be updated. Bill Maddox has led Storey
County in bringing items up-to-date and his are big shoes to fill. Mr. Lumos will start on
January 5t

County Manager Pat Whitten:

Welcome to Mr. Lumos. Keith Lumos was also co-counsel in the matter of Corda Vista vs
Storey County and was part of a stellar team that got the County through a very difficult
process.

With the approval of the Consent Agenda for this meeting, the regularly scheduled
December 16t meeting is cancelled. Though not anticipated, a special meeting could be
called to handle singular items.

Next week the Deputy Under-Secretary of Agriculture will be touring the Fulcrum site.

A meeting will be held next week pursuant to the recently approved resolution
encouraging the cities of Reno and Sparks to cooperate with Storey County and others to
find a way to transport treated effluent to TRIL.

Soil-test drilling will be conducted this week in the area of the possible parking lot.

At the request of Tesla and Panasonic, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Community Development
Director Dean Haymore, and Fire & Life Safety Officer Fritz Klingler are in Japan to
review Panasonic’s operating plants to better understand the processes and designs.
Thanks to Angelo Petrini who was the first businessman to welcome Mr. Whitten to the
community in 1994.

Everyone is invited to the Annual Christmas Party to be held on December 12t at Pipers
Opera House.

14. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Commissioner Sjovangen:

A couple of items that need attention from the County, as well as State wide, are water
and land issues. Under water issues - water rights, vested water rights, wells going dry,
as well as EPA concerns with water and water drainage.

Senator Heller’s representatives are confident there will be action on the Lands Bill within
the next two weeks.




Chairman McBride:

e The NACO conference in Ely was well attended by Storey County elected officials,
department heads, and staff. There were discussions regarding issues such as water and
grazing rights, and PERS. Every small county has the same issues as Storey County.
Some of the Counties are in dire straits and could not afford to have a representative
attend. The conference is a great opportunity for networking with other County officials.

e Congressman Amodei had the Lands Bill passed in the House and sent to the Senate in the
format that Senator Reid asked for. There is no reason why Senator Reid should not take
this to the floor. Senator Reid backs all five of the claims that are in the bill. This would
eliminate several of Storey County’s problems with the BLM.

Commissioner Elect Jack McGuffey:

o Attended the NACO conference. There were great workshops for new Commissioners.
Mr. McGuffey thanked Pat Whitten for introducing him to other County counterparts,
representatives from EDAWN, the Governor’s office, and others Mr. McGuffey will be
working with in the future.

Chair called for a recess at 11:22am; reconvened at 11:37am

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appointment of Molly Burnet, with St. Mary’s Art Center,
to the vacant “Motel” seat on the Virginia City Tourism Commission effective December 12,
2014.

Pat Whitten, on behalf of Deny Dotson, reported that Leisa Findley, VCTC Chairman and also
board representative for Motels and Bed & Breakfasts, submitted a resignation from these
positions on November 1st. The Tourism Commission advertised for a representative for this
position. Molly Burnet has applied. Molly owns a floral shop and is President of the Board of
Trustees for St. Mary’s Art Center. Staff recommends this appointment.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County resident: Requested the record to reflect this appointment
is by statute.

Motion: Approve appointment of Molly Burnet, with St. Mary’s Art Center, to the vacant
“Motel” seat on the Virginia City Tourism Commission effective December 12th, 2014, Action:
Approve Moved by Commission Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve and rank applications for the Community
Development Block Grant Funding for 2015 for submittal to the State of Nevada Governor’s
Office of Economic Development.

Cherie Nevin, Community Services Director, reviewed projects being proposed for Community
Development Block Grant Funding for 2015.
o Project #1: Type 1 Ambulance Chassis Changeover. This ambulance would be stationed
at Fire Station 74 in the Lockwood Community. Estimated project cost: $115,000 -
$120,000.




e Project #2: Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center General Improvement District Utility GIS
system. Estimated project cost: $150,000 to $175,000.

Staff feels that each of these projects fits within the scope of the grant program for funding. The
ambulance will be a great asset to the Lockwood Community. The TRI GIS project will be a great
benefit to the economic development activities in Northern Nevada. Upon approval, grant
applications will be prepared and submitted to the State CDBG program by January 7, 2015.

In response to a question from County Manager Whitten, Ms. Nevin said the projects are ranked in
this order because the TRI project will go into a separate source of funds set aside for economic
development. Mr. Whitten requested when the applications are submitted that it be made clear that
the ambulance application is under the competitive program and the TRI application is under
different eligibility. Ms. Nevin said the State is aware that the TRI application will be submitted as an
economic development project.

Motion: Approve the Type 1 Ambulance Chassis Changeover Grant Application as the #1 Project
and the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Utility GIS system Grant Application as the #2 project for
submittal to the Governor’s Office of Economic Development for the 2015 Community Development
Block Grant Program, Action: Approve Moved by Commission Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman
McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2) Vice-Chairman Gilman
abstained.

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of the Tahoe Reno Industrial Public-Private
Partnership Audit for FYE 2013

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher presented the 2013 audit for the Tahoe Reno Industrial Public-Private
Partnership. Work will begin on the 2014 audit on December 314,

Dave Thomas, Virginia Highlands Resident: Asked about the length of time to prepare the audit.
Mr. Thomas questioned differences between this audit report and the County’s audit report. This
audit reflects a different amount for USA Parkway expenditures than what was presented at a
previous meeting.

County Manager Pat Whitten addressed the USA Parkway costs indicating the costs are for the
Parkway, the Interchange, Phase 2, Phase 3 and the bridge. Mr. Whitten reviewed the amounts for
each of these items which would be the approximate value given back to TRI in exchange for
maintenance in perpetuity.

Mr. Thomas stated, with respect to USA Parkway, the County would ultimately pay $28,130,006 to
TRI. Mr. Whitten concurred.

Connie Christiansen, CPA: Several factors affect the timeframe of the audit. This is a determination
of project revenue in accordance with an agreement established at the beginning of the development
of the TRI area. Over the years, other issues and new agreements and resolutions have come about as
to how to treat certain income and expense items. It takes time for all parties to be on the same page
and for issues to be resolved. Completion of the County audit is critical to the completion of this
audit.




Ms. Christianson stated the discrepancy between the two audits is infrastructure costs incurred in
2011 and 2012.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident: Expressed concerns regarding unsigned portions of
the audit, blank pages, and letters referred to not included.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher stated this is a draft. The items referred to were not available at the
time of the preparation of the packet but are available now. All figures and representations are the
same as they were on the draft.

Motion: Accept the Tahoe Reno Industrial Public-Private Partnership Audit for FYE 2013, Action:
Approve Moved by Commission Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution 14-416 Honoring Commissioner Bill Sjovangen.

County Manager Pat Whitten presented and read Resolution 14-416 honoring Commissioner Bill
Sjovangen for four years as a County Commissioner. Mr. Sjovangen also served many years on the
RTC and a time as interim VCTC director.

Chair McBride presented a plaque to Commissioner Sjovangen and thanked Mr. Sjovangen for his
dedication and the difference he has made to the community.

Motion: Approve Resolution 14-416 Honoring Commissioner Bill Sjovangen, Action: Approve
Moved by Vice-Chairman Gilman Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2) Commissioner Sjovangen abstained.

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution 14-417 Honoring District Attorney Bill Maddox

County Manager Pat Whitten presented and read Resolution 14-417 honoring District Attorney Bill
Maddox. Mr. Maddox served four years as District Attorney and previously as a District Court Judge
for many years.

Motion: Approve Resolution 14-417 Honoring District Attorney Bill Maddox, Action: Approve
Moved by Commission Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance 14-261, an ordinance
amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change the name to Brothels,
amending the procedure for revoking a license, and changing requirements on work cards, and
providing for other properly related matters.

Item continued to January 5, 2015 at 2:00pm.

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance 14-258, an ordinance
amending Storey County Code chapter 10.16 to repeal driving while impaired and to change the
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amount of alcohol in a driver’s blood to .08 to be unlawful to drive or be in actual physical
control of a vehicle and providing for other properly related matters.

District Attorney Anne Langer reviewed the amendment to Storey County Code chapter 10.16. This
amendment will bring the Ordinance current.

Motion: Approve second reading of Ordinance 14-258, an ordinance amending Storey County Code
chapter 10.16 to repeal driving while impaired and to change the amount of alcohol in a driver’s
blood to .08 to be unlawful to drive or be in actual physical control of a vehicle and providing for
other properly related matters, Action: Approve Moved by Commission Sjovangen Seconded by
Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve Settlement Agreement between Storey County
and Toys “R” Us, Inc.

District Attorney Bill Maddox said an agreement between Toys “R” Us, Inc. and the Nevada
Commission on Economic Development entered into April 19, 2011, provided for tax abatements for
a period of not less than five years. Toys “R” Us, Inc. closed its fulfillment center in less than the five
years as required by the agreement. As a result, Storey County billed Toys “R” Us, Inc., a total of
$247,876.71. This amount was disputed by Toys “R” Us, Inc. In order to resolve this matter, upon
approve of the Settlement Agreement by the Nevada Tax Commission, Storey County will be paid
$234,927 .86, waiving all interest.

Motion: Approve Settlement Agreement between Storey County and Toys “R” Us, Inc., Action:
Approve Moved by Commission Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Request staff to research implementing the first in a series
of residential property tax roll backs given the economic prosperity on the horizon.

Vice Chair Gilman reported on economic results coming to the County from TRI and the Tesla
transaction. Mr. Gilman described the Tesla facility which will be the largest facility of its kind in the
U.S. Construction is underway with permits and fees being paid to the County. Over $300 million in
payroll will be added to the economy every year. As a direct result of Tesla, many other companies
are moving into Storey County and TRL

Mr. Gilman discussed the direct benefits to residents. There is an immediate prospect of over 20,000
jobs added to this region. There will be increases in property values, as already seen in Lockwood.
Once the abatement period is over, there will be a massive infusion of taxes into operating school
budgets. The State of Nevada is taking over maintenance of USA Parkway and will built the
extension - this will no longer be the County’s responsibility resulting in millions of dollars in
savings to the County over the next decade.

Mr. Gilman believes it is time to establish a plan for all residents of Storey County to share in the
financial success of TRI and the Tesla transaction.
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Vice Chair Gilman is requesting County staff to prepare a plan specifying an amount of reduction in
property tax rates that the County can afford, a time frame for the reduction, and any other reduction
for fees and assessments that occur on an annual/routine basis that would be feasible. It is requested
that a staff report with a proposed plan be delivered within 60 days, with a target date of the first
Commission meeting in February.

Dave Thomas, Storey County Resident: Questioned the wording of “residential” in the proposed
action.

County Manager Pat Whitten apologized for the wording. The Board of Equalization, as Mr. Whitten
understands, requires that the tax rate is not differential for residential as opposed to commercial
and/or industrial. Everyone will benefit.

Commissioner Elect, Jack McGuffey: Applauds Mr. Gilman. Years ago, this was one of the
promises from TRI.

Motion: Request staff to research implementing the first in a series of county wide property tax roll
backs and to provide a staff report within 60 days, Action: Approve Moved by Commission
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=3)

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Direct our Human Resource Group to conduct a
compensation study of key management positions that support the economic development
successes and results in Storey County. Specific positions to be reviewed will be determined
under the direction of Commissioner Gilman as Chairman of Economic Development.

Vice Chair Gilman, on behalf of the County Economic Development Committee, said Tesla
considered many factors in making its decision to locate in Storey County. This included the
competence and abilities of key Storey County staff. The County has prospered under the leadership
of the County Manager. Leaders in local government receive very little credit for their successes. Mr.
Gilman would like to establish an environment where great performance by key leaders is rewarded
and requests that he be authorized to work with the HR department on a recommendation for a
salary increase for the County Manager.

Chair McBride would like to see this recommendation expanded to determine how directors and
other staff compare to counter-parts in surrounding counties that have economic development and
growth. This would not include elected official salaries which are set by the Legislature or staff
salaries set by collective bargaining agreements.

County Manager Pat Whitten said the last time a salary survey was completed was approximately six
years ago. No adjustments have been made in that time due to the economy.

Motion: Direct our Human Resource Group to conduct a compensation study of key management
positions that support the economic development successes and results in Storey County. Specific
positions to be reviewed will be determined under the direction of Commissioner Gilman as
Chairman of Economic Development, Action: Approve Moved by Commission Sjovangen
Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

11




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: [n accordance with Condition No. 2.2 of Special Use Permit
No. 2000-222-A-4 (SUP) held by Comstock Mining, LLC, the SUP holder (Comstock Mining)
submitted to the Board of County Commissioner a major modification to its mine operating plan
so that the Board may validate that the modification conforms to the conditions of the existing
SUP. The major modifications will allow Comstock Mining to commence definition and
exploration mineral assessment by means of reverse-circulation drilling, core drilling, and other
methods allowed in the SUP at the area east of the Lucerne Resource Area (existing mine pits)
and State Route 342 in southern Gold Hill, Storey County, Nevada. The subject area map is
included in Enclosure B.

Planner Austin Osborne stated that under Condition 2.2 of the Comstock Mining Special Use Permit,
operating plans developed by Comstock Mining, on mining only, must come to the Board for
validation that the operating plan conforms to the Special Use Permit provisions. Formal vote is not
required unless there is not full consent of the Board.

This item is a major modification allowing Comstock Mining exploration and mine definition drilling
east of State Route 342, an approximate 2 acre area. This modification conforms to the Specific Use
Permit and to important elements such as the Silver City water line protection - a comprehensive
water line protection plan has been submitted by Comstock Mining which has been approved by
staff. Residential distances and reclamation plan per NDEP requirements are in compliance.

Mr. Osborne said one change to the application from Comstock Mining, is that CMI would like to
begin work immediately after validation is provided rather than in January 2015.

Corrado De Gasperis, President Comstock Mining: Said Comstock Mining has done minor
environmental sampling on the east side. There may be an opportunity to clean up old dumps and
materials, and improve the landscape. All of this activity is progressing towards an expanded mine
plan. Although this is a major modification, it is actually a continuation of exploration drilling being
done previously.

Mr. Osborne said this provides a great oversight on the progress of the mining operation and also to
receive the latest information from CMI on what is being done.

Motion: In accordance with Condition No. 2.2 of Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-4, I Bill
Sjovangen, validate that the operating plan major modification conforms to the conditions of the
existing SUP and, accordingly, authorize county staff to accept the operating plan modifications and
to proceed otherwise in accordance with the applicable federal, state, and county regulations.
Action: Approve Moved by Commission Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-020 by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, LLC to amend the text of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding
Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone. The intent of the proposed I-C Zone is to provide
for certain mixed-use industrial and commercial uses where found appropriate by the board with
recommendation by the planning commission. Additional information including, but not limited
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27.

28.

to, reports and the draft zone text may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144
or planning@storeycounty.org.

Item continued to January 5, 2015 at 2:00pm.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-021 by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature Conservancy, LLC and the Union
Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County Zoning Map. The amendments
will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land located in McCarran, Nevada
(river District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in July of 2014 transferred from
Washoe County to Storey County by mean of boundary line adjustment. The subject area is
described approximately as portions of Section 31 and 32, Township 20 North, Range 22 East;
Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East; Section 36, Township 20 North, Range 21 East;
Sections 2 and 11, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; and Section 1, Township 19 North, Range
21 East, all in the Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian (MDB&M). The specific zones and subject
properties will be as follows: (a) F Forestry zoning will be applied to land located as Assessor’s
Parcel Numbers (APN) 004.161.98, 004.161.99, 004.162.01, and 004.162.02; (b) N-R Natural-
Resources zoning will be applied to land located at APNs 004.161.85, 004.161.86, 004.161.88, and
004.161.96; (c) I-C Industrial-Commercial zoning will be applied to land located at APNs
005.121.01, 005.121.02, 005.121.03, 005.121.04, and 005.121.05; and (d) P Public will be applied to
land located at 004.161.87, 004.161.89, 004.161.90, 004.161.91, 004.161.92, 004.161.93, 004.161.94,
004161.95, and 004.161.97, all within the approximate subject area described above. The purpose
of the zone map amendment is to apply zoning to newly acquired land in Storey County that is
consistent with surrounding uses and the Storey County Master Plan. Prior to their transfer into
Storey County, the properties were zoned in Washoe County as Agriculture, Medium Density
Rural, Industrial, and Public Infrastructure. Additional information including, but not limited to,
reports and maps may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning@storeycounty.org.

Item continued to January 5, 2015 at 2:00pm.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance No. 14-262, an Ordinance
creating interim development regulations affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code by
creating Title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements for subdivision map approvals
and Title 17A by limiting master plan amendments for approvals of planned unit developments
during the master plan approval process, and providing for other propeily related matters. The
moratorium on subdivisions and planned unit developments will be in effect until the
comprehensive update to the Storey County Master Plan is adopted, or December 18, 2015,
whichever comes first.

Planning Director, Austin Osborne, summarized the Ordinance as a moratorium on subdivisions,
planned unit developments, and master plan and zone amendments that apply to subdivisions and
planned unit developments. This will not affect residents wanting to split a parcel of 4 or less parcels,
variances, building permits on existing parcels, and special use permits. The purpose is to create
orderly development in the County and not allow subdivision or planned unit developments during
the master plan process. The moratorium will be in effect until the comprehensive update to the
Master Plan is adopted, or December 18, 2015, whichever comes first.
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Mr. Osborne said a draft of the Master Plan should be completed by July or August 2015.

Motion: Approve first reading of Ordinance No. 14-262, an Ordinance creating interim development
regulations affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code by creating Title 16A establishing
minimum interim requirements for subdivision map approvals and Title 17A by limiting master plan
amendments for approvals of planned unit developments during the master plan approval process,
and providing for other properly related matters. The moratorium on subdivisions and planned unit
developments will be in effect until the comprehensive update to the Storey County Master Plan is
adopted, or December 18, 2015, whichever comes first., Action: Approve Moved by Commission
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=3)

29. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. 1Q TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS - Contractor / 5595 Equity Avenue ~ Reno (IT Services)

b. QUALITY FENCE OF NEVADA - Contractor / 59 Red Rock Road ~ Mound House (fence
contractor)

¢. MONTANA STEAKHOUSE - General / 688 Poleline Road ~ Twin Falls, ID (caterer)

d. LARGO CONCRETE, INC. - Contractor / 2741 Walnut Ave ~ Tustin, CA (concrete
contractor)

e. DIELCO CRANE SERVICE, INC. - Contractor / 5454 Arville Street ~ Las Vegas (crane
operator)

f. ACE ROOFING - Contractor / 5185 Nola Way ~ Reno (roofing contractor)

g. LEAL, INC dba SI AMIGOS MEXICAN RESTAURANT - General / 1553 S Virginia ~ Reno
(caterer)

h. WALKER CELLULAR, INC. - Contractor / 4021 Alvis Court ~ Rocklin, CA (cell tower
contractor)

i. LIFE RESCUE, INC. - Contractor / 1424 East 36t Ln ~ Bellingham, WA (safety consulting)

j. HARRIS INDUSTRIAL GASES - General/236 East Sydney (welding equip supply)

Motion: Approve items a through i, Action: Approve Moved by Commission Sjovangen Seconded
by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Continue item j, Harris Industrial Gases, Action: Approve  Moved by Commission
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=3)

30. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
Les Cater, Painted Rock resident: Thanked Vice Chairman Gilman for speaking about lower
property taxes. At present there are no services in Mr. Cater’s area, other than the Sheriff and
Fire Department, even though residents are paying for services.

Mr. Cater said residents would like to see the bridge taken care of. People are taking photos of
the bridge and it needs paint and repair. Also, Mr. Cater is waiting for “escape route” maps
promised a few months ago. Mr. Cater expressed concern about the lack of an on-ramp at
Painted Rock and that information and notices are not posted in his area.
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31.

Mr. Cater had a letter dated 1864 from Nevada City written about the gold rush which Mr. Cater
wanted to donate to Storey County. He gave the letter to Kathy Weeks to be taken care of. Mr.
Cater is concerned because he cannot find that the letter has been donated.

Dave Thomas, Virginia Highlands Resident: As previously suggested by Mr. Thomas, the
residents of the Highlands are creating an informal community council. The community council
will represent the one acre association and the ten acre association. The community council
function will be to represent all residents in the Highlands in various services provided by the
County. Mr. Thomas said the Highlands, like Painted Rock, receives very little in services from
the County. Forty acre residents will be included.

Chair McBride pointed out that Highlands residents receive services in the form of three public
schools, and residents have an equal part in paying for the services of local government.
Until recently, the Highlands have never requested a Community Center.

County Manager Pat Whitten suggested Mr. Thomas work closely with the Lockwood and Mark
Twain Community Centers.

Mr. Thomas said he will be presenting the Board with a 10 year financial audit that he has
prepared.

Kim Fegert, Gold Hill Historical Society: Mr. Fegert asked the Commission for assistance in
resolving the issue between the County and Gold Hill Historical Society.

County Manager Pat Whitten advised the matter will be addressed, at the direction of the Board,
at a future meeting.

ADJOURNMENT
The Chair adjourned the meeting at 1:20pm

Respectfully submitted,
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Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 11/24/14 for $112,014.02,
$50,132.19, $428.55, date 12/05/14 for $403,461.04 and date 12/19/14 for $308,980.93.
Accounts payable checks date 11/26/14 for $112,558.00 and $26,707.85, date 12/12/14
for $1,003,098.49 and $4,166.85, date 12/17/14 for $1,000, date 12/26/14 for 382,977.88,
$3,761.33, $33.60 and $1,055.71.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted as part of the Consent Agenda

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __ NA_ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Comptroller
? %unty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved [

] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued
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Agenda Item No. q
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Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 5, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Treasurer Report for November 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approval of report as submitted

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4, Staff summary: Report is attached.
5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
< >3A—"County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. | O
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Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 01/05/15 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including: 701 Health Insurance Coverage; 702 Life Insurance Coverage; 703 Retirees (health
coverage); 705 Workers’ Compensation/Transitional Duty; and 706 Education Assistance.
Additionally, Policy 703A Retiree Health Benefits to be replaced with Policy 704 Retiree Health
Benefits.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the Storey
County Administrative Policics and Procedures, I (Commissioner) motion to approve the
amendments to Storey County Administrative Policies 701 Health Insurance Coverage; 702 Life
Insurance Coverage; 703 Retirees (health coverage); 705 Workers’ Compensation/T ransitional
Duty; and 706 Education Assistance. My motion also includes replacing Policy 703A Retiree
Health Benefits with Policy 704 Retiree Health Benefits.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4, Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
cstablish authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis.
The Policies and Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur
every five years.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosures: Chapters 701, 702, 703, 703A (repealed), 704 (added), 705,
and 706.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
; 7 Department Head Department Name:
Munty Manager Other agency review:

0. Board action:
[1] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

S E—

Agenda Item No.
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Enclosures: Chapters 701, 702, 703, 703A (repealed), 704 (added), 705, and 706.

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 701

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 12-2-08
REVISED: 08-02-11/01-05-15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW
SUBJECT: Health Insurance Coverage

1. PURPOSE

To establish eligibility for health insurance benefits. Health insurance benefits is to include
hospitalization, major medical, dental and vision, and prescription medications.

2. POLICY

2.1 Definitions

e Health Insurance: Insurance coverage for medical, dental, vision, and prescription
consistent with active employee coverage.

o [Initial Date of Hire: The first date on which a regular employee in a position which is
considered more than half-time (average 21 hours or more per week) is employed.

e Medicare Eligible: The point when a retiree or dependent is eligible to enroll in
Medicare Part A and Part B; this may be because the retiree has reached age 65 or because
s/he has been granted Medicare Part A and Part B due to a disability before rcaching age
65. All questions about Medicare should be directed to the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Service.

e Open Enrollment: The period designated annually by the Personnel
Director/Administrative Officer during which changes in coverage under county plans
may be made by participants.

e Plan year: The period set forth by the Storey County Board of Commissioners in which
program benefits and rates are offered for enrollment.

2.2 Benefits

The specific terms and conditions of coverage are specified in the plan document for medical,
dental, vision, prescription drug, and Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) insurance
issued by the insurance company. See policy 702 for Life and AD&D insurance.

2.3 Eligibility

Elected officers of the county are eligible to enroll in the group health insurance plan effective the
first day of the month following the official administration of the oath of office. Full-time regular
employees and part-time regular employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least an
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average of (203 2/ hours per week are eligible to enroll in & the group health insurance plan

effective the first of the month following 98 60 days of employment. Dependents-cmd-the-sporse-of
employees-as-definedinthe-enrrentplan-beolkdet; The employee’s spouse and dependents are also

eligible for coverage under the insurance plan as allowable by the provisions of this policy and the
applicable collective bargaining agreement.

2.4 Employee Coverage

e The employer agrees to pay ene-hundred-percent-{+30%) 100 percent of the monthly
premiums for health insurance for all regular full-time employees.

quﬁ—pepweikweek—hmd—ea-%a-ﬁeﬁ—lwk—%g% The employer agrees to pay 100

percent of the monthly premiums for health insurance for all regular full-time employees
hired before July 1, 2005, including those regular full-time employees working at least 35
hours but less than 40 hours per week.

e For employees hired on or after July 1, 2005, the employer agrees to pay a prorated
percentage of monthly health insurance premiums based on actual hours scheduled to be
worked for regular part-time employees working at least an average of 21 hours, but less
than 40 hours, per workweek.

emivms-ot-health

o

e Employees must authorize a payroli deduction of any share of the health coverage
premium which is to be paid by the employee.

2.5 Dependent and Spouse Coverage

o For employees hired before July 1, 2014, the employer agrees to pay 100 percent of the
monthly health insurance premiums for the employee’s dependents (up to age 26) and 100
percent for the employee’s spouse who is not eligible for any other health insurance or
Medicare Part A and Part B coverage on the same or greater percentage basis as that
provided to the employee by Storey County. The employer will contribute no health
insurance premium for the spouse and dependents of employees hired on or after July 1,
2014.
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o Effective May 1, 2012, if the employee’s eligible spouse is eligible for any other health
insurance coverage, or Medicare Part A and Part B, the employee may choose to cover
his/her spouse on employer’s health, dental, and/or vision plan for a charge equal to 50
percent of the cost of the spouse’s coverage under the employer’s plan. The employee
shall provide to the personnel office on a county provided affidavit annual certification
stating whether his/her spouses is eligible for any other health insurance or Medicare
coverage.

Benefits

: > 1 .v o 113 > c H H .
dental—viston-and-preseription-drug-insurance-issued-by-the-insuranee-company-
2.6 neentive Pay Pay In-Lieu of Benefit (Health insurance medical coverage)

e The employee may opt out of employer provided health insurance plan coverage. Doing
s0, the employee is requnred to opt out of all three insur ance plans, mcludmg health,
dental, and vision. s se- The
employee shall receive ﬁﬁ*—pereeni—é—)@-ﬁ) 50 percent of the premlum that the employer
would have paid for employee ety for the health employer provided insurance coverage.
Premium percentage will be paid to the employee via payroll once per month and may be
considered taxable income. Opt out sust-be may only be done annually during an the
open enrollment period.

e No employee who is in any way covered under the county insurance plan may receive Pay
In-Lieu of Benefit.

2.7 Plan Changes

The employer will—from-time-to-time; periodically evaluate the health coverage plan that is offered
and make adjustments, as the employer deems appropriate, in the level of coverage and the amount
of premium cost to be paid by the employer.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

AXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX KX XX XXX XXX XXX X XXX XK XX XX XXX XX XXX XX XX XX XX XXX XXX XXXXXXXXX

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 702

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 12-2-08
REVISED: 08-02-11/01-05-15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW
SUBJECT: Life Insurance Coverage

1. POLICY

hespﬁﬂh?aaeﬂ—majm—meée&l—éeﬂfarl—aﬁd—Vﬂeﬁ— To establish ellglblllty for llfe insurance. Life

insurance includes Life and Accidental and Dismemberment (AD&D) insurance.
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1.1 Eligibility

Elected officers of the county are eligible to enroll in a group health insurance plan effective the
first day of the month following the official administration of the oath of office. Full-time regular
and those part-time regular employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least and average of

twenty 21 hours per week are uwered—by—aﬁ—em-pleyer—pad—tﬂm eligible to enroll in the employer

provided Life Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) insurance plan, effective the first of
the month following 96 60 days of employment.

1.2 Policy

The specific terms and conditions of coverage are specified in the plan document issued by the
insurance company and are available from the Personnel Direct/Administrative Officer.

1.3 Coverage

Eligible regular employees and exempt employees are covered by a Life/AD&D insurance policy
in the amount of $30,000. Eligible non-exempt police officers and firefighter employees are coved
by a Life insurance policy in the amount of $40,000. Life msurance benefits will reduce to 65% of
the amount shown above on the day of the employees member’s 70" birthday.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as neccssary.

XAXXXNXXXXXXKXXXXXXXXXXKXXXXXKXNKXXXXXXKXX XXX XX XK XK XK XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXXXXXXX

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 703

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  07/01/12
REVISED: 01/05/15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW
SUBJECT: Retirement

1 POLICY: As defined in NRS 286, Storey County is considered a public employer and
employees in positions considered to be half-time or more, according to the full-time work
schedule for at least ene-hundred-twenty-(120) 120 consecutive work days, are covered by the
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). Details are available in Ghapter286—ot-the
NRS 286.

Eligibility for membership in PERS for elected officials is covered in NRS 286.293.
Eligibility for membership in PERS for district judges, justices of the peace, and municipal
judges is covered in NRS 1A.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

KAXXXXXXKEXKXXXXKEXXXXKXXXXEXKXKXKXXKXXXXXXXXXKKNKXX XXX KX XXX XX XXX XXX XX XXX XXXXXX
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STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER FO3A-704

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  07/01/12
REVISED: 01/05/15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Retiree Health Benefits Poliey

3.1

PURPOSE: This policy is to provide guidelines for administration of the county’s retiree
health plans. This policy is specifically intended to direct the administration of retirec health
plans in a manner that will be of greatest benefit for participants while maintaining efficiency
and effectiveness in the provision of such service. In recognition of the responsibility to assure
the fair and consistent administration of the county’s retiree health plans, the Storey County
Board of County Commissioners adopts this policy.

POLICY: The county Personnel Director/Administrative Officer is responsible for the
administration and compliance of all the #ues policies and regulations pertaining retiree health
insurance benefits.

Definitions

I

Cash Payment: A retiree, or beneficiary of a retiree, will pay for county retiree health
benefits by submitting payment monthly to the county Personnel
Director/Administrative Officer as directed. Late payment may result in cancellation of
coverage at the discretion of the county Personnel Director/ Administrative Officer.

County Plans or Program: Any health plans administered by the County of Storey on
behalf of retired members.

Continuous Employment: A period of time where employment status was not
interrupted by termination, separation, or layoff.

Day: A day is defined as a calendar day.

Health Insurance: Health insurance means insurance coverage for medical, dental,
and/or vision consistent with active employee coverage.

Initial Date of Hire: The first date on which a regular employee in a position which is
considered more than half-time (21 hours or more & average per week) is employed.

Medicare Eligible: The point at which the retiree or dependent is eligible to enroll in
Medicare Part A and Part B; this may be because they-have the retiree has reached age
65 or because they-have-been s/he has been granted Medicare Part A and Part B due to
a disability before reaching age 65. All questions about Medicare should be directed to
the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Service.

Open Enrollment: A period designated annually by the Ceunty Personnel
Director/Administrative Officer during which changes in coverage under county plans
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10.

11.

12.

may be made by participants. The retiree must enroll in Medicare Part A and Part B
immediately when eligible; failure to do so may cause the county to stop paying its
portion of costs.

Participant: Persons who are eligible to participate in the program:

a. A retired officer or employee as provided by NRS 287;
b. A surviving dependent of a deceased retired officer or employee of a Storey

County as provided by NRS 287; if the-deceased-efficeror-employee-had—+0
years oHoreofserviee credh

¢. A surviving spouse or child of an employee who was killed in the line of duty
as provided for in NRS 287.

Plan year: The period set forth by the Storey County Board of Cesnty Commissioners
in which program benefits and rates are offered for enrollment.

Retired Officer or Employee: An officer or employee of Storey County who has as
met the requirements to receive, and is receiving any retirement distribution of, benefits
from:

The Judges’ Retirement System; or
The Public Employees Rctlremcnt Systcm (PERS); and

g

meém@meeeé&g—%wmﬁnd—mmﬁeved—by&e%m&y—as
more-than-a-hal-timeresular employees:

d. An elected official who has completed the term in which they were duly
clected.

Retiree Subsidy: An amount contributed by the county toward the cost of retiree
health insurance premiums purchased through the county. The benefits under this
program are determined based upon the rules regarding years of service with Storey
County. The years of service are calculated at the time of service retirement or the date
a-Disability Retirement is granted, and do not change after that date. For retirees
meeting the participant guidelines and who retire on or after July 1, 2012, subsidies
may not be applied in whole or in part to dependent coverage.

3.2 County responsibility

Ie

Retiree Subsidy: The County smay shall pay the same portion of the cost of health
benefits coverage as the Nevada State Public Employees’ Benefits Program (PEBP) at
that time pays for retired persons covered as participants under their county health
benefits program. The subsidy will-be is limited to the employee’s consecutive years of
service with Storey County; no credit will be given for years of service earned at
another public employer, except for service with the Storey County Fire Protection
District. Any remaining balance of the cost of coverage will be cash payment to the
county by the retiree or qualified beneficiary.

2. Billing: Any remaining balance of the premium not covered by the subsidy will be

paid to the county by the rctiree or beneficiary. The county may notify the retiree or
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beneficiary by monthly invoice; but however, lack of receipt of invoice does not excuse
the retiree from payment.

3.3  Eligibility

Persons meeting the “participant” guidelines whe—re%e—ea—e%beter&%&ne—)@%@l% may remam on

the county’s Retiree Health Benefits program

{%hen's—meetmg the*partici] paﬂt—gmdehnerrwho aetw&enﬂ—a&ef—kdy—k%op—amj—remam—en—&he
. nceHﬂHmHaek—ei—eaﬁh-paymem—éﬂ—any)—ef
s-Fest-pursuant to NRS 287

3.4 Enrollment

Eligible participants must enroll in the county’s Retiree Health Benefits program iminedtatety
ﬂﬁeﬂ—%&l‘ﬁeﬁt within sixty (60) days and pursuant to NRS 287. Lack of enrollment will prohibit
participation in the program #ndefinitely; except as provided by NRS 287.

3.5 Changes in enroliment

The participant must submit a request in writing if they-wish s/he desires to cancel their enroliment
with the county’s Retiree Health Benefits program. If an rhe eligible participant declines the option
to participate at retirement, cancels at any time, or fails to make cash payment (if any), they s/he
will forfeit thei enrollment indefimitely, except as provide by NRS 287.

3.6 Retiree responsibility

Retiree or qualified beneficiary must remit cash payment (if any) as directed and will notify the
county Personnel Office of change of address.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative

Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.
XAXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX XXX XX XX XX XKXXXKKXXXNK XX XXXKXKXKXXXXXXXXX

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 704 705

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  07/01/12
REVISED: 06/16/14
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Workers’ Compensation & Femporary-Modified Transitional Duty

A. Workers’ Compensation
1. PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is to provide for workers’ compensation.

2. POLICY
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2.2 Workers’ Compensation

Employees are insured under the provisions of the State Workers’ Compensation Act for injuries
received-while-at-wetkfor-the-Storey-Ceunty- Occupational injuries and diseases that arise/arose
out of an in the course of their employment. Employees are required to report all on-the-job
accidents, injuries, or illness to their immediate supervisor as soon as reasonably possible or within
swenty—fowr{24) hours of the accident, injury, or illness. The Supervisor must contact the
Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer and submit the proper paper work for the claim

with in seventy-twe72} hours.

The following provisions are adopted pursuant to and are intended to implement the requirements
of NRS 281.390:

a.

When an employee is eligible at the same time for benefits for temporary total disability
under ehapters NRS 616A to 616D, inclusive, or NRS 617 of-theNRS, and for any sick leave
benefit s/he may, by giving notice to the supervisor or manager, elect to continue to receive
his/her normal salary instead of the benefits under those chapters until his/her accrued sick
leave time is exhausted. The employer will notify the Workers” Compensation Administrator
of the election. The employer will continue to pay the employee his/her normal salary, but
charge against the employee’s accrued sick leave time as taken during the pay period an
amount which represents the difference between his/her normal salary and the amount of any
benefit for temporary total disability received, exclusive of reimbursement or payment of
medical or hospital expenses under ehapters NRS 616A to 616D, inclusive, or NRS 617-of
the NRS-for that pay period.

When the employee’s accrued sick leave time is exhausted, payment of his/her normal salary
under subsection 1 must be discontinued and the employer will promptly notify the Workers’
Compensation Administrator so that it may begin paying the benefits to which the employee
is entitled directly to the employee.

An employee who declines to make the election provided in subsection 1 may use all or any
part of the sick leave benefit normally payable to him/her while directly receiving benefits
for temporary total disability under ehapters-NRS 616A to 616D, inclusive, or NRS 617 of
the NRS, but the amount of sick leave benefit paid to the employee for any pay period must
not exceed the difference between his/her normal salary and the amount of any benefit
received, exclusive of reimbursement or payment of medical or hospital expenses under
those chapters for that pay period.

If the amount of the employee’s sick leave benefit is reduced, pursuant to subsection 3,
below the amount normally payable, the amount of sick ieave time charged against the
employee as taken during that pay period must be reduced in the same proportion.

An employee may decline to use any part of the sick leave benefit normally payable to
him/her while receiving benefits under ehapters NRS 616A to 616D, inclusive, or NRS 617
of the NRS. During that period of time, the employee will be considered on leave of absence
without pay.

In the event an employee is absent from work due to an accepted job-related injury, as the

sole discretion of the Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer, the employer may

pay the employee the difference between awarded Temporary tTotal Disability (TTD)

payments and the employee’s full salary for a period of sixy{66} 60 calendar days; however,

such payment must be made by the employer to tan the employee who has suffered a job-
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related injury as a result of workplace violence or during the performance of a hazardous
duty in response to an officially declared county emergency. Such payment maybe extended
an additional sixty-(60} 60 days at the sole discretion of the Personnel Director and/or
Administrative Officer unless the following provisions apply:

1. The employee is able to perform histhercuties; all of the essential functions listed in
the job description;

2. The employee is able to perform temporary modified duties; or

3. The employee becomes qualified to receive permanent disability compensation.

B. Transitional Duty

1. PURPOSE: To provide temporary transitional duty in case of a workplace injury qualifying the
employee to workers’ compensation.

2. POLICY: The employer is committed to providing work, when possible, for employees who
have been restricted by a treating physician due to a work-related injury or illness. Such work will
be provided subject to availability. Work will be assigned according to the nature of the i injury or
illness and the limitations set forth by the treating physician. Every effort will be made to place
employees in positions within their own departments. If necessary, an employee will be placed
wherever an appropriate position is available.

2.1 Salary

While on temporary modified duty, employees will continue to receive their regular rate of pay.
Employees who are placed outside their department will continue to have their salary charged to
their regular department.

2.2 Duration and conditions of tempeorary-medified-duty-transitional duty

mmmn—m—%he»*eassigﬁed—teb—l-emﬁera%r i i i : |
days-subjecttoreview-An employee on transitional duty must furnish a written update from the

health care provider to the workers’ compensation coordinator after each visit in order to maintain
in the reassigned transitional duty job. Transitional duty assignments are limited to a period of 90
days, subject to review.

C. Related Forms (Worker’s Comp. & Transitional Duty)

¢ Transitional Duty Letter
e Workers’ Compensation Benefits Leave Option Form

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.
KXKXXAKXKXXXKXKXKXXXXKXXXKXXKKXXKKKKKKKXKXXXX KX XK KKK XXX KK XXX KXXX XXX XXXXXXKX

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 705 706
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 12/12/08
REVISED: 01/05/15
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AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: PAW
SUBJECT: Education Assistance

4 POLICY: The employer, subject to availability of budgeted funds, may provide educational
assistance for tuition and/or fees, other than books, for career-related education. The following

guatifications-must-be-met: criteria in this section must be met.

4.1 - Employer mandated

education, training, and certifications

a. If the employer mandates the education, the employer shall pay all related costs
including compensation for the time spent in the class.

b. Training and education which is required for the employee to maintain his/her
licenses, certifications, and credentials for his/her current job classification, and
which is necessary for the employee to maintain the minimum qualifications for
his/her current job classification, and which is approved by his/her supervisor or
department head, shall be paid for by the employer and shall not be subject to the
following provisions in this section. Expenses shall include textbooks and other
materials required for the required training and education. The employee shall
receive the regular rate of pay during training and education which takes place
during the 40 hour workweek period.

4.2 Non-mandatory education and training

a. If the education is optional, then the employer may elect to compensate by
providing reimbursement for costs or paying all related costs and/or time spent in
class. Prior mutual written agreement between the employee, the employee’s
supervisor, and the Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer is required.

I. The training must be related to the required skill or education for the
employee’s current position or to a logical career path with the employer.

2. The course must be taken from an accredited education institution or an
employer-approved adult education class.

3. Only a regular full-time employee will be eligible for reimbursement for
course work after successful completion of the probationary period. Further
cligibility may be determined by the department head and the Personnel
Director and/or Administrative Officer.

4. The employer may provide up to $3,000 education assistance to the
employee for each fiscal year, There will be no reimbursement if the costs
are assumed by any other institution, scholarship, or grant-in-aid. The
Employee is responsible for providing proof that he/she completed the
course with a minimum grade of “B” (80%). If the course is of a nature such
that no grade is given (i.e., pass or fail), the employee must provide a
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certificate  of completion or other official documentation showing
satisfactory passage of the course.

5. Education assistance shall include tuition, course fees, and required
textbooks. Other items such as required calculators and lab tools may also
be reimbursed in accordance with this section when approved by the
department head. While courses shall normally be taken on the employee’s
own personal time, exceptions may be granted by the department head when
the employee’s absence from work will cause no adverse impacts to his/her
dutics and other employees in the workplace. The decision of the
department head shall be subject to approval by the County Manager.

6. Employees who do not complete the course with a notice of “satisfactory”,
or grade of “B” (80%) or better must reimburse the employer for the full
amount of the assistance provided.

7. Employees who voluntarily terminate their employment with the county will
be required to pay back the employer (county) for all optional education
assistance exceeding $1,000.00 provided by the county within the past 5
years of employment. The amount owed will be deducted from funds owed
to the employee for accrued Sick Leave and other extra pay reimbursement
at termination. Funds owed will not be deducted from remaining payroll
funds owed to the employee. If there are insufficient funds to cover the
required reimbursement, the employee will be required to pay the county the
remaining amount owed within thirty days of the date of termination.

8. Each employee requesting education cost assistance from the county shall
complete and sign a written education reimbursement agreement that
complies with the provisions of this policy.

9. If mutually agreed upon between the employee, department head, Personnel
Director and/or Administrative Officer, and the County Manager, additional
education assistance may be provided to the employee.

ﬁﬁpfe&‘eé—ad&l-t—e-d’d%d&@ﬂ—&&&ﬁ-
M&%WW%WMWWMWW

Mﬂwm%wm#%%mmm%m
Hae—reqﬂeet—as—femded—teﬁfewewhd—apprwal -b y—lhe@oumy—Maﬂauei-andler—Perem&el

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.
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Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 01/05/15 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including: 603 Sick Leave; 605 FMLA Leave; and 609 Military Leave.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the Storey
County Administrative Policies and Procedures, I (Commissioner) motion to approve the
amendments to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures 603 Sick Leave; 605
FMLA Leave; and 609 Military Leave.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer

Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
establish authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis.
The Policies and Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur
every five years.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosures: Chapters 603, 605, and 609.
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
A7~ Department Head Department Name:

@munty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e d

Agenda Item No. l /Z_
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Enclosures: Chapters 603, 605, and 609

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 603
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-18-08
REVISED:__12-01-09/3-16-10/8-03-
10/ 01/05/15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Sick Leave

1. PURPOSE: To establish a policy for granting leave of absence time to county employees.

2. POLICY: A leave of absence may be granted to an employee due to extended personal or
family illness or an uncontrollable or personal demand of the employee’s time.

2.1 Accrual and Use of Sick Leave

2.1.1 Accrual of Sick Leave

The employer expects each employee to be available for work on a regular and reliable basis.
The employer will monitor attendance and leave use whether or not the employee has
accumulated leave balances remaining in his/her Sick Leave account.

a.

Resgutardll eligible full-time and part-time (working an average of 20 hours or more per
week) employees will accrue Sick Leave at the rate of 0.0577 hours per each regularly
scheduled hour worked or on paid status. Sick Leave is not accrued for any other hours.

All eligible full-time and part-time (working twenty~26) an average of 20 hours or more
per week) employees will be credited with the equivalent of six—6)-three months of
earned Sick Leave at the appropriate accrued rate at the end of six-(6)-three months of
employment. (For exemptions see Policy Layoffs & Reinstatement # 802 Section B.1).

Sick Leave hours are earned and credited to the employee on a biweekly basis, coinciding
with pay periods.

Sick Leave shall be charged on the basis of actual time used to the nearest one-quarter
(1/4) hours.

Unused Sick Leave will be credited to the employee’s Sick Leave balance to a maximum
accrual of 960 hours. Sick Leave accrual will cease when the employee’s total year-end
(calendar year) balance reaches 960 hours, until the balance falls below 960 hours.

v o ! ' by > >
Holidays occurring during Sick Leave periods shall be counted as Holidays, not Sick
Leave.

2.1.2 Use of Sick Leave

Sick Leave is for use in situations in which the employee must be absent from work due to:

a.

His/her own physical illness or injury;
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b. His/her own exposure to contagious diseases or when attendance at work is prevented by
public health requirements;

¢. The need to care for an ill or injured dependent child, spouse or domestic partner, parent,
or any other legal dependent who is dependent upon the employee for support;

d. Medical or dental appointments for the employee, provided that the employee makes a
reasonable effort to schedule such appointments at times which have the least
interference with the workday;

e. Any disability, including disability caused or contributed to by pregnancy, miscarriage,
abortion, or childbirth;

f.  Siek-teave—shal-be-granted—in-the-event-of-the-d-Death of the employee’s spouse or

domestic partner, children, parents, siblings, grandparents, grandchildren, parents-in-law,
siblings-in-law, or other legal dependents; however, the automatic granting of sueh-teave
Sick Leave for this situation shall be limited to five ¢3-working days, which may be
extended upon the recommendation of the department head and approval of the Personnel
Director and/or Administrative Officer.

Employees who are absent from work due to Sick Leave shall be at their residence, a medical
facility, their doctor’s office, or shall notify their supervisor of their whereabouts when using Sick
Leave.

2.1.3 Abuse of sick leave

Use of Sick Leave for purposes other than those listed in section 2.1.2 above is evidence—of
considered abuse of Sick Leave. Abuse of Sick Leave is cause for disciplinary action, up to and
including termination. If the employer suspects abuse, it may require substantiating evidence
which may include, but is not limited to, a certificate from a health care provider.

2.1.4 Iliness during Annual Leave

If an employee on annual lcave suffers an illness or injury which requires medical treatment from a
licensed physician or health practitioner, s/he may elect to charge that time to his/her accumulated
Sick Leave provided that the employee furnishes the employer with a certificate issued by the
licensed physician or health practitioner providing treatment.

2.1.5 Placing an employee on Sick Leave

An employer may place an employee on Sick Leave if s/he has an illness that appears to be
contagious, or due to a known or suspected illness or injurys-the employee is not able to perform
the essential functions of their position with or without reasonable accommodation.

2.1.6 Return to work

An employee on Sick Leave shall notify his/her departinent-manager supervisor as soon as the
employee is able to return to work. An employee returning from an extended absence shall give as
much advance notice of return as possible.

a. The Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer may alse require a statement from
a licensed physician or health practitioner certifying the employee’s fitness to return to
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work (fit-for-duty) when an employee has been on-an-extended-absenee absent from work
for three contiguous work days or longer.

b. An employee requesting Sick Leave lasting longer than three 3}-eentinuous contiguous

work days may be required to provide the Elected-OfficiabDept—Head—orSupervisor

elected official, department head, or supervisor with acceptable evidence to substantiate
the request.

2.1.7 Sick Leave alternative

If an employee does not have adequate accrued Sick Leave time, the employee may be granted the
use of Annual Leave or other accrued leave times-if-any—nteu-thereof for this purpose. In no case,
however, wiH may Sick Leave time be used or granted as for use as Annual Leave or Vacation
time,

Employees may donate their accrued Sick Leave to those employees that do not have adequate
accrued Sick Leave as provided for in Policy No. 604 governing Catastrophic Sick Leave.

2.1.8 Sick Leave at separation

Upon separation from employment due to resignation, termination, layoff, retirement, disability, or
death, an eligible employee with a total of accrued hours at 360 or more—&n—el+g+ble—empleyee shall
receive a one-time recognition payment based upon the amount of unused Sick Leave remaining in
the employee’s sick leave account. Compensation for his/her total Sick Leave hours shall be at the
following rates up to a maximum amount of $ 5,000.00.

a. 5 years but less than 10 years of service shall be paid 12.5 cents on the dollar;
b. 10 year but less than 15 year of service shall be paid 25.0 cents on the dollar;
c. 15 years but less than 20 year of service shall be paid 40.0 cents on the dollar

d. More than 20 years of service shall be paid 50.0 cents on the dollar.
2.2 Procedure
2.2.1 Leave Approval

An employee shall complete an appropriate leave request form (Form No. 602F) as soon as the
need for leave is known (Ne—602-F). The elected official, Dept-department head, or supervisor
shall determine whether to approve the use of accrued Sick Leave and shall approve such a request
whenever it is deemed reasonable.

2.2.2 Notification

Any employee who is ill or unable to report to work for any reason shall notify his/her immediate
supervisor no later than fifleen~+53 15 minutes following the employee’s normal work reporting
time. In the event of a continuing illness, the employee shall continue to notify his/her immediate
supervisor daily, or at appropriate intervals agreed on by the supervisor, of his/her condition. The
employer may deny Sick Leave requests which are not in compliance with this policy.

2.2.3 Doctor’s Certification
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The employer may require an employee to provide a medical doctor’s certification that the
illness/injury incapacitated the employee from performing his/her duties, was necessary for the
employee to make full and timely recovery, or was appropriate to avoid the spread of a contagious
disease. The certification will also verify the employee’s fitness for return to work (fit-for-duty). A
medical-doetor’s physician’s statement is required when specifically requested by the supervisor or
manager department head and when the employee has been on Sick Leave for three or more
contlguous days.

2.2.4 FMLA Leave

FMLA leave is not considered Sick Leave. Refer to Policy 605 for all qualified leave under the
Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA).

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 605
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-18-08
REVISED:  03-16-10;-08-03-10;
01-05-15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW
SUBJECT: FMLA - Family and Medical Leave Act

1. PURPOSE:

To acknowledge the federal Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) that was enacted in 1993 to
balance the medical and time off demands of the workforce, as well as support the needs of
employees’ eligible family members.

2. POLICY

Public employers are covered under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), and will comply
with the requirements of the FMLA and advise #se-employees if they meet all the FMLA cligibility
requirements. The employer must provide employees with Form WHD-1420 (Employee Rights
and Responsibilities under the l*amnly and Medical Leave Act, 2013) and are-etso-required+o-will
post and keep posted this notice in a conspicuous place, even if no employees are eligible.

(Note: Employers that have less than 50 employees within—75—surface—iles are not required to
provide FMLA leave to their employees as employees will not be independently eligible as defined
below in Section 2.1 Eligibility. As of the date of thzs polzcy, Storey County m conwdered to fall
undel the requzrementv of FMLA) 5 +h = 5 .

2.1 Eligibility

Employees who have been employed by Storey County for atteastone—{—vear a total of 12
months, have and-worked for Storey County at least ene-thousand-twe-hundred-fifty—(2563 1,250
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hours during the preceding 12-month period, and are employed at a work site where +y{56)-50
or more employees work for the employer within seventyfive{75} 75 surface miles of that work
site are eligible for family—and-medical FMLA lcave. When—the—1:250-hours—are—caleulated—the
Hours that an employee was on vacation or on leave, even if that vacation or leave was paid, do
not count toward the calculation of the 1,250 hours worked. However, an employee who has a
National Guard or Reserve military service obligation must be credited with the hours of service
that would have been performed, but for the period of military service. The required one {1+ year
of employment does not have to be consecutive. There may be a break in service as long as it does
not exceed seven—7) 7 years. There is an exception to the 7-seven-year condition for National
Guard and Reservists and written agreements. All employees meeting the above qualifications
qualify for FMLA, regardless of their seasonal, temporary, etc., status.

2.2 Compensation during leave

Family-and-medical-deave FMLA leave will be unpaid leave unless the employee has accrued paid
leave and is otherwise eligible to use the leave. If an employee requests leave for the employee’s
own serious health condition, or for the serious health condition of the employee’s spouse, child,
or parent, to provide military caregiver leave, or exigency leave, the employee must use all of
his/her accrued paid annual leave, sick leave (if it qualifies under employer's sick leave use
requirements), compensatory time leave, and personal time off as part of the FMLA leave. (See the
applicable collective bargaining agreement for alternate provisions which may apply.) Heave-is
mqu%&é—wmﬁ%e%&mhweasem—rdamﬁeé—bﬁw—m—emﬂ%ee—mtw—m&auwmwm

teave: When subslituting accrued paid leave, the employee must comply with the employer s
procedural requirements, terms, and conditions of the paid leave policy as appropriate; the
remainder of the leave period will then consist of unpaid FMLA leave. Employees must be made
aware that they are required to use sick, annual, compensatory time, and personal leave as
appropriate, in the rights and responsibilities notlce Form WH-M%O 381 (reference: FMLA Form
WHDP-I420-381 : Employee-Richts-and-Resporisit e FMedieal4eave—tet
Notice of Eligibility and Rights & Responsibilities).

2.3 Intermittent or reduced schedule leave

When medically necessary (as distinguished from voluntary treatments and procedures), or for any
qualifying exigency, leave may be taken on an intermittent or reduced schedule basis. Leave for
bonding with a healthy newborn or placement of a healthy child for adoption or foster care is not
considered medically necessary and, therefore, may not be taken on a reduced schedule or
intermittent basis unless agreed to by the employer. Employees needing intermittent leave or
reduced schedule leave must attemapt make a reasonable effort to schedule their leave so as not to
unduly disrupt the employer’s operations. If the leave is foreseeable, the employer may require an
employee on intermittent leave or reduced schedule leave to temporarily transfer to an available
alternative position for which the employee is qualified if the position has equivalent pay and
benefits and better accommodates the employee’s intermittent or reduced schedule leave.
Intermittent leave and reduced schedule leave reduces the twelve-(—lQ—) week entltlement only by
the actual time used. et
MWMM&M&@MMM&MHMW When an
employee who was transferred no longer needs intermittent or reduced schedule leave, the
employee must be placed in the same or equivalent position held prior to when the leave
commenced.
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2.4 Duration and reasons for leave

2.4.1 Duration of leave. Any eligible employee, as defined above, may be granted a total of twelve
2) weeks of unpaid FMLA leave (which can run concurrent with paid leave) during a 12-month
period (see exception for Military Caregiver Leave as provided in section 2.5 below). This period
is measured backward from the date an employee uses any FMLA leave. A “week” is defined as a
calendar week, regardless of the number of days the employee normally works. Twelve (-2}
calendar weeks does not entitle the employee working three (3) days a week to sixty{60) sixty
leave days, but rather twelve (42) weeks.

2.4.2 Reasons for leave. FMLA may be granted for the following reasons:

The birth of the employee’s child and in order to care for the newborn child;
The placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care;

To care for the employee’s spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition;
or

An employee’s own serious health condition that prevents the employee from
performing one or more of the essential the functions of his/her job. Serious health
conditions may include conditions resulting from job-related injuries and/or illnesses; or

Due to a qualifying exigency arising when an employec’s spouse, son, daughter, or
parent is a military member on covered active duty or has been notified of an impending
call to covered active duty.

2.4.3 Conditions for Leave

a. Serious Health Condition. A serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or
physical or mental condition of incapacity or treatment that involves:

Inpatient care (overnight stay) in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility.

Continuing treatment by (or under the supervision of) a health care provider for a period
of incapacity of more than three consecutive full calendar days, combined with at least
two visits to a health care provider within 30 days of the first day of incapacity or one
visit to a health care provider requiring a regimen of continuing treatment, e.g.,
prescription medication.

Unpaid FMLA leave will run concurrently with paid vacation, sick, compensatory time,
and/or personal leave, unless otherwise prohibited by any relevant collective bargaining
agreement. Unpaid FMLA leave may also run concurrently with workers’” compensation
leave or other benefits.

b. Exigency leave-may be-takenfor:

L ]

L4

Short-term notice deployment (deployment in seven or less calendar days)
Military events and activities

Childcare and school activities

Family support or assistance programs

Financial and legal arrangements
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e Counseling

o Military service member’s rest and recuperation leave (limited to 15 calendar days for
each instance)

o Restand-recuperation
¢ Post-deployment activities

e Parental leave for the spouse, son, daughter, or parent of a military member for care for
the military member’s parent who is incapable of self-carc. The leave may be used for
arranging for alternate care, providing care, admitting or transferring the patient to a care
facility, or attending a meeting with care facility staff.

e Additional activities arising out of active duty that the employer and employee agree
upon.

c. Covered Active Duty means:

e In the case of a member of a regular component of the Armed Forces, duty during the
deployment of the member with the Armed Forces to a foreign country:-and

e In the case of a member of a reserve component of the Armed Forces, duty during the
deployment of the member with the Armed Forces to a foreign country under a call or
order to active duty in support of a contingency operation.

2.4,4 Limitation of leave

The entitlement to FMLA leave for the birth or placement of a child for adoption or foster care will
expire twelve €2} months from the date of the birth or placement. If both an employee and his/her
spouse are employed by the employer, their combined time off may not exceed twelve (+2)-work
weeks during any 12-month period for the birth, adoption, or foster care of a child, or care of a
parent with a serious health condition. Each spouse is, however, eligible for the full twelve (2)
work weeks within a 12-month period to care for a son, daughter, or spouse with a serious health
condition.

Employees may not take more than a combined total of twelve €42y weeks for all FMLA
qualifying reasons listed above in Section 6.4.2.

2.5 Military Caregiver Leave
2.5.1 Policy

An eligible employee, as defined in Eligibility Section 2.1. above, may be granted a total of 26
weeks of unpaid FMLA leave (which can run concurrent with paid leave) during a 12-month
period to provide caregiver leave for a seriously ill or injured covered servicemember or veteran

who is the employee’s spouse, son, daughter, parent, or fearest-bloed—relative—the—covered

v

veteran—next of kin. This period is always measured forward from the date an employee takes
FMLA leave to care for the covered servicemember or veteran and ends twelve (42) months after
that date.
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Employees cannot take more than a combined total of twenty-six—26) 26 weeks for military
carcgiver leave or because of other FMLA qualifying reasons as provided in 2.4 above. A husband
and wife both working for the same employer are limited to a combined total of twenty-six{26} 26
weeks of FMLA military caregiver leave.

2.5.2 Covered servicemember

The Covered Servicemember means—under the Military Caregiver leave must be:

a. A current member of the Armed Forces (including a member of the National Guard or
Reserves) who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is otherwise in
outpatient status, or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired list, for a serious tHaess
er-Hyury;-oF injury or illness that:

e Was incurred by the covered servicemember in the line of duty on active duty in the
Armed Forces; or

o Existed before the beginning of the member’s active duty and was aggravated by
service in the line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces; and

e May render the member medically unfit to perform the duties of the member’s
office, grade, rank, or rating.

b. A covered veteran is an individual who was a member of the Armed Forces (including a
member of the National Guard or Reserves), and was discharged or released under
conditions other than dishonorable at any time during the five-year period* prior to the first
date the eligible employee takes FMLA leave to care for the covered veteran who is
undergoing medical treatment, recuperation or therapy for a serious injury or illness that
was incurred by the member in the line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces (or
existed before the beginning of the member’s active duty and was aggravated by service in
the line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces) and manifested itself before or after
the member became a veteran, and is:

e A continuation of a serious injury or illness that was incurred or aggravated when
the covered veteran was a member of the Armed forces and rendered the
servicemember unable to perform the duties of the scrvicemember’s office, grade,
rank, or rating; or

e A physical or mental condition for which the covered veteran has received a U.S.
Department of Veteran Affairs Service-Related Disability Rating (VASRD) of 50
percent or greater, and such VASRD rating is based, in whole or in part, on the
condition precipitating the need for military caregiver leave; or

e A physical or mental condition that substantially impairs the covered veteran’s
ability to secure or follow a substantially gainful occupation by reason of a
disability or disabilities related to military service, or would do so absent treatment;
or

e An injury, including a psychological injury, on the basis of which the covered
veteran has been enrolled in the Department of Veteran Affairs Program of
Comprehensive Assistance for Family Caregivers.

e (*) The period between 10-28-09 and 3-8-13 is excluded in the determination of the
five-year period.
Page 8 of 16



2.5.3 Limitations of leave

Employees cannot take more than a combined total of 26 weeks for military caregiver leave or
because of other FMLA qualifying reasons as provided in 6.4.2. A husband and wife both working
for the same employer are limited to a combined total of 26 weeks of FMLA military caregiver
leave.

A-veteran-who-is-undergein
injury-andavhowas-a-member-o F—Hae Mmed—rﬂeeﬁmeiu&agwaaonatémad—m—kesewes)-a%
time-during—the-period-oftive-(5)-years—preceding—the-date-on—which-the-veteran-undergoes-that

medical treatment, recuperationsostherapys
2.6 Notice of Leave

An employee intending to take FMLA leave because of an expected birth or placement or child for
adoption or foster care, a planned medical treatment or medical care, or qualifying exigency, must
sybmit-an-appheation shall provide notice for such leave at least 30 days before the leave is to
begin. If a requested leave will begin in less than thirty (36} days, the employee must give notice to
his/her immediate supervisor as soon as the necessity for the leave is known. Reasonable advance
notice is required for all leaves, even if the event necessitating the leave is not foreseeable. If an
employee gives less than thirty (38} days notice, the employer may require an explanation.

Within five {53 business days (bassing absent extenuating circumstances) of receiving notice that 1)
an employee requests to use FMLA leave, or 2) an-employee—+equests—teave—and the employer
acquires knowledge that the-a leave may be for a FMLA-qualifying reason, the employer will
complete Form WH-381 (reference. FMLA Form WH-381-Notice of Eligibility and Rights and
Responsibilities). Completion of this form will designate if an employee is eligible for FMLA or if
an employee is not eligible, the reason(s) why they s/he is are not eligible. The form will designate
if the employee is required to obtain certification related to medical conditions and/or required
family relationships. The employer may require the use of FMLA leave for any absence which
would otherwise qualify as FMLA leave, even if no formal application for such leave was made by
the employee, provided notice is given to the employee. Employees cannot waive, nor may the
employer induce employees to waive their rights under FMLA.

2.7 Certification of Leave
2.7.1 Certification forms

a. Serious health condition
A request for leave based on the serious health condition of the employee or the
employee’s spouse, child, or parent must be supported by completion of Form WH-380-E
(veference: Certification of Health Care Provider for Employee s Serious Health Condition
or Form WH-380-F -Certification of Health Care Provider for Family Member’s Serious
Health Condition) completed by the health care provider. (Note: Attach the employee’s
current job description to Form 380-E when it is sent to the employee’s health care
provider.)

The Certification of Health Care Provider form must be completed and returned by the
employee within 15 calendar days, absent extenuating circumstances.

b. Exigency leave

Employees requesting FMLA leave for qualifying exigency arc required to complete Form
WH-384 (reference;: FMLA Form WH-384-Certification of Qualifying Exigency for
Military Family Leave) and provide a copy of the military member’s active duty orders or
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other documentation issued by the military which indicates that the military member is on
covered active duty or call to covered active duty status.

Caregiver leave

Employees requesting FMLA leave for military caregiver leave are required to complete
Form WH-385 (reference: FMLA Form WH-385-Certification of Serious Injury or Illness
of Covered Service member for Military Family Leave) within 15 calendar days, barring
absent extenuating circumstances. Employees may also submit invitational travel orders
(ITOs) or invitational travel authorizations (ITAs) issued to any family member to join an
injured or ill servicemember at his/her bedside in lieu of forms WH-385 or WH-385-V.

Eﬁﬂ#weﬂéwetw%eﬂm&nmm%%%mee%%ﬁam%
%@P@a&ﬁeﬁma—e%%%—@ﬂe—ﬁ%da—%ﬁmm%Membwﬂem%e&hh

5thbna4vﬂhﬂn—emmaw—9£—ﬂae—aﬁe%eLum&me—ﬂnpbyee—HH—9M
em,ﬂeye&h&wwm&he&%h—e&ndﬂwl%emﬁeduemnwm%m%m

Incomplete or insufficient certification (cure period)

If a certification is incomplete or insufficient, the employee will be given seven calendar
days (unless not practicable under the particular circumstances despite the employee's
diligent good faith efforts) to cure any such deficiency. If the deficiencies specified by the
employer are not cured in the resubmitted certification, the employer may deny the taking
of FMLA leave. A certification that is not returned to the employer is not considered
incomplete or insufficient, but constitutes a failure to provide certification.

Clarification or authentication of certification

Employer may contact the employee’s health care provider for the purpose of clarification
or authentication after giving the employee an opportunity to clarify specific discrepancies.
Only the County Administrative Officer/Personnel Director or County Manager, may
contact the heath care provider.

Second or third options

If the employer questions the validity of the certification, the employer may require, at its
expense, that the employee obtain a second opinion. If the second opinion conflicts with
the original opinion, the employer may require, at its expense, that the employee obtain the

opinion of a third health care provider designated or approved jointly by the employer and
the employee. This third opinion will be considered final and binding on both parties.
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Second and third opinions are not permitted for leave to care for a covered servicemember
when the certification has been completed by a Department of Defense or Department of
Veterans Affairs health care provider. However, second and third opinions are permitted
when the certification has been completed by other health care providers as provided for by
law.

Second and third options are not allowed on a fitness-for-duty certification.
g. Recertification

In instances where diagnoses the minimum duration of leave anticipated by the original
certification is more than 30 days—ﬁemw&ea#p&%e%—app%e—be—mdeﬁm&e—er—bﬂg—
term; the employer may require the employee to recertify that the original medical
condition still exists. Such requests can be made no more frequently than the minimum
duration of the leave requested (e g., 40 days) or once evcry six (-6-) months in connectlon
with an absence. ~have
ehaage%rgmﬁemaﬂyekme%nmhywemwsan&wmmmwwwe&b%md
e A

In situations in which the minimum duration of leave anticipated by the original
certification is mere less than 30 days, the employer may request recertification if the
employee requests an extension of leave, the circumstances described by the original
certification have changed significantly, or the employer receives information casting doubt
upon the continuing validity of the certification.

Recertifications are not permitted for leave to care for a covered servicemember.
h. Annual medical certification

The employer may require the employee to provide new medical certification, not
recertification, for his/her first FMLA-related absence in a new 12-month leave year.

2.8 Designation notice

Within five business days (basring absent extenuating circumstances) of receipt of all required
information, the employer will make a determination if employee’s request for leave is for an
FMLA-qualifying reason. The employer will complete Form WH-382 (reference: FMLA Form
WH-382-Designation Notice) indicating if leave is approved or not and provide to employee

If the employer cannot make a determination from the information provided, they will use this
form to:

a. Indicate the information presented is incomplete or insufficient and provide the employee
seven (1 calendar days to provide complete information.

b. Provide notice to an employee if a second or third medical certification is required.
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Employer may also use this form to designate a fitness-for-duty certificate which will be required
prior to returning to work.

2.9 Benefits coverage during leave

During a period of FMLA leave, an employee will be retained on the employer’s health plan under
the same conditions that would apply if the employee was not on FMLA leave. To continue health
coverage, the employee must continue to make any contributions that s/he would otherwise be
required to make. Failure of the employee to pay his/her share of the health insurance premium
may result in loss of coverage.

If the employee fails to return to work after the expiration of the FMLA leave, the employee will
be required to reimburse the employer for payment of health insurance premiums during the leave,
unless the reason the employee cannot return is due to circumstances beyond the employee’s
control. The definition of “beyond the employee’s control” includes a very large variety of
situations such as: the employee being subject to layoff: continuation, recurrence, or the onset of
an FMLA qualifying event; or the employee’s spouse’s unexpected worksite relocation of more
than 75 miles from the current worksite.

An employee is not entitled to the accrual of any seniority or employment benefits during any
unpaid leave. An employee who takes FMLA leave will not lose any seniority or employment
benefits that accrued before the date the leave began and will be entitled to any unconditional pay
increase, such as cost of living increase granted to all employees during the FMLA leave period.

2.10 Outside employment

An employee is prohibited from engaging in outside employment during an FMLA absence if the
job conflicts with the reason the employee is on FMLA leave; e.g., an employee is on FMLA leave
due to a back injury and works a job requiring heavy lifting. All other requirements of employer’s
outside employment policy apply.

2.11 Periodic reporting

Any employee on FMLA leave must notify employer periodically of his/her status and intention to return to work.
The employer has the authority to determine how often the employee must provide this notification.

2.12 Change in duration of leave
a. Return prior to expiration

If an employee wishes to return to work prior to the expiration of the approved FMLA
leave period, s/he must notify the supervisor within two business days prior to the
employee’s planned return. Employees may be required to provide a fitness-for-duty
certification (if indicated on the designation notice) specifically addressing the employee’s
ability to perform the essential functions of his/her job, prior to returning to work if the
FMLA leave of absence was due to the employee’s own serious health condition.
Employees required to present a fitness-for-duty certification may be delayed in restoration
to employment until certification is provided. Second and third opinions are not allowed
on a fitness-for-duty certification.

b. Request an extension of leave

An employee who requests an extension of FMLA leave due to the continuation of a
qualifying exigency, care for servicemember, continuation, recurrence, or onset of his/her
own serious health condition, or of the serious health condition of the employee’s spouse,

Page 12 of 16



child, or parent, must submit a request for an extension, in writing, to the employer. This
written request should be made as soon as the employee realizes that s/he will not be able
to return at the expiration of the leave period. Any additional time requested beyond the
FMLA 12-week period (or 26-week period for caregiver leave) will not be considered as
FMLA. Rather, such time, if approved by the employer, will be characterized as either
paid or unpaid leave, thereby ending the employer’s reinstatement obligations included in
Section 6.4.11. (See the applicable collective bargaining agreement for alternate provisions
which may apply.)

2.13 Return from leave

a. Upon returning to work, an employee on FMLA leave will be restored to his/her most
recent position or to a position with equivalent pay, bencfits, and other terms and
conditions of employment. The employer cannot guarantee that an employee will be
returned to his/her original jeb position. The employer will determine whether a position is
an “equivalent position” as defined by FMLA. Employee’s right to restoration, however,
ceases at the end of the applicable 12-month FMLA leave year.

Employees may be required to provide a fitness-for-duty certification (if indicated on the
designation notice) specifically addressing the employee’s ability to perform the essential
functions of his/her job, prior to returning to work if the FMLA leave of absence was due
to the employee’s own serious health condition. Employees required to present a fitness-
for-duty certification may be delayed in restoration to employment until certification is
provided. Second and third opinions are not allowed on a fitness for duty certification.

Key employees may be denied job restoration if such denial is necessary to prevent
substantial and gricvous economic injury to the operations of employer and the employee
was given written notice they were considered a key employee at the time they gave notice
of FMLA leave or when the leave commenced.

2.14 Failure to return from leave

Failure of an employee to return to work upon the expiration of a FMLA leave of absence will
subject the employee to disciplinary action, up to and including termination, unless the
employer has granted an additional (paid or unpaid) extension. (Note: Refer to employer’s
other leave policies). g S et :

.
o

bargaining-agreementfor-alternate-provisions—which-may-apply-) Nothing in this policy limits
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employer’s obligations of reasonable accommodation under the Americans with Disabilities
Act, as amended.

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 609

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-10-08
REVISED: 01/05/15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW
SUBJECT: MILITARY LEAVE

1. PURPOSE

2. POLICY

Employees-whe-are-members-of the-uniformed-services-are-entitled-to-military-leave-and-to-re-
employmentrights-as-provided-in38-USCrsections202-2024-and-4302-etseq—and-the-refevant
stHhemmmmWwdmm&mmw

compotents-otheses :
WWMMHBM%MMWWMW&
Employees who are members of the uniformed services are entitled to military leave. The
uniformed services covered include the Army, Navy, Marines, Air Force, Coast Guard, Public
Health Service Commissioner Corps, the reserve components of these services, and any other
category dispatched by the President in time of war or nations emergency. The Army National
Guard and Air National Guard are also covered.

'ee-(—,-smﬂmmwe&—eefﬁs—me—wsm

2.1 Notice and notification

a. The employer must provide employees with notice of their rights under the Uniformed
Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA). This requirement may
be met by posting the notice where the employer customarily places notices for employees.

b. The employer may require written (orders) or verbal notice of service obligation, but must
waive the requirement if notice is impossible or unreasonable.

2.2 Salary and Benefits
a. Leave without pay
1. The employer will treat the employee the same as any other employee on leave

without pay.

2. The employee is entitled to 15-working days of leave with pay in one calendar year
(NRS 281.145).

3. The employer is not required to pay the employee’s salary after 15-working days.
4, The employee may choose to use annual leave and compensatory time, if any, before

going on leave without pay.
Page 14 of 16



b. Health Insurance
There is no impact to the employee’s insurance coverage, including life insurance inclusive
of the health insurance package. The employer and employee premium payments or
obligations, if any, remain unchanged for 30 days. Employee may then continue coverage
similar to that required by the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA)
for either 24 months or through the day after the date on which the employee fails to apply
for reemployment in a timely manner; whichever is less (see Reemployment, Section 2.3
below). The employer must reinstate coverage upon the employee’s prompt reemployment
without the imposition of exclusions or waiting periods. An employee who takes up to 90
days after leaving the military before commencing his/her reemployment may stay on the
military health insurance; however, it is the employee’s responsibility to verify the
continuation, scope, and duration of coverage.

c. Seniority
An employee is entitled to the seniority (and rights and benefits governed by seniority) s/he
had accrued at the commencement of military leave, plus any additional seniority rights
and benefits that s/he would have attained if s/he had remained continuously employed (the
“escalator principle”). However, if an introductory period is a bona fide period of
observation and evaluation, the returning employee must complete the remaining period of
introduction upon reemployment. The employer must count time served for the purpose of
determining annual and sick leave accrual rates, if the accrual amount is based on seniority.
Additionally, the employer must count time in the military when determining the
employce’s rate of pay if the rate is based on seniority (e.g., a grade-and-step pay system).
The employer is not required to accumulate annual or sick leave for an employee during
his/her absence. The “escalator principle” will be applied to a returning employec’s
opportunities to take promotional examinations or skills tests and to merit pay increases.

d. Retirement
Time served will be counted as work time for purposes of retirement. The employer must
make contribution payments to the retirement plan as if the employee had not left, provided
the employee returns to work. The employer contribution will be based on the rate of pay
the employee would have been paid had s/he not been called to military service (¢.g., a
grade-and-step pay system). An exception to this requirement is when the higher pay is
based on additional knowledge, skill, or ability that can only be gained by work experience.

e. Death or Disability
If an employee does not return to work due to death or disability, the survivor or disability
benefit is treated as if the employee had been working until the date of the death or
disability. The employer must make the retirement contribution up to the date of the death
or disability.

f. Other Leave

The employer must count time served in the military when calculating the employee’s
Family Medical Leave Act eligibility.

2.3 Reemployment
a. An employee has certain report-to-work obligations following military service. Eligible

returning service members must be promptly reemployed, which in most cases means
within two weeks of reporting. The employee’s report-to-work obligations are:
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1. Service of one to 30 days: The beginning of the next regularly-scheduled work
period on the first full day following completion of service, and expiration of an
eight-hour rest period following safe transportation home.

2. Service of 31 to 180 days: Application for reinstatement must be submitted not later
than 14 days after completion of military duty.

3. Service of 181 or more days: Application for reinstatement must be submitted not
later than 90 days after completion of military duty.

b. The deadline for reinstatement may be extended for up to two years for persons who are
convalescing due to a disability incurred or aggravated during military service, and the
employer must make reasonable accommodations for the impairment.

¢. Reemployment rights apply to veterans whose cumulative period of uniformed service does
not exceed five years while employed by the same employer. Time spent in National
Guard and reservist training does not count towards the five-year period.

2.4 Discharge

If time served is greater than 30 days, but less than 181 days, an employee may not be discharged
within 180 days of reemployment, except for just cause. If time served is greater than 180 days, an
employee may not be discharged for one year, except for just cause.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative Officer
will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.
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Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: |- (- |5 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

S. Supporting materials: Sece attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
x__ Department

%ty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Department Name; Community Development

Approved with Modifications
Continued

En Vo |
{ S— T—r1

Agenda [tem No. l ?3



Storey County Community Bebelopment
Business o)) Licensing

P OBox 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

To:

Fr:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office December 29,2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the January 6, 2016, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

AETEQEEDORR

€C!

ROSENDIN ELECTRIC, INC. — Contractor / 880 Mabury Road ~ San Jose, CA (electrical contractor)
PANDA RESTAURANT GROUP — General / 745 Sparks Blvd ~ Sparks (caterer)

PEED EQUIPMENT CO - Contractor / 1480 Nandina Avenue ~ Perris, CA (heavy equipment)
SCHUFF STEEL COMPANY - Contractor / 1841 West Buchanan ~ Phoenix, AZ (steel erector)
QUALITY CONTROL SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 61 Continental Drive ~ Reno (hvac contractor)
SURFACE PREP & MAINTENANCE - Contractor / 240 Linden Street ~ Reno (asphalt contractor)
STERLING CRANE, LLC - Contractor / 2211 5" Street ~ Elko (heavy lift services)
ANNING-JOHNSON CO - Contractor / 13250 Temple Avenue ~ City of Industry, CA (metal deck install)
SUNVELOPE SOLAR, INC. — Contractor / 96 Glen Carran Cir ~ Sparks (solar contractor)

SAFWAY SERVICES, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 1991 ~ Milwaukee, WI (scaffolding equip)
ANSBERRY SIGNCRAFT — General / 10865 Osage Road ~ Reno (signage manufacturer)

Inspection Required
Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: A presentation by the Bureau of Land Management, Carson City District regarding their
draft Resource Management Plan (RMP)/Environmental Impact Statement (EIS). The 120-day
public comment period runs from November 28, 2014 through March 27, 2015. A hard copy of the
draft document is available for review in the Planning Department.

2. Recommended motion: None required.
3. Prepared by: Dessie Redmond, Planner
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: The Carson City District draft RMP and EIS was released to the public on
Friday, November 28th. The 120-day public comment period runs from November 28, 2014
through March 27, 2015. The BLM mailed individuals on the BLM/RMP mailing list either a
postcard or an email with information on where to locate the draft RMP/EIS and also
dates/locations of public meetings. A hard copy of the draft document is available for review in the
Planning Department.

S. Supporting materials: Power point (included in packet).
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_J/ Department Head Department Name:

& County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued
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Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 5, 2015 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Storey County Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,
2014,

2. Recommended motion
Staff Recommends County Commissioners approve report as presented.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4, Staff summary:
5. Supporting materials: Audit Report Storey County, Nevada June 30, 2014

6. Fiscal impact: Creates possible Augmentation in excess of 1 million dollars.
Funds Available: Fund: _x____ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_x___ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

W@unty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_—
S —

Agenda Item No.

|+



Audit Report

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

June 30, 2014
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Board of County Comrnissioners
Storey County, Nevada

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretelypresented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Storcy
County, Nevada, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Managenent’s Responsibility for the Financial Statenents

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free [fom material

misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriatein the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Storey County, Nevada, as of June 30, 2014, and the
respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted inthe United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-8 and18-27 and 51-75 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers if to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Storey
County, Nevada’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial,
and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directlyto the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

T2 AR

David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD
Carson City, NV

October 31, 2014



COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Storey County, State of Nevada, we offer readers of Storey County’s financial statements this
overview and analysis of Storey County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

+  The assets of Storey County exceeded its liabilities by$34,986,000.

+  The County’s unrestricted net assets increased $ 4,435,000.

« At June 30, 2014, the unreserved fund balance for the general fand was $9,161,000.

+  Storey County’s bonded debt at June 30, 2014 was $5,396,000 which was $3,534,000 in revenue bonds
of the County’s Enterprise Funds a Medium term (7 yr.) General obligationloans 0f $330,000, and Virginia
City Rail Bonds of $1,532,000.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to Storey County's basic financial statements. These
basic financial statements include (1) Government-Wide Financial Staterents (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes
to the financial statements. Other supplementary information is also available in this report.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide statements are designed to provide readers with a
broad overview of Storey County’s finances in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Assets is information on all of Storey County’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reporied as net assets, Qver time, increases in net assets may serve as an indicator to show if the financial
position of Storey County is improving or declining,

The Statement of Activities notes information as to how the government’s net assets changed during the last fiscal year.
All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the event causing the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Revenues and expenses are reported for some items that result in cash flows in future periods, (c.g. caned,
unused vacation)

The Government-Wide Financial Statements distinguish functions of Storey County that are mainly supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (government activities) from other functions that recover their costs through user fees
and charges. The governmental activities of Storey Countyincluded general government, public safety, roads and streets,
judicial and, culture and recreation. The business activities (enterprise funds) are the water and sewer.

The Government-Wide Financial Statements can be found in this report on pages 9 and 10.

Fund Financial Statements. Funds are groupings of related accounts and is used to maintain contro} over resources
segregated for specific activities or purpose. Storey County uses fund accounting to ensure compliance with state and
federal finance related requirements. The fund types of Storey County are as follows: governmental; enterprise; and
fiduciary.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for the functions reported as governmental activities,
in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. Unlike the Government-Wide Financial Statements, governmental fund
statements focus on near term inflows of expendable resources and on balances of expendable resources at the end of
the fiscal year. This information helps with decisions as to near term financing needs.

The focus of governmental funds is narrower than the Government-Wide Financial Statements. It is useful to compare
the information for governmental funds with similar information for governmental activitics in Government-Wide
Financial Statements. Readers will betterunderstand the long-term impactof governments near-term financing decisions.
The governmental fund Balance Sheet and governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in fund
balances allow this comparison between governmental funds and activities.



Storey County has twenty-seven governmental funds. Financial information is statedseparatelyinthe governmental fund
Balance Sheet and in the governmental Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in fund balances, for the
general fund and five other funds considered major funds, Data from the other twenty-one governmental funds are
combined. Individual fund data for non-major governmental funds are reported in combining statements in this report.

Storey County adopts an annual budget for all the above funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided
for all funds to show compliance with the budget.

The governmental funds financial statements can be found in this report on pages 12 through 27.

Enterprise funds. Storey County operates two enterprise (proprietary) funds, Water and Sewer. These funds are
reported as business type activities, reported inthe Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Enterprise funds are presented on pages 28 through 30,

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for other entities. Fiduciary funds are not
reported in the government-wide financial statement as the resources do not support Storey County’s needs. The cash
basis of accounting is used for fiduciary funds.

Fiduciary fund financial statements can be found in this report on page 31,

Notes to the financial statements. The notes in this report provide additional information necessary for a full
understanding of the information provided in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. The notes can be found on
pages 32 through 44.

Other information. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules for major governmental funds can
be found on page 18 through 27 of this report. This same information for non-major governmental funds can be found
on pages 45 through 71 of this report.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NET ASSETS
Govemmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total
June 30,2014 June 30,2014 June 30, 2014
Current and ather Assets $ 23,693,000 $ 1,432,000 $ 25,125,000
Capital Assets 50,845,000 5,743,000 56,588,000
Total Assets $ 74,538,000 $ 75175!000 § 8]! 413!022
Long Terin Liabilitics
Outstanding $ 44,988,000 $ 520,000 $ 45,508,000
Current Liabilities 1,156,000 62,000 1,218,000
Total Liabilities 3 46!144 000 $ 5821000 $ 46,726,000
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital
Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 7,684,000 $ 5,209,000 $ 12,893,000
Unrestricted 20,710,000 1.384,000 22,094,000
Total Net Assets i 28!3 94!000 g 6!5921000 3 34!987!0£zg



REVENUES:

Program Revenues:
Chargcs For Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

General Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovemnmenial
Bond proceeds
Other

Total Revenucs

EXPENSES:
General Government
Public Safety
Judicial
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Community Support
Highways & Streets
Water and Sewer

Tolal Expenses
(Changes In Net Assets
Net Assels - beginning

Net Assets - ending

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Govermmental
Activities
June 30,2014

$2,978,000
624,000
261,000

11,340,000
3,031,000
3,017,000

980,000

22.231,000

5,459,000
8,702,000
797,000
182,000
290,000
487,000
2.220,000
0

18,137,000

4,094,000
24,300,000
$28.394.000

Business Type
Activities
June 30,2014

$ 807,000

84,000

15,000

910,000

741 000
741,000
169,000
6,424,000
$6.593,000

Total
June 30,2014

$ 3,785,000
624,000
345,000

11,340,000
3,031,000
3,017,000

999,000

23,141,000

5,459,000
§,702,000
797,000
182,000
290,000
487,000
2,220,000
741,000

18,878,000
4,263,000
30,724,000
$34,987,000
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Revenues in the General Fund were $11,317,000 which was $1,124,000 more than the amount budgeted. Actualrevenue
exceeded budgeted amounts in all budget categories except taxes. Actual expenditures were $8,859,000, which was
$930,000 less than appropriations for the year. Overall, the total ending fund balance was $9,161,000 which is
$3,789,000 more than budgeted. Ofthe $9,161,000 ending fund balances $ 0 was designated as an opening fund balance
on July 1, 2014 and $0 was reserved on July 1, 2014,

PERCENT TOTALS - ALL FUNDS

| Taxes
& Grants & Contributions
W Charges for Services

56% = Interest and Qther

o # Intergovernmental
5%

m Utliity Service
& Judicial
Highways & Streets
* Culture & Recreation
Health & Welfare
¥ Community Support
m Publlic Safety

M General Government
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Business Type Activities. Business-type activities increased Storey County’s net assets by $169,000. Depreciation
expense for the current fiscal year was $152,000.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds. As noted carlier, Storey County uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of Storey County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows,
outflows, and balances of cxpendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing Storey County’s financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Budgetary Highlights-Fiscal Year June 30, 2014. The budget statements reflect a comparison of budgeted revenues
and cxpenditures to actual for the year ended June 30, 2014, The budget statements were prepared from the final budget
as filed with the Nevada Department of Taxation. Budget revenues and expenditures were adjusted for grants received
in excess of original amounts budgeted. Augmentations and line item transfers were made during the year as approved
by the Storey County Commissioners.

The General Fund revenues were more than expectations by $1,124,000, leaving a fund balance of $9,161,000.

General Fund budget information can be found on pages 18 through 22.

Capital Assets, Storey County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June
30, 2013 amounts to $56,587,000 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, and system, improvements, machinery and cquipment, park facilities, roads, ard bridges.

STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
CAPITAL ASSETS
JUNE 30,2014
Govemimental Business Type
Activities Activities Total
June 30,2014 June 30,2014 June 30, 2014
Land $ 460,000 $ 460,000
Antique Fumiture 75,000 75,000
Construction in Process 2,244,000 2,244,000
Buildings and Iinprovements 7,735,000 7,739,000
Improvements other than Buildings 574,000 574,000
Machinery and Equipment 1,610,000 1,610,000
Sewer and Water systems . $ 5,743,000 5,743,000
Infrastructure 38.142,000 38,142,000
Total $ 50,844,000 $ 5,743,000 $ 56,587,000

Other Highlights-Fiscal Year June 30, 2014. On August 3, 2011, Storey County issued $2,000,000 worth of General
Obligation Bonds for the purpose of completing the Virginia and Truckee Railroad Tunnel #6 for the purpose of
extending the railroad line to the old Freight Depot. Funds were received on December 28, 2011 witha payback period
ending June 1,2028. As of this date no construction has commenced due to construction bids which were deemed too
expensive. However, minor bonds proceeds have been used for design and engineering costs. Attempts to solicit
additional bids are in the process. The balance owed on the bonds at June 30, 2014 is $1,532,000.

In December of 2000 Storey County entered into a Public-Private partnership with Tahoe Regional Industrial Center for
the development of an industrial park. In April 0f 2011 Storey County agreed to accept expenses for infrastructure in
the amount of $46,851,000. In addition, a payment of $2,400,000 was paid in accordance with the Developer
Agreement. A payment of $897,000 was made during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014,



This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Storey County, Nevada’s finances for all those with
aninterestin the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests
for additional financial information should be addressed to Storey County Comptroller, P.O. Box 432, Virginia City,

Nevada 89440, telephone number (775)847-1006, e-mail Hgallagher@StoreyCounty.org

7 : g
HughJ7 Gallagher, .
Comptroller



ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivables (net allowance)
Taxes reccivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation
Land
Antique fumiture
Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other (han buildings
Utility system
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Bonds/Notes payable - due within ane year
- due in more than onc year
Compensated absences - due in more than one year
Other non-current liabilitics
Infrastructure loan

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investcd in capital asscts - net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2014

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
§ 22438568 § 17360076 23,798,644
665,418 71,763 737,181
148,248 148,248
7,961 7,961
432,545 432,545
460,009 460,009
75,000 75,000
2,244,377 2,244,377
7,739,358 7,739,358
574,458 574,458
5,743,048 5,743,048
1,609,852 1,609,852
38,141,830 38,141,830
§ 74537624 $ 7,174,887 81,712,511
$ 155531 S 47,870 1,203,401
162,950 14,098 177,048
1,815,100 519,966 2,335,066
163,575 163,575
131,999 131,999
42,714,672 42,714,672
$  46,143827 $ 581,934 46,725,761
$  7.684,162 § 5208984 12,893,146
20,709,638 1,383,969 22,093,607
§ 28393800 $ 6,592,953 34,986,753

The notes to financial statements are

an integral part of this statement,
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
EXPE FOR SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary government;
Governmental activities:

General govemment $ 5,458,818  § 2,200,616 § 54,468 % 29,158
Public safcty 8,701,873 776,570 389,396 96,601
Judicial 796,823 43,408
Health and Welfare 182,220
Culture and recreation 290,068 1,000 55,239 91,356
Community support 487,587 125,152
Highways and streets 2,220,225

Total Governmental Activities 18,137,614 2,978,186 624,255 260,523

Business lype activities:

Water 483,980 567,263
Sewer 257,348 239,936

Total Business-Type Activities 741,328 807,199 0 0
Total Primary Government $ 18878942 % 3,785,385  § 624,255 § 260,523

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary government; =
Govermnmental activities:
General government $  (3,174,576) $  (3,174,576)
Public safety (7,439,306) (7,439,306)
Judicial (753,415) (753,415)
Health and Welfare (182,220) (182,220)
Culture and recreation (142,473) (142,473)
Community support (362,435) (362,435)
Highways and streets (2,220,225) (2,220,225)
Total Governmental Activities (14,274,650) (14,274,650)
Business type activities:

Water $ 83,283 83,283
Sewer (17,412) (17,412)

Total Business-Type Activities 0 65,871 65,871
Total Primary Government (14,274,650) 65,871 (14,208,779)

General revenues:

Property Taxes 11,340,108 11,340,108

Various State Collected Pass-Through Revenues 3,031,366 3,031,366

Interest Earnings 50,293 6,523 56,816

Bond Proceeds 3,016,809 3,016,809
Miscellaneous Revenue 929,951 12,000 941,951

Capital Contributions and Grants 0 84,470 84,470

Total General Revenues 18,368,527 102,993 18,471,520

Other Adjustments:

Prior period adjustment (111,229) 0 (111,229)

Change in Net Assets 3,982,648 168,864 4,151,512

Net Assets - beginning 24,411,152 6,424,089 30,835,241
Net Assets - ending $ 28393800 § 6,592,953 $ 34,986,753

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivable (net allowance)
Taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND NCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Note payable

Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Unassigned reported in:

General fund
Capital projects funds
Special revenue funds

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Page 1 of 2

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014
ROAD FIRE TRI-PAYBACK USDA
GENERAL FUND FUND FUND BOND FUND
$ 9421484 § 1325062 $ (93,156 $ 1,781,685 $ 2,908,833
274,294 95,974 223712
105,898 27,114
289,340
$ 10,091,016 $ 1,421,036 $ 157,670 $ 1,781,685 $ 2,908,833
$ 209,099 3 31,257 $ 126,776
388,120 48,485 164,573
86,699 22,199
246,050
929,968 79,742 313,548 b) 0 $ 0
9,161,048
1,341,294 (155,878) 1,781,685 2,908,833
9,161,048 1,341,294 (155,878) 1,781,685 2,908,833
3 10,091,016 § 1,421,036 $ 157,670 $ 1,781,685 $ 2,908,833

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014
OTHER TOTAL
VCTC GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash $ 504,005 $ 6590555  $ 22438568
Accounts receivable (net allowance) 71,438 665,418
Taxes receivable 15,236 148,248
Prepaid expenses 143,205 432,545
Inventory 7,961 7,961
Total Assets $ 655,271 $ 6,677,229 $ 23,692,740
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 22,6872 $ 147,279 $ 537,283
Accrued expenses 17,070 518,248
Deferred revenue 10,629 12,472 131,999
Note payable 246,050
Total Liabilities 50,571 159,751 1,533,580
FUND BALANCES
Unassigned reported in;
General fund 9,161,048
Capital projects funds ‘' 3,428,442 3,428,442
Special revenue funds 604,700 3,089,036 9,569,670
Total Fund Balances 604,700 6,517,478 22,159,160
Total Liabilitics and Fund Balances $ 655,271 $ 6,677,229 $ 23,692,740

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2014

Total Fund Balance - government funds - page 13 $ 22,159,160

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets net of related depreciationare not
reported in the Governmental Funds financial

statements because they are not current financial
resources, but they are reported in the statement

of net assets 50,844,884

Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the

current period and therefore are not reported in

the funds. (44.610.244)
Total Net Assets - governmental activities - page 9 28.393,800

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Page | of 2

ROAD FIRE TRI-PAYBACK USDA
GENERAL FUND FUND FUND BOND FUND
REVENUES
Taxes $ 7,890,487 $§ 2,014,510 $ 1,224
Licenses and permits 1,076,548 36,762
Intergovernmental 1,428,514 $ 475,131 764,437
Charges for services 708,916 109,842 553,376
Fines and forfeitures 2,934
Miscellancous 209,945 141,454 11,843 $ 388
Total Revenues 11,317,344 726,427 3,380,928 1,224 388
EXPENDITURES
Current: c
General government 3,863,811 897,433
Public safety 3,564,230 3,333,238 81,755
Judicial 795,208
Hecalth and welfare 30,100
Culwre and recreation 101,864
Community service 487,587
Highways and streets 677,328
Intergovernmental
Debt Service 16,050 153,549
Total Expenditures 3,858,850 830,877 3,333,238 897,433 81,755
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 2,458,494 (104,450) 47,690 (896,209) {81,367)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCE ES
Transfers in 112,678 279,690 12,000 568,000
Transfers out (785,820) (134,000)
Short term loan (payments) proceeds
Bond proceeds 2,990,200
Bond interest
Prior period adjustment (57,446) (111,229)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (730,588) 279,690 (233,229) 568,000 2,990,200
Net change in fund balance 1,727,906 175,240 (185,539) (328,209) 2,908,833
Fund balance - beginning 7,433,142 1,166,054 29,661 2,109,894 0
Fund balance - ending $ 9,161,048 $ 1,341,294 ¥ (155.878) $ 1,781,635 $ 2,508,833

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
OTHER TOTAL
VCTC GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUES
Taxes 3 1,433,887 $ 11,340,108
Licenses and permits $ 48,645 76,590 1,238,545
Intergovernmental 389,177 858,885 3,916,144
Charges for services 295,790 71,11 1,739,641
Fines and forfeitures 78,296 81,230
Miscellaneous 33,924 501,460 899,014
Total Revenues 767,536 3,020,835 19,214,682
Current:
General government 777,860 707,455 6,246,559
Public safety 1,953,133 8,932,356
Judicial 6,902 802,110
Health and welfare 152,120 182,220
Culture and recreation 3,717 105,581
Communpily service 487,587
Highways and streets 677,328
[ntergovemmental 66,266 66,266
Debt Service 178,395 347,994
Total Expenditures 777,860 3,067,988 17,848,001
(10,324) (47,153) 1,366,681
Excess (deficiency) of revenucs over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 148,820 1,121,188
Transfers out (201,368) (1,121,188}
Short term loan (payments) proceeds
Bond proceeds 26,609 3,016,809
Bond interest
Prior period adjustment 57,446 (111,229)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 31,507 2,905,580
Nct change in fund balance (10,324) (15,646) 4,272,261
Fund balance - beginning 615,024 6,533,124 17,886,899
Fund balance - ending $ 604,700 $ 6,517,478 $ 22,159,160

‘The notes 1o financial statements arc
an integral part of (his statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Net change in fund balances - govenmental funds, page 16 $ 4,272,261

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Capital outlays to purchase capital assets are reported in
governmental funds as expenditures, However, those costs
are shown in the statement of net assets and allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciationexpense in the
statement of activities. This is the amount by which
depreciation exceeded net capital outlays. (1,173,657)

Net long-term reccipts and payments reported in

governmental funds as expenditures 807,433

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require

the use of current financial resources and therefore, are not

reported as expenditures in governmental fands 13,389
Change in net assets of governmental activities, page 11 § 3.982.648

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Taxes;
Property 7,651,000 $ 7,651,000 $ 7,869,592 218,592
Youth Services 16,000 16,000 20,895 4,895
Total Taxes 7,667,000 7,667,000 7,850,487 223,487
Licenses and permits:
Merchandise licenses 90,000 50,000 177,327 87,327
Utility licenscs 175,000 175,000 174,610 (390)
Franchise tax 80,000 80,000 59,372 (20,628)
Building permits & study 175,000 175,000 665,239 490,239
Total Licenses and Permits 520,000 520,000 1,076,548 556,548
Intergovernmental:
Federal and state granis 30,450 30,450 22,614 (7,836)
Payment in lien of taxes 35,000 35,000 37,402 2402
State shared revenues:
Cigarette tax 16,144 16,144 16,107 37
Liquor tax 5,377 5317 5,253 (124)
Gaming licenses 140,000 140,000 137,621 (2,379)
Basic CCRT 308,089 308,089 409,361 101,272
Supplemental CCRT 456,574 456,574 450,567 (6,007)
Motor Vehicle Priviledge Tax 261,987 261,987 279,88 17,894
Real Property Transfer Tax 40,971 40,971 69,708 28,737
‘Total Intergovernmental 1,294,592 1,294,592 1,428,514 133,922
Charges for Services:
Clerk Fees 6,000 6,000 6,787 787
Recorder fees 30,000 30,000 31,116 1,116
Assessor fees/commissions 165,000 165,000 196,710 31,710
Building department fees 4,000 4,000 5,080 1,080
Distriot Court fees 13,000 13,000 15,380 2,380
Justice court fees 9,000 9,000 10,785 1,785
JOP Court Facility fee 6,000 6,000 5,945 (59%)
Sheriffs fees 0 0 2,572 2,572
Swimming pool admissinns/lessans 16,500 16,500 16,365 (135)
Park facilities fees 500 500 800 300
Import tonnage fees 360,000 360,000 390,938 30,938
IT Fees 31,000 31,000 24,287 (6,713)
Other fees 0 0 2,151 2,151
Total Charges for Services 641,000 641,000 708.916 67,916

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVE S (cont'd.
Fines and Forfeits:
District fine 1,000 1,000 450 (550)
Juvenile fines/assessments 2,000 2,000 1,304 (696)
Chemical analysis fees 1,500 1,500 1,180 (320)
Total Fines and Forfeits 4,500 4,500 2,934 (1,566)
Miscellaneous:
Rents 31,000 31,000 30,401 (599)
Penalties - Taxes 0 0 100,923 100,923
Penalties - Business Licenses 2,000 2,000 7,002 5,002
Interest 30,000 30,000 42,068 12,068
Other 3,000 3,000 29,551 26,551
Total Miscellancous 66,000 66,000 209,945 143,945
Total Revenues 10,193,092 10,193,092 11,317,344 1,124,252
General Government
Commissioners:
Salaries and wages 317,980 323,980 322,410 1,570
Employee benefits 186,117 176,117 179,201 (3,084)
Services and supplies 30,400 52,900 49,852 3,048
534,497 552,997 551,463 1,534
Clerk Treasurer:
Salaries and wages 168,869 170,469 170,034 435
Employee benefits 87,224 87,224 89,165 (1,941)
Services and supplics 66,300 84,300 74,990 9,310
Capital outlay 0 9,273 9,243 30
322,393 351,266 343,432 7,834
Recorder:
Salaries and wages 132,217 132,217 127,534 4,683
Employee benefits 67,178 67,178 65,867 1,311
Services and supplies 61,400 61,400 57,474 3,926
260,795 260,795 250,875 9,920
Assessor:
Salaries and wages 205,371 205,371 198,145 7,226
Employee benefits 98,819 98,819 91,575 7,244
Services and supplies 40,300 40,300 31,957 8,343
344,490 344,450 321,677 22,813
Administrative:
Salaries and wages 105,766 105,766 64,924 40,842
Employee benefits 191,552 191,552 39,308 152,244
Services and supplies 1,076,875 832,275 683,853 148,422
Capital outlay 5,000 5,000 0 5,000
1,379,193 1,134,593 788,085 346,508

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
EXPENDITURES AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
General Government (contd.)
Building and Grounds:;
Salaries and wages 125,213 125,213 122,935 2,278
Employee benefits 88,763 88,763 74,533 14,230
Services and supplics 255,700 255,700 196,770 58,930
469,676 469,676 394,238 75,438
Planning Commission:
Salaries and wages 147,023 147,023 123,703 23,320
Employee benefits 61,373 61,373 38,951 22,422
Services and supplics 29,500 29,500 23,722 5,778
237,896 237,896 186,376 51,520
Service:
Salaries and wages 138,610 139,610 134,317 5,293
Employee benefits 67,185 63,185 63,217 (32)
Services and supplics 51,350 55,350 17,182 8,168
257,145 258,145 244,716 13,429
Comptroller:
Sealaries and wages 177,291 207,864 214,646 (6,782)
Employee benefits 67,954 76,954 77912 (958)
Services and supplics 65,600 65,600 55,793 9,807
310,845 350,418 348,351 2,067
[nformation technology:
Salaries and wages 191,215 191,215 190,598 617
Employees benefits 95,677 95,677 98,402 (2,725)
Services and supplies 73,800 98,540 89,503 9,037
Capital outlay 13,500 73,436 56,095 17,341
374,192 458,868 434,598 24,270
Total General Government 4,491,122 4,419,144 3,863,811 555,333
Judicial:
District Attorney:
Salaries and wages 237,771 237,77 232,297 5,474
Employee benetits 103,340 103,340 95,974 7,366
Services and supplies 93,050 93,050 69,108 23,942
Capital outlay 6,500 6,500 6,366 134
440,661 440,661 403,745 36,916
District Court:
Services and supplies 130,900 144,900 115,967 28,933
130,900 144,900 115,967 28,933

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
EXPENDI iS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
Judicial (contd.)
Justice of the Peace:
Salaries and wages 157,959 157,959 155,738 2,221
Employee benefits 95,208 93,208 95,698 (2,490)
Services aud supplies 27,000 29,000 24,060 4,940
280,167 280,167 275,496 4,671
Total Judicial 851,728 865,728 795,208 70,520
Public Safety:
Sheriff:
Salaries and wages 1,248,663 1,339,663 1,273,937 65,726
Employee benefits 821,240 821,240 784,220 37,020
Services and supplies 314,450 261,925 234,463 27,462
Capital outlay 5,000 5,000 0 5,000
2,389,353 2,427,828 2,292,620 135,208
Community Development
Salaries and wages 238,775 251,775 253,445 (1,670)
Employee benefits 117,465 117,465 118,130 (665)
Services and supplies 238,150 39,650 36,585 3,065
594,390 408,890 408,160 730
Emergency Management:
Salarics and wages 82,770 82,770 82,356 414
Employee benefits 45212 41,212 39,585 1,627
Services and supplies 10,300 14,300 12,681 1,619
138,282 138,282 134,622 3,660
Communications
Salaries and wages 466,534 486,534 417,554 68,980
Employee bencfits 228,600 228,600 226,964 1,636
Services and supplies 67,050 83,050 78,387 4,663
Capital outlay 6,000 6,000 5,923 77
768,184 804,184 728,828 75,356
Total Public Safety 3,890,209 3,779,184 3,564,230 214,954
Health:
Home Health:
Services and supplies 75,770 73,900 30,100 43,800
Culture and Recreation:
Swimming Pools & Parks
Salaries and wages 56,279 56,279 50,311 5,968
Employee benefits 17,448 17,448 14,659 2,789
Services and supplies 54,000 64,000 36,894 27,106
127,727 137,727 101,864 35,863

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
Total Culture and Recreation 127,727 137,727 101,864 35,863
Community Service
Salarjes and wages 90,073 90,073 88,394 1,679
Employee benefits 41,821 40,821 41,933 (1,112)
Services and supplies 364,000 365,000 357,260 7,740
Total Community Support 495,894 495,894 487,587 8,307
Debt Service:
Principle 1,390 1,390 0 1,390
Interest 16,060 16,060 16,050 10
Total Debt Service 17,450 17,450 16,050 1,400
Total Expenditures 9,949,900 9,789,027 8,858,850 930,177
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over Expenditu 243,192 404,065 2,458,494 2,054,429
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 0 0 112,678 112,678
Transfers out (663,000) (907,600) (785,820) 121,780
Contingency (298,497) (214,770) 0 214,770
Prior period adjustment 0 0 (57.446) (57,446)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (961,497) (1,122,370) (730,588) 391,782
Net Change in Fund Balance (718,305) (718,305) 1,727,906 2,446,211
Fund balance - beginning 6,089,986 6,089,986 7,433,142 1,343,156
Fund balance - ending 5,371,681 3 5,371,681 $ 9,161,048 § 3,789,367

The notes to financial statements are

an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
ROADS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Intergovernmental
Gasoline tax $ 159,378 $ 159378  § 189,772 § 30,394
Supplemental CCRT 285,359 285,359 285,359 0
Charges for services
Import tonnage fees 96,000 96,000 109,842 13,842
Other revenue
Interest 4,000 4,000 6,130 2,130
Miscellancous 2,500 2,500 135,324 132,824
Total Revenue 547,237 547,237 726,427 179,190
EXPENDITURES
Highways and streets
Salaries and wages 283,561 298,561 260,558 38,003
Employee benefits 122,572 122,572 115,827 6,745
Scrvices and supplies 97,650 127,650 131,171 (3,521)
Capital outlay 500,000 396,050 169,772 226,278
Debt service '
Principle 74,286 148,136 148,571 (435)
Interest 5,404 5,504 4978 526
Total Expenditures 1,083,473 1,098,473 830,877 267,596
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (536,236) (551,236) (104,450) 446,786
OTHER FINANCING CES (USES
Transfers in 279.690 294,690 279.690 (15,000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures (256,546) (256,546) 175,240 431,786
Fund balance - beginning 722,948 722,948 1,166,054 443,106
Fund balance « ending § 466,402 $ 466,402 § 1,341,294 § 874,892

The notes to financial stafements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FIRE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARJANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Taxes
Property 3 1,959,000 3 1,959,000 § 2014510 % 55,510
Intergovemmental revenues
Supplementa] CCRT 759,956 759,956 764,437 4,481
Licenscs and permits
Ambulance program & license fees 19,500 19,500 36,762 17.262
Charges for services
Fire/ambulance fees 240,000 240,000 247,095 7,095
Inspection fees 64,000 64,000 119,901 55,901
Fire billing 287,600 287,600 181,655 (105,945)
Special events 9,000 9,000 4,725 (4,275)
Other revenue
Miscellaneous - other 0 0 11,843 11,843
Total Revenues 3,339,056 3,339,056 3,380,928 41,872
EXPENDITURES
Public Safety
Salaries and wages 1,681,593 1,877,593 1,851,057 26,536
Employee benefits 1,121,871 1,117,936 1,163,025 (45,089)
Services and supplies 288,132 288,132 299,725 (11,593)
Capital outlay 15,250 15,250 19,431 (4,181)
Total Expenditures 3,106,846 3,298,911 3,333,238 (34,327)
Excess (deficiency) of revenuc over expenditures 232,210 40,145 47,690 7,545
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer In 0 196,000 12,000 (184,000)
Transfer Out (134,000} (134,000) (134,000} 0
Prior period adjustment 0 0 (111,229) (111,229)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other
financing sources (uses) over expenditures 98,210 102,145 (185,539) (287,684)
Fund balance - beginning o 55,335 55,335 29,661 (25,674)
Fund balance - ending $ 153,545 $ 157,480 § (155,878) § (313,358)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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Taxes
Property

EXPENDITURES
General govemment
Tri Payback

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TRI PAYBACK FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing

sources (uses) over expenditure
Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

VARIANCE WITH

ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET

FINAL BUDGETED  ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

$ 0 $ 1224 $ 1,224
568,000 897,433 (329,433)
(568,000) (896,209) (328,209)

568,000 568,000 0
0 (328,209) (328,209)

1,811,378 2,109,894 298,516
$ 1811378 § 1,781,685 § (29,693)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
USDA BOND FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL FINAL BUDGET
FINALBUDGETED  BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Miscellaneous
Interest income S 0 $ 0 3 388 § 388
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Capital outlay 0 1,000,000 81,755 918,245
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures 0 (1,000,000) (81,367) 918,633
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds 0 2,990,200 2,990,200 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing
sources (uses) over expenditure 0 1,990,200 2,908,833 918,633
Fund balance - beginning 0 0 0 0
Fund balance - ending $ 0 1990200 § 2,908,833 § 918,633

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA CITY TOURISM COMMISSION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Licenses and permits
Licenses - pennits $ 43,000 § 48,645 $ 5,645
Intergovernmental
State licenses 3,000 4,229 1,229
Room tax 150,000 165,425 15,425
Tourism tax 150,000 219,523 69,523
Charges for services
Special events 264,890 280,876 15,986
CAP service charge (net) 10,000 14,914 4,914
Miscellaneous
Interest 1,200 443 (757)
Contributions 5,000 5,248 248
Miscellaneous 14,162 28,233 14,071
Total Revenues 641,252 767,536 126,284
EXPENDITURES
General government
Salaries and wages 167,321 171,778 (4,457)
Benefits 77,428 75,642 1,786
Services and supplies 468,148 500,042 (31,894)
Capital outlay 25,000 30,398 (5,398)
Total Expenditures 737,897 777,860 (39,963)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (96,645) (10,324) 86,321
Fund balance - beginning 1,085,614 615,024 (470,590)
Fund balance - ending $ 988,969 § 604,700 § (384,269)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,
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ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash
Accounts receivable (net allowance)

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

IIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Refundable deposits
Bonds payable - current portion
Accrued expenses

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
Bonds payable - net of current portion

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt
Unassigned

Total Net Assets

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2014

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER VIRGINIA

SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTAL
3 1,197,756  § 162,320 3§ 1,360,076
51,501 20,262 71,763
1,249,257 182,582 1,431,839
5,036,183 706,865 5,743,048
5 6,285,440 § 880,447 % 7,174,887
$ 1,797 $ 5953 8§ 17,750
14,166 14,166
14,098 14,098
9,071 6,883 15,954
49,132 12,836 61,968
519,966 519,966
4,502,119 706,865 5,208,984
1,214,223 169,746 1,383,969
$ 5716342  § 876,611 § 6,592,953

The notes to financial statements are

an integral part of this statcment,

28



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services ) 567,263 § 239,936 § 807,199
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 119,693 66,517 186,210
Benefits 52,011 29,338 81,349
Services and supplies 182,390 111,052 293,442
Depreciation 104,204 47,982 152,186
Total Operating Expense 458,298 254,889 713,187
Operating Income (Loss) 108,965 (14,953) 94,012
PE REVENUES (E SES

Rent and miscellaneous 12,000 12,000
Interest income 5,686 837 6,523
Interest expense (25,682) (2,459) (28,141)
Grants and capital contributions 22,143 62,327 84,470
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 14,147 60,705 74,852
Change in net assets 123,112 45,752 168,864

Net ussets - beginning 5,593,230 830,859 6,424,089

Net assets - ending $ 5,716342  § 876,611 § 6,592,953

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows

Sales of water/sewer fees
Cash Outflows

Salaries and wages

Salary costs

Services and supplies

Prepaid Expenses

Not Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
Rent
Customer deposits
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAIL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES.
Cash Inflows
Capital contributions
Cash Qutflows
Capital outlay and grant match
Debt service
Interest expense

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
Interest earnings
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash - beginning

Cash - ending

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTALS

$ 564,020 § 239497 § 803,517
(118,454) (66,968) (185,422)
(51,748) (29,338) (81,086)
(190,092) (74,879) (264,971)

2,400 0 2,400

206,126 68,312 274,438

12,000 0 12,000

930 0 930

12,930 0 12,930

22,143 1,500 23,643
(45,866) (34,972) (80,838)
(28,491) (52,101) (80,592)
(38,377) (2,459) (40,836)
(90,591) (88,032) (178,623)

5,686 836 6,522

134,151 (18,884) 115,267
1,063,605 181,204 1,244,809

$ 1,097,756 § 162320 §  1360,076

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2014
AGENCY
FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and cash cquivalents $ 1,042,451
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments $ 1,042,451
Net Assets 3 0

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. REPORTING ENTITY

Storey County, Nevada, a local government created under the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes 243.110
is governed by an clected three-member board of commissioners. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, these financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the
government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate
entities, are in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from these units are combined with

data of the primary government.

Blended Component Units - The Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District is under the direct oversight of
the Storey County Board of Commissioners. The rates for users charges and bond issuance authorizations are
approved by the County Commissioners, and the legal liability for the Virginia Divide Sewer District’s debt
remains with Storey County. The District is reported as anenterprise fund.

The governing body for the towns of Virginia City and Gold Hill is the board of County Commissioners of
Storey County. The county personnel provide essentially all services for both Virginia City and Gold Hill.
These towns arc reported as special revenue funds.

The Board of County Commissioners directly appoints the governing board of the Virginia City Tourism
Commission (VCTC). The county personnel provides essentially all services, accounting, budgeting and other
record keeping for the commission. The VCTC has elected to be reported as a ngjor fund (Special Revenue)

in the County financial statements.

Excludedfrom the reporting entity - Storey County Schools, Storey County Senior Center, and Canyon General
Improvement District,

These potential component units have separate elected or appointed boards and provide services to residents,
generally within the geographic boundaries of the government. These potential component units are excluded
from the reporting entity because the government does not have the ability to exercise influence over their daily
operations, approve budgets, or provide funding.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Government-Wide Financial Statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net
assets) reportinformation on all of the nonfiduciaryactivities of the primary government and its component units,
For the most part the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements, Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, arc reported, separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degrees to which the direct expenses of a given function or s¢gment
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function
or segment, Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other jtems not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general

revernies.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTPRESENTATION

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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Govemmental fand financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Gross receipts and sales taxes are considered “measurable” when in the hands of intermediary
collecting agents or governments, Revenues are considered available when they are collectiblewithin the current
period or soon enough thereafer to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers
revenues to be availableifthey are collected within 60 days after the end of the current fiscal period. Anticipated
refunds of taxes are recorded as liabilitiesand reductions of revenue when they are measurable and the payment
seems certain. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting,
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the County.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund,

The Fire Special Revenue Fund accounts for money received primarily from intergovernmental sources.
Expenditures are for County fire protection including the purchase of machinery and equipment to provide
such services.

The Tri Payback Fund accounts for monies which shall be required to be paid back to the developers of the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center as detailed inNote XVIL

The Road Special Revenue Fund accounts for money received primarily from gasoline taxes and other
intergovernmental sources. Expenditures are for the construction and maintenance of County roads and
bridges, and other road related infrastructure and the purchase of machinery and equipment required to do
such work. (Elected to be reported as major fund.)

The USDA Bond Special Revenue Fund accounts for money received from a USDA Bond to improve water
and waste disposal in Storey County.

The Virginia City Tourism Commission Special Revenue Fund promotes tourism for Storey County and
Virginia City through advertising and promotion of special events and attractions located within the County.
(Elected to be reported as a major fund)

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Water System Fund accounts for the activities of the Virginia City/Gold Hill water distribution system.

The Virginia Divide Sewer System Fund accounts for the operations of the sewage treatment plant, pumping
stations and collection systems.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the Government-Wide Financial
Statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the governments water and sewer functions.
Eliminations of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.

Amounts reported as Program Revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as General Revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and cxpenses generally result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary funds’ principal ongoing operations. Revenue and expense not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

1. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, short term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, and the State Treasurer’s
investment pool. Investments are reported at fair value.

2. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other fuunds”.

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. No allowance is recorded for property
tax receivables. Property taxes are levied as of July 1 on property values assessed on the same date. The tax
levy may be paid in four installments by the third Monday in August, and the first Monday in October, January
and March. There is a ten day grace period allowed for each installment. Penalties and interest are assessed on

all delinquent collections. Liens are filed on the property at one year’s delinquency.
3. INVENTORIES AND PREPAID ITEMS

No inventories are maintained by the government for either operating or office supplies. These items are
recorded as expenditures when purchased, rather than when consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items.

4. RESTRICTED ASSETS
The County has no restricted assets as June 30, 2014.

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capitalassets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (i.e.,roads, bridges, sidewalks, storm
drains, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
Government-Wide Financial Statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $3000 (amount not rounded) and an cstimated nseful life in excess of two years.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estinnted fair market value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets
lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in proprietary funds as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of proprietary fund fixed assets i reflected in the
capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated inthe proprietary funds using the straight line method over the
following useful lives:

ASSETS YEARS
Public and System Infrastructure 20-100
Vehicles 5-10
Office Equipment 5-10
Equipment 10-20
Buildings 75-100
Building Iinprovements 35-50
Computer Equipment 5
Fumiture and Fixtures 7-10
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6. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. Vested or accumulated vacation pay that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the fund that will pay it. Amounts of
vested or accumulated vacation pay that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources are reported as long term debt. No expenditure is reported for these amounts. No liabilityis recorded
for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. However aliabilityis recognized for that portion
of accumulated sick leave benefits that is required to be paid upon termination. All employees witha minimum
accrued sick leave of 360 hours to a maximum of 960 hours (except for fire department - no maximum) shall be
paid at retirement or termination of service, other than involuntary termination as follows:

Other Employees Fire Department
Years of Continuous Service Rate of Pay Rate of Pay
S years but less than 10 years 12.5¢ on the Dollar 20.0¢ on the Dollar
10 years but Iess than 15 years  25.0¢ on the Dollar
10 years but less than 20 years 35.0¢ on the Dollar
15 years but less than 20 years  40.0¢ on the Dollar
20 years or more 50.0¢ on the Dollar 50.0¢ on the Dollar

The maximum sick leave paid upon termination shall be $5,000 for all employees exceptlaw enforcement and
firemen.

Law Enforcement personnel:

Payment for Sick Leave at Termination: Upon an Employee’s end of service through PERS retirement or
termination from service, other than involuntary termination, with a total accrued hours of three hundred sixty
(360) or more, the Employee shall be paid for unused Sick Leave at the following rate:

a. 10to 15 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 20% of their base rate of pay for each hours, not to exceed
$2,500 cash or $3,125 toward the purchase of PERS.

b. 15 to 20 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 40% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not to exceed
$3,500 cash or $4,375 toward the purchase of PERS.

c. More than 20 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 60% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not to
exceed $5,000 cash or $6,250 toward the purchase of PERS.

Fireman; 1,333 hrs. maximum for line employees
952 hrs. maximum for 8 hr, employees

7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

The County currently has no long term bonds payable in the governmental funds. The revenue bonds
reported in the proprietary fand-types incurred no bond premiums or discounts and there{ore have no deferred

charges or amortization

The County has a long-term obligation relating to the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center (TRI) - see note XVII
for details.

8. FUND EQUITY

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report designations of fund balances for amounts which
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. The County has reserved § 0 of the general
fund balance at July 1, 2014,
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II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

III.

A. The governmental fund balance sheetincludes a reconciliationbetween find balance - total governmental funds

and net assets - governmental activitiesas reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. One element
of that reconciliationexplains that‘“long term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. The details of this $6,234,640 difference are as
follows: Capital assets net of related depreciation are not reported in the Governmental Funds financial
statements because they are not current financial resources, but they are reported in the statement of net assets -
$50,844,884. Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported

in the funds, (§44,610,244).

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reposted as
depreciationexpense, The details of this $(289,613) difference are as follows: Capital outlays to purchase capital
assets are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, those costs are shown in the statement of
net assets and allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciationexpense in the statement of activities.
This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded net capital outlays in the current period - $(1,173,657). Net
long-term receipts and payments reported in governmental funds as expenditures $897,433. Some revenues and
expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds - $(13,389).

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all
governmental funds.

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary date reflected in the financial statements:

I. Prior to April 15, the County budget officer submits to the County Commissioners the tentative operating
budgets (4) for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budgets include proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. The tentative budgets are filed with the State Department of Taxation by April 15,
3, Apublic hearing is conducted at the County Court House to obtain taxpayers comments. (3" Monday in May)

4. The final budgets are adopted and filed with the State Department of Taxation. Final budgets must be
certified by a majority of all members of the governing body. The final budgets must be adopted on or before

June 1.

5. Budget amounts may be transferred within funds if the governing body is advised and the action is recorded
in the official minutes of the next meeting. Revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be
approved by the County Commissioners. Budget revisions must also be filed with the State Department of

Taxation.

6. Budgets for the General, Special Revenues, Debt Service, Proprietary, and Capital Projects Funds are adopted
on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. (GAAP)

7. Budget augmentations were prepared for the general, various special revenue funds and enterprise funds
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

8. All budget appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.
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Iv.

In accordance with State statute, actual expenditures may not exceed budgetary appropriations of the various
govemmental programs of the General Fund or total appropriations of the Special Revenue and Capital Projects

Funds, except as expressly authorized by law.

EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS
For the year ended June 30, 2014, expenditures exceeded appropriations as follows:

Expenditures Appropriations

Fire Special Revenue Fund $ 3,333,238 $ 3,302,846
Mutual Aid Special Revenue Fund 308,961 177,000
Sheriff Jail Special Revenue Fund 578,353 563,533
Tri Payback Fund 897,433 568,000
Equipment Acquisition Special

Revenue Fund 167,295 159,535

DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The Jail Special Revenue Fund, Fire Special Revenue Fund and Mutual Aid Special Revenue Fund incurred a
deficit fund equity at June 30, 2014. 71% of the deficit in the Fire Special Revenue Fund was caused by a write

off of uncollectible ambulance fees.

COMPLIANCE - NRS 354.624

Storey County has two enterprise funds: the Water System Enterprise Fund and the Virginia-Divide Sewer
Improvement District Enterprise Fund. Storey County also maintains agency funds as follows: State of Nevada
Fund Storey County School District Fund, Storey County School District Debt Service Fund and the Virginia
City Convention and Tourism Authority Fund. The County maintains no internal service funds, sclf insurance
funds or funds whose balance is required by law to be used for a specific purposc other than the payment of
compensation to a bargaining unit, as defined in NRS 288.028 or carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year

in any designated amount,

All enterprise and agency funds maintained by Storey County:

a) are being used in accordance with NRS 354.624

b) are being administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures

c) all reserves in the funds are reasonable and necessary to carry out the pusposes of the funds

d) reflect the sources of revenues available for the fand during the fiscal year - including transfers from other
funds

e) are following the statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to the funds

f) reflect the balance and retained earning of the funds

Storey County has $0 reserved in all funds.

CASH

At year end, the catrying amount of the bank balances was $24,841,095. Of the bank balances $500,000 was
covered by federal depositary insurance. Additionally $8,183,034 cash was on deposit with the Nevada State
Treasurer. The fair value of all cash and investments cqualed 100% of book value.

Credit risk classification of the County’s cash is as follows:

1. Insured by Federal Deposit Insurance $ 500,000
2. Collateralized with securities held by

The Nevada State Treasurer 8,183,034

3. Uncollateralized with the financial institution 16,154,582

4. Uncollateralized - cash on hand 3479

$24.841,095

Cash held by the County is allocated to the various funds as follows:

Major governmental funds $15,848,013

Non-major govemnmental funds 6,590,555

Business-type funds 1,360,076

23,798,644

Fiduciary funds 1,042,451

Total 524541095
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; V.  RECEIVABLES

: Receivables as of year end for the governments individual major funds and non-major funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accouwnts, are as follows:

Non-Major Proprietary

General Roads Fire VYCTC Funds Funds Total
Receivables:
Taxes $ 105898 $ 27114 § 15236 $148,248
Accounts 274,294 $95974 255,592 $ Q 71,438 $ 72550 769.848
Gross Receivables 380,192 95,974 282,706 0 86,674 72,550 918,096

Less: Allowance for
uncollectibles ] 0 (31,880) 0 0 (7187) (32.667)

Total Net Receivables § 380,192 $95.974 $250,826 $ 0 $_86,674 $ 71,763 $ 885429

The delinquent taxes receivable account represents the past three years of uncollected tax levies. No allowance
for uncollectibles has been recorded by the County. Taxes received after 60 days of the year end are recorded
as deferred revenue.

Accounts receivable include intergovernmental receivables. All accounts receivable, with the exception of the
enterprise fund, were collected within a 60 day period, therefore no allowance for uncollectibles was recorded
in those funds.

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current fiscal year the various
components of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Delinquent property taxes receivable:

General fund $ 86,699
Fire fond 22,199
VCTC 10,629
Non-major funds 12472
Total $ 131,999

VI CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Primary Govermnent
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 387,759 § 72,250 $ 460,009
Antique Fumiture 75,000 75,000
Construction in progress 2229317 15,060 $ 0 2244377
Tota) Capital assets not being depreciated 2,692,076 87,310 0 2779386
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 9,545,894 189,750 9,735,644
Improveinents other than buildings 1,166,313 109,712 1,276,025
Machineiy and equipment 6,850,249 446,607 7,336,856
Infrastiucture 43.256,707 26,028 0 43.282,735
Total capital assets being depreciated 60,859,163 772,091 0 61,631,260
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 2,276,938 144,778 2,421,716
Improvements other than buildings 236,907 39,230 276,137
Machinery and equipment 5,384,832 342,172 5,727,004
Infrastructure 3,602,243 1,538,662 5.140,905
Total accumulated depreciation 11,500,920 2,064,842 0 13,565,762

Govemnmental activities capital assefs - net $52,050319  §$(1,205.435) $ 0 §50844,884

Business type activities:
Capital assets being depreciated

Water and sewer systemn $7,689334 § 89,826 $7,779,160
Machinery and equipinent 590,723 16,866 607,589
Total Capital assets being depreciated 8,280,057 106,692 § 0 _8386749
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Less accumulated depreciation for

Water and scwer systems 2,050,379 104,204 2,154,583
Machinery and equiproent 441,137 47.982 489,119
Total accumulated depreciation 2,491,516 152,186 [t} 2,643,702

Business type activities capital assels - net $5.788,541 $ (45494) $ 0 $5743,047

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General govemment $ 234,188
Public safety 182,617
Highways and streets, including depreciation
of general infrastructure assets 1,626,885
Culture and recreation 21,152
Total depreciation expense -
Governmental activities 3 2!064!842
Business type activities:
Water $ 104,204
Sewer 47.982
Total depreciation expense -
business type activities $§ 152186

INTERFUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES

There were no interfund balances as of June 30, 2014,

Interfund transfers:

Transfer From Transfer to Amount

General Fund Road Fund $§ 200,000
General Fund Tri Payback 407,000
General Fund Fire Fund 12,000
General Fund Capital Projects 118,420
General Fund Jail F'und 56,000
Equipment Acquisition Road Fund 79,690
Firc Fund Equipment Acquisition 30,000
Fire Fund Tri Payback 104,000
Fire District Tri Payback 27.000
Equipment Acquisition Tri Payback 12,000
Town of Gold Hill General Fund 11,660
Town of Virginia City General Fund 101,018

1,158,788

VIII. CAPITAL LEASES

IX.

All Capital Leases were completely paid prior to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

MEDIUM TERM AND LONG TERM DEBT

Special Assessment Bonds - The County has no special assessment bonds outstanding at June 30, 2014.
Contracts Payable - The County has no contracts payable at June 30, 2014.

Medium Term Loan - On December 21, 2008, Storey County entered into a medium term bond with Bank of

America for $520,000 bearing interest at a rate of 4.85% per annum. Repayment terms are interest only payable
on June 21, with principal and interest payable on December 21 annually. This note was paid in full during the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

Principal Interest Total
Amount paid $ 148,551 $4,978 $ 153,529

On June 26, 2013, Storey County entered into a medium term loan for $250,000 with the Virginia City Highlands
Property Owners Association for the purchase of a 1.32 acre parcel of land legally described as Lot 2 Block E
of the Virginia City Highlands Unit 1 Subdivision Map, bearing interest at a rate of .095% per annum, payable
$50,000 at signing and $50,000 annually for 4 years.
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BALANCE BALANCE

6/30/13 Additions Retired 6/30/14
§ 0 $250,000 $50.000 $200.000

Revenue Bonds - The County issued bonds, where the County pledges income derived from the acquired or
constructed assets to pay debt service. Revenues bonds outstanding at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

$714,000 water revenue bonds with semi-annual installments of interest and annual payments of principal
totaling $38,801 per year through January 1, 2037, used for improvements to the Virginia City water system.

BALANCE BALANCE
6/30/13 RETIRED 6/30/14
$547.555 § 13491 § 534,064

$294,000 water revenue bonds due in annual installments of $10,000 to $15,000 through January 1, 2014, used
for improvements to the Virginia City Water System,

BALANCE BALANCE
6/30/13 RETIRED 6/30/14
§_15.000 $_15000 §_-0-

$138,000 sewer revenue bonds due at $673 per month including principal and interest through June 1,2021 and
a final payment of approximately $260 used for improvements to the Virginia-Divide Sewer System. This bond
was paid off early during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

BALANCE BALANCE
6/30/13 RETIRED _ 630114
$ 52102 $ 52,102 $_ -0

$3,000,200 sewer revenue bonds due November 30, 2015 at 1.56% interest with interest due on December 1, 2014 and Junc 1, 2015;
maturity date : November 30, 2015,

BALANCE BALANCE
6/30/13 ADDITIONS  RETIRED 6/30/14

s -0 $ 3,000,200 $ -0- $3,000,200

$890,000 Virginia City Rail Bond - Scries 2010A due in annual installments of $41,000 to $73,000 through December 1, 2027.

BALANCE BALANCE
06/30/13 RETIRED 6/30/14
§ 816,000 $ 39,000 $ 777000
$859,000 Virginia City Rail Bond - Series 2010B due in annval instalhmonts of $38,000 to $73,000 through December 1,2027.
BALANCE BALANCE
06/30/13 RETIRED 6/30/14
§ 792,000 $ 37,000 § 755,000
Revenue bond debt serviee requirements to maturity including interest are as follows:
YEAR ENDING
JUNE 30, ANNUAL TOTAL
2014 10 2015 $3,262,621 $3,262,621
2016 to 2021 205,211 to 213,761 1,269,561
2022 to 2028 189,546 t0 203,201 1,376,342
2029 10 2037 38,801 349,209

%251.753

Changes In Long-Tenmn Liabilities - During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in
the general long term debt group:

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1,2013 ADDITIONS REDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2014
Compensated absences $ 150,186 $ 13,389 s -0- § 163,575
Tri-Construction
repayment 43,612,105 -0- 897,433 42,714,672
§ 43!762!291 S 13,389 § 897!433 s 42!878!250

40



X. SEGMENT INFORMATION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS oo

The County issued revenue bonds to finance its water department and sewage treatment facilities. Summary
information for these funds is presented below:

Virginia Divide
Water Fund —SewerFund
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ASSETS
Current assets $ 1,249,257 § 182,582
Capital assets (net accumulated depreciation) 5,036,183 706,865
Total Assets 6,285,440 889,447
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 49,132 12,836
Non-current liabilities 519.966 0
Total Liabilities 569,098 12,836
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,502,119 706,865
Unrestricted 1214223 169.746
Total Net Assets 3 5!716!342 $ 876!6]1
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Operating revenue § 567,263 $ 239,936
Depreciation (104,204) (47,982)
Other operating expenses (354,094) (206,907)
Operating income (loss) 108,965 (14,953)
Nonoperating reveaues (expenses)
Rent income 12,000 0
Interest income 5,686 837
Interest expense (25,682) (2,459)
Grants and capital contributions 22,143 62,327
Change in net assets § 123,112 45,752
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Net cash provided (used) by
Operating activities $ 206,126 $ 68312
Noncapital financing activities 12,930 0
Capital and related financing activities (90,591) (88,032)
Investing activities 5,686 836
Net increase {decrease) in cash 134,151 (18,884)
Cash - beginning 1,063.605 181,204
Cash - ending $ 1,197,756 3_162320

XI.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The County participatesinboth Federal and State Grant Programs. The audits of these programs for orincluding
the year ended June 30, 2014 have not been finalized. Accordingly, the County’s compliance with applicable
grant requirements will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencics cannot be determined at this time, although the County expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County is currently a defendant in no lawsuits, with no other unasserted possible claims which are probable
of assertion

XII.  AVAILABLE BORROWING CAPACITY
The Nevada Revised Statutes section 244.805, limits the County’s general obligation debt to 10% of the
County’s assessed valuation. The2013/2014 assessed valuationis $497,587,000 which would allowthe bonding

up to $49,758,000. On June 30, 2014, the County had $200,000 outstanding general obligation bonded debt,
exclusive of revenue and school district bonds.
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XIIL.

XIV,

XV.

The town of Virginia City general obligation debt limit based on the 2013/2014 assessed valuation was
$31,558,000 (NRS 269.425). The town of Virginia City has at June 30, 2014 no general obligation bonds

outstanding.

The town of Gold Hill general obligation debt limit based on the 2013/2014 assessed valuation was §9,525,000
(NRS 269.425). The town of Gold Hill has at June 30, 2014, no general obligation bonds outstanding.

PROPERTY TAXES
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien as of July 1. The tax is levied for the fiscal year beginning July

1*after the Nevada Tax Commission has certified the combined tax rate for the county on May 25™,

Taxes on the property are due on the third Monday in July. Taxes may be paid in quarterly installments, due on
the third Monday of July and the first Monday in October, January and March. Penalties are added if the
installments are not made within ten (10) days of the due date.

PENSION PROGRAM - NEVADA STATE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The County participatesin the statewide government retirement system; a multiple-employer, cost sharing public
employees pension plan which covers substantially all of the County’s full time employees. The County has no
liability for unfunded obligations of the Nevada State Public Employees Retirement System,

PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Nevada Revised Statutes establish and amend benefit provisions to be administered
by the Retirement Board. The Public Employees Retirement Board of the State of Nevada issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for PERS.
That report may be obtained from PERS, 693 West Nye Lane, Carson City, Nevada 89703

The County pays all contributions for all employees covered under the plan. PERS basic funding policy provides
for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a percentage of salary throughout an employees working
lifetime, in order to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Although PERS receives an actuarial
valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates as required to fund PERS on an actuarial reserve
basis, both for funding purposes and GASB disclosure purposes, contributions actually made are in accordance
with the required rates established by the Nevada State Legislature.

The payroll for employees covered by the system for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $6,040,606. The
County’s total payroll was $7,225,154. Storey County’s contribution to the plan for the year ended June 30,
2014 was $1,939,990. All costs to the County were paid or accrued at June 30, 2014 The County’s contribution
represented less than 1% of total contributions to the retirement system.

Currently 113 employees are covered under the retirement plan out of a total of 141 employees. Eligibility
requirements are 40 hours per bi-weekly payroll period, no minimum wage is required for participation, nor is
there any length of service requirement for participation. Contributions arc made at a rate of 25.75% (402%

for police and firemen) of annual compensation.
SOLID WASTE LANDFILL - LOCKWOOD

In 1992 Refuse, Inc. received an amended special use permit from Storey County for the operation of a solid
waste landfill, conditioned on meeting all of the requirements of federal landfill regulations (Subtitle D, 40CFR
Parts 257 and 258). Under the terms of the agreement Refuse, Inc. is responsible for all closure and post closure
costs. Estimated costs for closure are $3,138,388 and the cost for post closure maintenance is $12,865,241 for
a total of $16,003,629. There are currently no corrective action cost nor other environmental obligations.
Refuse, Inc. is in complete compliance with the Financial Assurance Requirements of 40 CFR, part 258, Subpart
G, as well as Nevada Administrative Code 444.685 - 444.6859. The closure and post closure costs are insured

through Liberty Mutual Insurance Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Storey County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of

assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employee and natural disasters. Storey County has joined together

with other counties in the State to form Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool, a public entity risk pool

currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for 41 govemmental entities. The
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county pays an annual premium to PENCO for its general insurance coverage. The Agreement for
Formation of the NPAIP program provides that NPAIP will be selfsustaining through member premiums
and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of $100,000 for Property and Crime

and $150,000 Casualty for each insured event.

The County continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks or loss, including workers’
compensation and employee health and accident insurance. Settled clains resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years,

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER (TRI)

On February 2, 2000, Storey County Nevada, entered into a development agreement with Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center LLC along with DP Operating Partnership, LP for the purposes of completing structures,
including grading, infrastructure, and all public facilities related to the property owned by TRI which
consists of approximately 102,000 acres, of which approximately 9,000 acres is zoned for industrial usage
within Storey County. The development agreement represents the commitment between Storey County and
TRI to fund the capital infrastructure costs and local community services required by the project.

According to the agreements, TRI is responsible for the construction of the project public infrastructure,
which shall be dedicated to and maintained by Storey County. Such infrastructure includes streets, sidewalks
and streetlights, flood control, drainage channels, storm drains, basins and other related facilities; and County
building complexes including fire stations, police stations, public works maintenance yards and
administrative offices. The County is not responsible for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the
project private infrastructure such as community water and sewer facilities, railroad trackand related
facilities, landscaping of common areas, or private trails and parks and other property not dedicated to the
County. The County is responsible for separately recording certain revenue and expenses directly
attributable to the TRI project, approving reimbursable costs, and determining the net annual revenue

reimbursement to TRI,

The agreements establish a revenue threshold that represents the annual fiscal year in which the TRI net
revenue exceeds $5,000,000. The revenue threshold must be met before any reimbursements are made to
TRI for project related infrastructure costs. Once the revenue threshold is met, the County is responsible for
reimbursing TRI for approved project vouchers up to 35% of annual net revenue. Such reimbursements are
also limited to 5% of the project assessed valuation at the end of each year. The revenue threshold has been

met,

The term of this agreement shall commence upon the effective date and shall expire Fifty (50) years after the
effective date, unless extended by written amendment executed by the County and Developer. A special
revenue fund was established as of July 1, 2009, to provide payment to our TRI partners. A payment of
$897,433 was made by the TRI Payback Fund during the fiscal year.

Future allocations into the TRI Payback Fund will be a percentage of revenues directly attributed to TRI to
include property taxes, business licence, permits, inspection fees, and real property transfer taxes.

EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION FUND

The County Comptroller has determined that funds have been expended out of the Equipment Acquisition
Fund for the purpose of equipment maintenance, vehicle maintenance, supplies and rental equipment for the
Fire Special Revenue Fund. The approximate total of these expenditures was $650,000. An interfund loan
was scheduled to be established for the repayment of these funds, however, additional information may
exclude all or a portion of the repayment due to documentation that these amounts were included in the
budgets in those years the expenditures took place and said amounts were approved by the Board of County
Commissioners. The County Comptroller will investigate these findings and make adjustments as deemed

necessary according to the documentation
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XIX. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

A prior period adjustment in the amount of $111,229 was made to the Fire Special Revenue Fund during
fiscal year 2014, The adjustment was needed to write off uncollectible ambulance fees. Another prior
period adjustment was made between the General Fund and Park Tax Fund in the amount of $57,446.
Representing amounts received by the parks before the Park Tax Fund was created. Iastly a prior period
adjustment was made between the Infrastructure and Virginia City Rail Project Funds in the amount of
$25,000 to repay amounts incorrectly expended out of the Infrastructure Fund for the Virginia City Rail

Project.
XX. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Tesla Motors:
On November 20, 2014, The Nevada Economic Development Board, gave final approval for the tax breaks

and incentives to Tesla Motors for the construction and development of the mile long battery factory, located
in the Storey County, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. The project is expected to employ more than 6,000
people in the plant located 15 miles cast of Reno-Sparks.

Storey County Fire District:
On June 18, 2013, Resolution No 13-374 was signed by the Storey County Board of County Commissioners

that NRS 473 (NDF) Fire Protection District as created bythe Board of Commissioners July 12, 1974 was
dissolved and annexed into the Storey County Fire Protection District (474) effective July 1, 2014.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FIRE DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes $ 496,000 § 509,885 § 13,885
Other Revenues
Miscellancous 0 112,696 112,696
Total Revenues 496,000 622,581 126,581
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Salaries and wages 183,446 84,358 99,088
Benefits 25,621 30,541 (4,920)
Service and supplies 220,300 241,583 (21,283)
Capiltal outlay 109,842 79,352 30,490
Total expenditures 539,209 435,834 103,375
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (43,209) 186,747 229,956
OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES)
Transfer out (27,000) (27,000) 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing
sources (uses) over expenditures (70,209) 159,747 229,956
Fund balance - beginning 485,306 562,541 76,735
Fund balance - ending $ 415,597  $ 722,288 § 306,691

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Taxes
Property taxes $ 225,000 § 231,767 % 6,767
Other revenues
Interest 500 835 335
Equipmeat Sales 0 7,000 7,000
Total Revenues 225,500 239,602 14,102
EXPENDITURES
General Govemment
Capital outlay 159,535 167,295 (7,760)
Total Expenditures 159,535 167,295 (7.760)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 65,965 72,307 6,342
OTHER SOUR USES
Transfer in 30,000 30,000 0
Transfer out (91,690) (91,690) 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources (uses) over expenditures 4275 10,617 6,342
Fund balance - beginning 141,225 136,891 (4,334)
Fund balance - ending $ 145500 § 147,508 § 2,008

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INDIGENT ASSISTANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
Fines and forfeitures
Legal service fee 3 0 $ 0 $ 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 0 0 0
Fund balance - beginning 0 0 0
Fund balance - ending $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

The notes 1o financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
JUSTICE COURT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Fines
Justice court fines $ 5000 § 6,962 § 1,962
EXPENDITURES
Tudicial
Services and supplies 15,000 5,696 9,304
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (10,000) 1,266 11,266
Fund Balance - beginning 23,151 35,547 12,396
Fund Balance - ending $ 13,151  § 36813 § 23,662

The notes to financial statements arc
an integral part of this statement,
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
DRUG COURT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULR OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Fines and forfeits
Drug court fees $ 600 $ 370§ (230)
Excess of revenue over expenditures 600 370 (230)
Fund balance - beginning 8,364 8,523 159
Fund balance - ending $ 8964 $ 8,893 § (71)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes

EXPENDITURES

Welfare
Scrvices and supplies

Fund balance - beginning

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INDIGENT MEDICAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
3 46,000 § 46,489 § 489
268,500 93,834 174,666
Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver expenditures (222,500) (47,345) 175,155
270,256 550,440 280,184
$ 47,756 § 503,095 § 455,339

Fund balance - ending

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this staternent.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PARK TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20,2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Charges for services
Park fee $ 1,000 §$ 1,000 § 0
Other revenues
Interest income 0 13 13
Total Revenues 1,000 1,013 13
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Services and supplies 1,000 0 1,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 0 1,013 1,013
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Prior period adjustment 0 57,446 57,446
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing
Sources (uses) over expenditures 0 58,459 58,459
Fund balance - beginning 6,456 6,272 (184)
Fund balance - ending $ 6456 § 64,731 § 58,275

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
MUTUAL AID SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARJANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Other revenues
Fire suppression $ 177,000 $ 308502 § 131,502
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Salaries and wages 0 144,367 (144,367)
Benefits 0 19,343 (19,343)
Services and supplies 64,000 28,602 35,398
Capital outlay 113,000 116,649 (3,649)
Total Expenditures 177,000 308,961 (131,961)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 0 (459) (459)
Fund balance - beginning 0 0 0
Fund balance - ending (deficit) $ 0 3 @9 $ (459)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral pari of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SHERIFF JAIL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Taxes
Property taxes $ 336,000 $ 336,000 $ 345095 % 9,095
Licenses and permits
Various licenses 90,300 90,300 76,590 (13,710)
Fines
Court fines 70,000 70,000 64,647 (5,353)
Other revenues
Interest 500 500 5 (495)
Miscellaneous 33,500 33,500 58,169 24,669
Total Revenucs 530,300 530,300 544,506 14,206
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Salaries and wages 259,880 275,880 308,605 (32,725)
Employee benefits 195,953 195,953 194,399 1,554
Services and supplics 81,700 81,700 71,097 10,603
Capital outlay 10,000 10,000 4,252 5,748
Total Expenditures 547,533 563,533 578.353 (14,820)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (17,233) (33,233) (33,847) (614)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer in 56,000 72,000 56,000 (16,000)
Transfer out (18,000) (18,000) (18,000) 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources (uses) over expenditures 20,767 20,767 4,153 (16,614)
Fund balance - beginning 1,524 1,524 (96,211) (97,735)
Fund balance - ending § 22,291 $ 22291 § (92,058) $ (114,349)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
EMERGENCY MITIGATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Other revenues
Refunds 3 0 3 13,828 § 13,828
EXPENDITURES
Public Safelty
Services and supplies 20,000 9,219 10,781
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (20,000) 4,609 24,609
Fund balance - beginning 100,000 95,391 (4,609)
Fund balance - ending $ 80,000 $ 100,000 § 20,000

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,

60



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INDIGENT ACCIDENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes $ 68,000 § 69,654 $ 1,654
EXPENDITURES
Welfare
Services and supplies 68,000 58,286 2,714
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 0 11,368 11,368
Fund balance - beginning 5,252 15,164 9,912
Fund balance - ending $ 5252 § 26,532 § 21,280

The notes to financiel statements are
an integral part of this stateraent.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TECHNOLOGY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Charges for services
Technology fecs $ 52,050 § 70,717 § 18,667
Other revenues
Interest income 300 412 112
Total revenues 52,350 71,129 18,779
EXPENDIT
Genera) government
Services and supplics 115,500 98,947 16,553
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (63,150) (27,818) 35,332
Fund balance - beginning 97,069 125,741 28,672
Fund balance - ending 3 33919 § 97,923 § 64,004

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STORBY COUNTY, NEVADA
TOWN OF VIRGINIA CITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Services and supplies $ 0§ 0 S 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 0 0 0
Q RF CING SOURCES (USES
Transfer out 0 (101,018) (101,018)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources (uses) over expenditures 0 (101,018) (101,018)
Fund balance - beginning 98,599 101,018 2,419
Fund balance - ending M 98,599 § 0 $ (98,599)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TOWN OF GOLD HILL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Services and supplies $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 0 0 0
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer out 0 (11,660) (11,660)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources (uses) over expenditures 0 (11,660) (11,660)
Fund balance - beginning 11,801 11,660 (141)
Fund balance - ending $ 11,801 § 0 (11,801)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement,
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FEDERAL/STATE GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Federal grants
Statc grants
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government - VCTC
Services and supplies
Culture and recreation
Services and supplies
Public safety
Services and supplies
Intergovernmental - State
Services and supplies

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED  ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
$ 3,063,243 723,028 $  (2,340,215)
13,000 132,857 99,857
0 3,000 3,000
3,096,243 858,885 (2,237,358)
0 25,441 (25,441)
33,000 3,717 29,283
3,063,243 620,766 2,442,417
0 66,266 (66.266)
3,096,243 716,190 2,380,053
0 142,695 142,695
84,680 95,316 10,636
$ 84,680 238011 § 153,331

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FIRE EMERGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUR, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Other revenues $ 159,000 § 0 3 (159,000)
Miscellancous
EXPENDITURES
Public Safety
Services and supplies 84,000 0 84,000
Capital outlay 75,000 0 75,000
Total Expenditures 159,000 0 159,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenue aver expenditures 0 0 0
Fund balance - beginning 45,875 204,337 158,462
Fund balance - ending $ 45875 % 204,337 § 158,462

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STABILIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
- ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES

General government 3 200,000 $ 0 % 200,000
Excess (deficit) of revenue over expenditures (200,000) 0 200,000
Fund balance - beginning 800,000 1,000,000 200,000
Fund balance - ending $ 600,000 § 1,000,000 § 400,000

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENETIC MARKER TESTING FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, BXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014

ORIGINAL AND VARIANCE WITH
FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUE
Tines and forfeitures $ 8,500 $ 6303 § (2,197)
EXPENDITURES
Judicial
Services and supplics 6,000 1,206 4,794
Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver expenditures 2,500 5,097 2,597
Fund balance - beginning 20,721 26,325 5,604
Fund balance - ending $ 23,221 $ 31,422 § 8,201

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Capital outlay 3 5000 § 305,000 % 415,772 § (110,771)
Debt service 0 7,600 0 7,600
Total expenditures 5,000 312,601 415,772 (103,171)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (5,000) (312,601) (415,772) (103,171)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 0 118,420 110,820 (7,600)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources (uses) over expeditures (5,000) (194,181) (304,952) (110,771)
Fund balance - beginning 50,802 350,803 350,803 0
Fund balance - ending $ 45,802 $ 156,622 § 45851 § (110,771)

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Y% Optional sales tax $ 154,000 ¢ 231,011 § 77,011
EXPENDITURES
General government
Services and supplies 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 154,000 231,011 77,011
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Prior period adjustment 0 25,000 25,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources (uses) over expenditures 154,000 256,011 102,011
Fund balance - beginning 1,263,105 1,926,796 663,691

Fund balance - ending

$ 1,417,105 § 2,182,807 % 765,702

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA CITY RAIL PROJECT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGET
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOQUNTS AMOQUNTS (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES
Culture and Recreation
Capital Outlay $ 700,000 § 0 $ 700,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (700,000) 0 700,000
OTHER FINANCING SOQURCE
Bond Proceeds 28,674 26,609 (2,065)
Debt Service
Principal (76,000) (76,000) 0
Interest ' (102,395) (102,395) 0
Prior period adjustment 0 (25,000) (25,000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources (uses) over expenditures (849,721) (176,786) 672,935
Fund balance - beginning 1,137,848 1,376,570 238,722

288,127  § 1,199,784 § 911,657

©

Fund balance - ending

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
OP VENUES
Sales of water $ 540,000 $ 540,000 § 567263 § 27,263
ENSE
Salaries and wages 129,265 135,265 119,693 15,572
Benefits 75,341 75,341 52,011 23,330
Services and supplies 236,050 236,050 182,390 53,660
Depreciation 110,000 110,000 104,204 5,796
Total Operating Expenses 550,656 556,656 458,298 98,358
Operating Income (Loss) (10,656) (16,656) 108,965 125,621
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Capitzl contributions 0 0 0 0
Interest eamings 2,000 2,000 5,686 3,686
Rents 12,000 12,000 12,000 0
Interest expense (26,060) (26,060) (25,682) 378
Transfer in 0 6,000 0 (6,000)
Net Income (Loss) $ (22,716) § (22,716) § 100,969 § 123,685

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014

VARIANCE WITH

ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash In flows
Sales of water $ 540,000 §$ 540,000 $ 564,020 § 24,020
Cash Out flows
Salaries and wages (129,265) (135,265) (118,454) 16,811
Benefits (75,341) (75,341) (51,748) 23,593
Services and supplies (236,050) (236,050) (190,092) 45,958
Prepaid expenses 0 0 2,400 2,400
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 99,344 93,344 206,126 112,782
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash In flows
Rent 12,000 12,000 12,000 0
Customer deposits 0 0 930 930
Net Cash Provided by Non Capital Financing Activities 12,000 12,000 12,930 930
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED ACT IVITIES
Cash In flows
Transfer in 0 6,000 0 (6,000)
Capital contributed 0 0 22,143 22,143
Cash Out flows
System upgrade 0 0 (29,000) (29,000)
Capital outlay (68,000) (68,000) (16,866) 51,134
Debt service (28,491) (28,491) (28,491) 0
Interest expense (26,060) (26,060) (38,377 (12,317)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Capital Related Activities (122,551) (116,551) (90,591) 25,960
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest eamings 2,000 2,000 5,686 3,686
Net Increase (Dccerease) in Cash (9,207) (9,207) 134,151 143,358
Cash - beginning 887,355 887,355 1,063,605 176,250
Cash - ending $ 878,148 % 878,148 % 1,187,756  § 319,608

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUES
Sewer use fees

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salades and wages
Benefits
Services and supplies
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
NON QPERATING REVENIIES (EXPENSE)
Interest income
Interest expense
Grant match

Transfer in

Net income (Loss)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH

ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)

$ 230,000 $ 230,000 $ 239,936 9,936

74,156 78,156 66,517 11,639

42,444 42,444 29,338 13,106

87,100 87,100 76,080 11,020

40,000 40,000 47,982 (7.982)

243,700 247,700 219,917 27,783

(13,700) (17,700) 20,019 37,719

500 500 837 337

(2,518) (2,518) (2,459) 59

(93,000) (93,000) (34.972) 58,028

0 4,000 0 (4,000)

$  (108718) §  (108718) § (16,575) $ 9,143

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINTA DIVIDE SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL POSITIVE
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS (NEGATIVE)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash In Flows
Sewer Fees $ 230,000 % 230,000 $ 239,497 % 9,497
Cash Out Flows
Salaries and wages (74,156) (78,156) (66,968) 11,188
Benefits (42,444) (42,444) (29,338) 13,106
Service and supplies (87,100) (87,100) (74,879) 12,221
Net cash provided (used) by operating activitics 26,300 (22,300) 68,312 46,012
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Out Flows
Capital Outlay (5,000) (5,000) 0 5,000
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash In Flows
Transfer in 0 4,000 0 (4,000)
Capital contributed by customers 0 0 1,500 1,500
Cash Out Flows
Interest expense (2,518) (2,518) (2,459) 59
Debt Service (5,558) (5,558) (52,101) (46,543)
Grant match (93,000) (93,000) (34,972) 58,028
Net cash provided (used) by capital related
financing activities (101,076) (97,076) (88,032) 9,044
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income 500 500 836 336
Net increasc (decrease) in cash (79,276) (79,276) (18,884) 60,392
Cash - beginning 118,499 118,499 181,204 62,705
Cash - ending $ 39,223 $ 39,223 § 162,320 § 123,097

The notes to financial statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

STATE OF NEVADA FUND
Assets
Cash

Liabilities
Due Other Governments

STOREY COUNTY SCHOOI. DISTRICT
Assets
Cash

Liabilities
Due Other Governments

STOREY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE

Assets
Cagh

Liabilities
Due Other Governments

DISTRICT ATTORNEY RESTITUTION FUND

Assels
Cash

Liabilities
Due Other Governments

TOTAL - ALL FUNDS
Assets
Cash

Liabilities
Due Other Governments

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, JUNE 30,
2013 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2014
$ 78,463 $ 1,098,997 § 1,025,226 152,234
$ 78,463 $ 1,098,997 § 1,025,226 152,234
3 5,102 § 3,524,989 § 2,784,433 745,658
$ 5,102 $ 3,524,989  § 2,784,433 745,658
$ 985 $ 679,702 $ 536,128 144,559
§ 985 § 679,702 § 536,128 144,559
$ 0 $ 0 § 0 0
$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 0
$ 84,550 3 5,303,688 § 4,345,787 1,042,451
$ 84550 % 5303,688 § 4,345,787 1,042,451

The notes to financial statements are
- an integral part of this statement.
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STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

JENERAL D ASSETS
Land
Antique Fumiture
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Park Improvements
Total General Fixed Assets

\Y% S IN GENERAL FI ASSETS
BY SOURCE:

Geuneral Fund

Road Fund

Fire Fund

Virginia City Tourism Commission

Wildland Fire Protection Fund

Fourth Ward Trustee

Sheriff's Jail

Total Investment in General Fixed Assets

BY SOURCE
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
JUNE 30,

2014 2013
$ 460,009 § 387,759
75,000 75,000
43,282,735 43,256,707
2,244,377 2,229,317
10,161,074 9,861,612
7,336,856 6,890,249
850,595 850,595
$ 64410646 § 63,551,239
$ 11,796211 § 11,587,961
45,666,215 45,582,227
268,309 6,309
622,481 622,481
3,015,443 2,710,274
1,579,368 1,579,368
1,462,619 1,462,619
$ 64,410,646 § 63,551,239

The notes to financial statements are
an intergral part of this statement,
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DAVID A. PRINGLE, CPA, LTD.
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

CARSON CITY QFFICE INO
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TELEPHONE NUMBER (775) 882-3615 AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF TELEPHONE NUMBER (775) 329-7800
FAX NUMBER (775) 882.2339 CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FAX NUMBER (775) 329-8332
EMAIL dapcpaltdec@gmail.com NEVADA SOCIETY OF EMAIL dapcpaitd@gmail.com

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicableto financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, eachmajor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Storey County,
Nevada, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Storey County, Nevada’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October31,2014,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Inplanning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Storey County, Nevada’s internal control

over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Storey County, Nevada’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Storey County, Nevada’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this sectionand was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Storey County, Nevada’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statcment amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The putpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance, This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

e A

David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD
Carson City, NV

October 31, 2014
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CARSON CITY OFFICE
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EMAIL - dapepaltdec@gmail.com NEVADA SOCIETY OF EMAIL - dapepaltd@gmail.com

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

AUDITORS REPORT ON PRIOR YEAR’S RECOMMENDATIONS

To The Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

We have reviewed the status of our recommendations included in last year’s audit report dated September 6, 2013. This
review indicated:

1. We recommended monitoring expenditures to prevent exceeding budgeted amounts, This was partially
implemented during the fiscal year 2014.

2. Werecommended more care be taken in the recording of cash receipts. This was implemented during the
fiscal year 2014,

3. Werecommend expenditures over $10,000 in the Fire Special Revenue Fund be approved by the County
Manager or Comptroller. This was partially implemented during the fiscal year 2014.

4. Werecommended care should be taken in the assignment of funds and account numbers prior to recording
the liabilities inthe accounting records. This was partially implemented during the fiscal year 2014..

5. We recommended account names in the Federal/State Grant Fund be reviewed and adjusted to further
differentiate the Federal and State grant revenues and expenditures. This was partiallyimplemented during

the fiscal year 2014,

6. We recommended bank reconciliations be balanced to the general ledger, as well as be reviewed and
approved by the Comptroller on a monthly basis. This was impJemented during the fiscal year 2014

7. We recommended adjusting beginning cash balances at July 1, 2013, either through loans or transfers, in

order to eliminate the deficit cash balances in the Fire and Jail Building Funds. This was not implemented
during the fiscal year 2014,

-~ e =g

David A. Pringle, CPA, LTD.
Carson City, Nevada

October 31, 2014
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

AUDITORS REPORT ON CURRENT YEAR'’S RECOMMENDATIONS

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of Storey County, Nevada for the year ended June 30, 2014, and have issued
our report thereon dated October 31, 2014. As part of our audit, we made a study and cvaluation of the County’s system
of internal accounting control to the extent we considered necessary solely to determine the nature, timing and extent
of our auditing procedures. Our study and evaluation was more limited than would be necessary to express an opinion
on the system of internal accounting control taken as a whole, and we do not express such an opinion.

However during our audit we became aware of certain matters that, while not involving material weaknesses in internal
accounting control, are opportunities for increasing controls and operating efficiency. This letter does not affect our
report dated October 31, 2014, onthe financial statements of Storey County, Nevada.

Current Years Audit Recommendations
1. Werecommend monitoring expenditures to prevent exceeding budgeted amounts as expenditures exceeded

appropriations in five Special Revenue Fund. Three Special Revenue Funds also had a deficit fund
balance,

2. We recommend more care be taken in the recording of revenue. There were numerous instances where
revenue was recorded in expenditure accounts.

3. Based upon the amount expenditures exceeded appropriations in almost every category in the Fire and
Sheriff Jail Special Revenue Funds, we recommend expenditures over $10,000 be approved by the County
Manager or Comptroller.

4. Continued care should be taken in the assignment of funds and account numbers prior to recording the
liabilities in the accounting records. Certain expenditures appear to be more correctly charged to the
special revenue funds than the general fund.

5. We recommend account names in the Federal/State Grant Fund be reviewed and adjusted to further
differentiate the Federal and State grant revenues and expenditures,

6.  We recommend adjusting beginning cash balances at July 1, 2014, either through loans or transfers, in
order to eliminate the deficit cash balances in the Fire and Jail Building Funds.

7. We recommend more care be taken in recording journal entries as we found numerous duplicate eniries.

8. We recommend double checking accounts after journal entries have been made to ensure the correct
accounts have been affected and the correct amounts has been recorded in each account,

9. We recommend a cut off date of August 15 be established and strictly enforced for all payal_ales,
receivables, and journal entries by any government employee to prevent complications with the audit.

The status of the above recommendations must be reviewed during your next audit engagement. .We have alre_ady
discussed these recommendations with the County Comptroller, and will be pleased to discuss them in further detail at

your convenience,
%ﬁ&, cﬁﬁ, i
Carson City, Nevada

October 31, 2014
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To The Honorable County Commissioners,
Story County, Nevada

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Storey County, Nevada’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Storey County, Nevada’s
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. Storey County, Nevada's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Storey County, Nevada’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Storey County,
Nevada’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Storey County, Nevada’s compliance.

Opinion on Kach Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Storey County, Nevada complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended

June 30, 2014.
Report on Internal Control Over Conpliance

Management of Storey County, Nevada, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intcr'nal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In plamg and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Storey County, Nevada’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
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that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstance for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Storey County, Nevada’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal programs that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemnal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of in?emal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly,

this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

2> 7%/
David A. Pringle CPA, LTIJ.

Carson City, Nevada

October 31, 2014
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SCHEDULE 3

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified? yes X__no
Reportable condition identified
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes _x__ none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X __no
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major program:
Material weakness identified? yes X no
Reportable condition identified
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes x__ none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
Circular A-133 Section .510(a)? . yes _X no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program
12.121 Nevada Environmental Infrastructure -
ARRA (Type B)
10,664 Cooperative Forestry Assistance
(Type A)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $ 300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? —.yes _X 0o

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS '
There were no reportable conditions, material weaknesses or instances of noncompliance related to the ﬁnan'clal
statements thatare required to be reported in accordance with paragraphs 5.18 through 5,20 of Government Auditing

Standards.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
There were no audit findings required to be reported by Circular A-133, Section .510(a).
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NOTEA -

NOTEB -

NOTE C -

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompany schedule of expenditures of federalawards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity
of Storey County, Nevada under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30,2014. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. The Schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of Storey County, Nevada, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Storey County, Nevada.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedules are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
Expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-87, Cost

Principlesfor State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, where in certain types of expenditures are
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Pass-through entities and identifying numbers are presented where available.

MATCH AMOUNTS

Amounts listedunder Match Amount are on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are either in-kind
or cash.
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Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 5, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the second reading of Ordinance 14-261, an
ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change the name to Brothels,
amending the procedure for revoking a license, and changing requirements on work cards, and
providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to continue the second reading of Ordinance 14-258 to the
Board’s January 20, 2015 meeting.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Ordinance 14-261 was introduced by the Board on its November 12, 2014
meeting with the understanding that staff would work to give the Board their suggestions on how to
amend the ordinance and a chance to respond to proposed changes. Staff, including the Sheriff’s
Department and the District Attorney’s office, and Austin Sweet, attorney for the Mustang Ranch,
have met and worked on changes to the ordinance. The Board on its December 2, 2014 meeting
continued the matter on staff’s request. After additional discussions on brothel procedures, this is the
staff’s redrafted ordinance.

The request is to have the Board to take public comment on the ordinance and then continue
the ordinance to the Board’s next meeting. This will allow staff to complete any suggested changes
to the revised ordinance before a final public hearing on January 20, 2014.

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 14-261
6. Fiscal impact: None
:7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Mty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

S? b

Agenda Item No. ' 8



Agenda Item No.



Ordinance No. 13-261

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change
the name to Brothels, amending the procedure for revoking a license,
exempting financial institution lenders from application requirements, and
changing requirements on work cards.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change
the name to Brothels, amending the procedure for revoking a license,
changing requirements on work cards, and
providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION I: Chapter 5.16 Prostitution is amended as follows:

Chapter 5.16
Prostitation Brothels

5.16.010 Declaration of public policy on privilege permit business.

A. Iisfound-and-deelared The board of county commissioners finds and declares that the
public health, safety, morals and welfare of the inhabitants of the county require the regulation
and control of each brothel, as a privilege permit business, the licensing of which is granted in
the sole discretion of the board ¢as-defined-belew} and the regulation and control of each person
with an ownership interest in, who is engaged in, who is associated with or who is in control of
such business, including the local manager or managers—if-any;-thereof.

B. It is unlawful to practice prostitution, to allow acts of prostitution or sex-for-hire services,
to solicit business for a prostitute or to procure any person for the purpose of prostitution, except
as permitted by licensed-and-conductedin-accordanee-with this chapter.

C. Any license issued under the provisions of this chapter is a revocable privilege and the
holder does not acquire any vested rights to the permit. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.020 Definitions.
When used in this chapter, the following words and terms are defined as follows. shall-have

o s :
"Applicant" means any person, including a trustee of an inter vivos trust, a director, officer or
shareholder of a corporation, or a member or manager and owner of a limited liability company

Draft 1-5-15



applying to the board for a license under the provisions of this chapter.

"Board" means the Brothel Licensing Board of Storey County consisting of the board of three
Ecounty Scommissioners and the Ssheriff of Storey County.

"Brothel" means a business engaged in prostitution, sex-for-hire services, and all associated
activities allowed and ex approved under this chapter.

"Escort" means any person who, for a compensation of any type, accompanies any other
person to or about social affairs, places of entertainment or amusement, or who consorts with
others about any place of public resort or within any private quarters outside of a brothel.

"Escort service" includes any person, business or agency which, for compensation of any
type, furnishes or offers to furnish escorts, also known as "outdating."

"Licensed operation" means a brothel duly licensed and operated in accordance with the
provisions of this chapter.

“Operational control” means the control of or the ability to control any business decision
involving a brothel, '

“Premises” means the brothel building and area within the fenced enclosure, if any, of the
building.

"Work card" means the card issued by the sheriff to each employee and to each prostitute
authorizing them to work at a licensed operation. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.030 Prostitution permitted—Complianee with-provisiens:

Prostitutten-pertnitted: The operatlon of a brothel within the county that has been approved by
the board in accordance with the provisions of this chapter does not constitute a public nuisance
or an offense to public decency. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.040 Powers of the licensing board.
A. The board has the is-made-and-constitutes-thefull-and sole authority to grant a permit to
operate a brothel, and the sole authority to make, alter and rescind all necessary regulations
setting forth the terms and conditions under which sueh permits may be applied for, the terms
and conditions under which sueh permits shal may be granted, transferred, revoked or canceled,
where sueh brothels shall may be locateds-within the county, and any and all other regulations
necessary regarding the conditions under which the brothels may be allowed to operate.
B. It shali-be is the duty of the board to carry out terms of the provisions of this chapter, and
to see that this chapter is faithfully enforced.
C. Powers of the board shalt include, but shall are not be llmlted to the power to:
1. Receive all license applications. :

2. Investigate all applicants. Hﬁdel——%hé—p%l@ﬂ‘)—(ﬁ—%—ﬁh&ﬁ%f
3. Grant or refuse to grant the license. provided-forin-this-chapter;

4. Receive complaints concerning alleged violations of this chapter.

5. Restrict, revoke or suspend licenses for cause afier hearing. In an emergency the board
may issue an order for immediate suspension or limitation of a license, but the order must state
the reason for suspension or limitation and afford the licensee a hearing; Revokestemperarity
suspend. or-place restrictions-and-conditions-against-licenses issued-underthe-terms-of-this
chapier:

6. Exercise any-proper the power and authority necessary to perform the duties assigned it,
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notlimited-by-any-enumeration-of-powers or considerations-in-this-chapter—:and
7. Hear appeals from enforcement actions of the $ sheriff of-Storey-County. (Ord. No. 09-
2278 1)

546050 Restrictions-on-licensing
—A-leeation-and-premises—Every-Heensed-operation-shat-have-the-foHowingrestrietions:
1. Signs. Bach-licensed-operation-may-have-up-to-three-appropriate-signs-withinStorey
Ge&&ﬁ%#e#memwmrgn&&h&#bﬁb%&mﬂe%%mﬁﬁheﬁghm-waymanw

activities sha lLbeeondueteckwu%wdeeHhe—desagna%ed—pwme&er—
—B-No-topless-show-or-other-exhibition-invelving-the-exposure-of-human-genitals;pubie
WMWMW&%WM%
een%awreﬂeﬁ—mere ﬁmmm—pimmfemw%bﬁh&sede—&aun%mﬁmw

mﬂmmeﬁmmemﬂmmeﬂhwha%eﬁmmwwﬁmw
outside-of-a-licensed-operation—Such-activities-are-hereby-approved-by-this-chapterfor-their
operation—in-alicensed-operation-and-shall-be alowed-only-in-asseciation-with-and-pursuant-to;
the-issuance ol a bonatide brotheHicense:

—— 2 Limitation-on-the type; signing-and size of building-in-which-alicensed-operation-may
be conducted:

approved brothel-property

——G—hHhe—mtefes&s&)Hhe—ﬂa blwhem%h—&a#ew—moralg—and-geneml—wehme—&he—numbemaf
licenses-issued-under-this-chapter shall-be limited-to-Hve:
mwmmmmmwmm@m
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Me&wemmgh%mﬂabk—m{—me%nemmwmmmmmﬂ%
the-following places or locations may-be-deemed-unsuitable:
— | Premises-located-within--mile-of a-churehhospital-school- military- or-naval

me%&m—a}ﬂé*e}}s—pabhe—fmy%d—eﬂeméeﬁual—a%

——3—Piemhes-aé}e+m O
the—l%eﬂaek—eme&her—heﬂaeh

s&es—e%hteﬂeakea—pubh&m!etest—asanay be-des@ateel-by—&he—baafd-
—é—f&H—pmp&Heﬁ—k)e&tedWm—the—keﬂw—MeG&H &ﬁ—R&neh——n nel admgau—pmpen—y

of-application:
—B%h%m%w%wpﬂ%%e%e%&e%%mldm&kmwhmm
4%%%4%&%&4&4%@%%9%%%

following-may-be-deemed-unsuitable:
——4%—%%%%%%%5%%&%%&%&%%%%

converted-torealproperty;

2. A factor y-mum%mmﬁmwmwmmwmmmﬂmé—md
— 3 A-manufactured-home-which-will- not be permanently-affixed-to-the-land:

5.16.0850 License application--Filing and investigation.

A. All license applications for a brothel undet-the-provisions-of this-chapter shalt, must be
filed with the sheriff's office along with a nonrefundable three-theusand-deHar($3:000-00)
investigation fee, set by resolution of the board of county commissioners, for each applicant. If
the actual total cost of investigating any license application exceeds the fee three-thousand
dolars, the applicant shalt will be responsible for and pay to the county the amount in excess
before the license may be approved. At time of application, the first three month's-¢earters
license fee shall must be deposited with the sheriff's office. If the application is denied, the fiest
guarter's- license fee shalt must be refunded.

B. Any applicant whose place of business will be conducted by a manager or agent, and any
brothel licensee who changes a manager or agent, is required to submit an amended application
for the manager or agent and is required to report the change of a manager or agent, shall and
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must pay an additional nonrefundable investigation fee of three-thousand-doHars{$3,006:60) for
cach sueh designated manager or agent.

C. Any person, director, officer or shareholder of a corporation, member or manager of a
limited liability company, or the principal of any firm or association having any financial or
ownership interest in the brothel shall must submit an application as a co-licensee pursuant to S
section 5.16.090 and shall pay an additional nonrefundable investigation fee efthree-thousand
doHars($3-000.00). Banking and financial institutions that lend to a brothel operator, owner or
landlord are not required to submit a license application unless the lending instruments include
revenue or income participation, or operational control of the brothel business. A loan equal to
or greater than $25,000 must be reported to the sheriff and loan documents must be provided
within 30 days. (Ord. No. 09-227,§ 1)

5.16.0960 License applications--Contents.

Any person desiring to own or operate a brothel within the county shaH must apply to the
board for a license. The application for the licensee or all co-licensees connected with the
operation must be filed at the sheriff’s office. An applicant shall must be a natural person
applying as an owner or manager of the brothel, or as a trustee on behalf of an inter vivos trust,
or as director, officer or shareholder on behalf of a corporation, or as member or manager and
owner on behalf of a limited liability company that owns or will own the brothel. Applicants
must be a resident of the State of Nevada.

A. The application shalt must set forth:

1. The applicant for the license, including:

1+ a. Names, ages, and addresses of all persons who have or will have a financial or
ownership interest in the operation, including the owner of the real property;

2 b. Names, ages, and addresses of persons who are or will be personally responsible for
the conduct and management of the operation;

3 ¢. Names, ages, and addresses of all persons designated as trustees of an inter vivos
trust, directors, officers or shareholders of a corporation, or members or managers of a limited
liability company;

4 2. A recent photograph and complete set of fingerprints of all persons listed in
subsections | (AY-EAH 2 -andHAY3)-ofthissection;

3. sueh Names and addresses of any other businesses an applicant has a financial interest
in and the type of business and the nature of the applicant's interest;

54. Names and addresses of each of the applicant's current and former employers for the
preceding ten /0 years;

65. AH-tThe applicant's current address and al/ former addresses in the preceding ten years;

76. A list of all prior convictions of the applicant for any crime, excluding minor traffic
violations; sueh the list shalt must include a statement of the offense, the place of its occurrence,
the date of its occurrence, and the disposition of the case;

87. A complete and accurate financial statement of the applicant prepared by a licensed
certified public accountant;

98. Complete federal income tax returns for the applicant for the preceding five years;

109, The street address and legal description of the property upon which the proposed
brothel is to be located, together with copies of all deeds, mortgages, deeds of trust, liens or other
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encumbrances, leasehold interests, or other interests relating to the property;

1310. A complete list of any children the applicant has under the age of eighteen, including
names, addresses, phone numbers, any court orders for child support and an affidavit that all
steh child support payments are current;

1211. A court certified copy of the inter vivos trust if applicant is designated trustee, the
bylaws of a corporation, or the operating agreement of a limited liability company;

1372. An executed comprehensive release authorizing the investigating authority to obtain
any and all information deemed pertinent to the granting of a license;

1413, A list consisting of a minimum of three verifiable personal references with addresses
and telephone numbers; and

1574. Any other information reasonably deemed necessary or useful by the board. (Ord.
No. 09-227,§ 1)

5.16.070 Restrictions on licensing.

A. The board must apply the following restrictions fo every licensed operation:

1. Signs. Each licensed operation may have up to three signs. All off-premises signs must
be placed in a location off the right-of-way and in a manner so as not to constitute a hazard. The
community development department must approve all signs.

2. Fences. All licensed operations, individual or resort property oriented, must include
designated perimeter barriers (fences, berms or other approved forms of separation) and a
resort-style entrance gate that will restrict access to the brothel property. No prostitution
related activities may be conducted outside of the designated perimeter.

B. Topless shows or other exhibitions involving the exposure of human genitals, pubic region,
or buttocks. or any adult movies whose program during a substantial part of the time, contains
one or more motion pictures which are rated "X" by the Code Rating Administration of the
Motion Picture Association of America, or which is not rated, but whose program is intended to
appeal to the prurient interests of the client are allowed in a licensed operation and may not be
permitted or licensed by the board outside of a licensed operation.

C. The board may, lo promote the health, safety and welfare of the people of the county, or to
promote the orderly conduct of the operation, impose additional restrictions, including, but not
limited to, the following:

1. Limit the hours per day or per week that a licensed operation may be conducted; and

2. Limit the type, signing and size of building in which a licensed operation may be
conducted.

3. Limit the number of prostitutes that work in an operation.

D. The board may impose restrictions pursuant to this section prior, during, or after issuance
of license.

E. Subject to Nevada State Law, gaming may be permitted in the premises, or on the
approved brothel property.

F. In the interests of the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare, the number of
licenses issued under this chapter is limited to five.

G. Escort services may only be allowed in association with a licensed operation and may be
allowed only under an additional and separate specific escort license, subject to a written
agreement for each transaction for escort services acknowledging:
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1. The brothel is not licensed outside of Storey County.

2. Prostitution is not allowed in Washoe County, Reno, Sparks, Carson City or the Nevada
areas of Lake Tahoe.

3. Escort services are for purposes of eniertainment, dining, gaming (casino gambling),
dancing, shopping, sight seeing or other similar activity.

4. Escort and client may not leave the State of Nevada.

5. Prostitution or solicitation of sexual activity away from the licensed operation is
prohibited.

5.16.080 Unsuitable locations and buildings.

A. The board may deny any application if the board finds that the place or location for which
the license is sought is unsuitable for the conduct of a brothel. The following places or locations
may be deemed unsuitable:

1. Premises located within 1 mile of a church, hospital, school, military or naval
reservation, children's public playground or residential area;

2. Premises difficult to police or difficult to access by police and emergency services,

3. Premises adjoining a gambling house, motel, hotel, licensed cocktail lounge not part of
the brothel, or another brothel;

4. Premises located within the historic districts as defined by NRS 384.100 and other sites
of historical or public interest, as may be designated by the board,

5. All properties located within the former McCarran Ranch, including all contiguous
property, excluding currently licensed brothels; and

6. Properties requiring primary ingress or egress across BLM controlled property,
previously known as the Mustang Ranch, require written approval of easement access from the
United States Department of Treasury, the United States Department of the Interior acting
through the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) and the United States Attorney's Olffice prior 1o
acceptance of application.

B. The board may deny any application if the board finds that the building for which the
license is sought is unsuitable for the conduct of a brothel. Without limiting the foregoing, the
following may be deemed unsuitable:

1. A building that is or is proposed to be located in a mobile home, which will not be
converted to real property.

2. A factory-built housing building, which will not be permanently affixed to the land.

3. A manufactured home, which will not be permanently affixed to the land.

5.16.1090 Investigation of applicant--Licensegranted-or-denied Board action.

A. Sheriff's investigation. Upon presentation of any completed license application for all
licensees and payment of all fees, the sheriff shalt must conduct a full investigation of all
information contained in the license application and submitted with the application. Suek 7he
investigation shalt must include, but shalt is not be limited to, the following:

1. A complete check of all records of the Federal Bureau of Investigation and any other
similar organization concerning the criminal record of the applicant;

2. A personal interview with the applicant;

3. An interview with selected employers of the applicant and business associates of the
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applicant, as shown in the license application;

4. Examination of the financial statement, records, and financial background of the
applicant; and

5. An interview with any other person or source discovered during the investigation that
may have information bearing upon applicant's suitability as a license holder.

B. Investigation report. As soon as practicable or within 45 days after any application is
received by the sheriff, the sheriff shall must report the results of the investigation in writing to
the board. Sueh The report shall must include, but shatt is not be limited to, the following:

1. A complete statement of the results of all investigations undertaken;
2. A list of any errors or omissions found to exist in the application; and
3. An evaluation of the personal and financial status and background of the applicant.

C. Board response. Within thirty days after receiving the sheriff's report, the board must

place the application on the board’s agenda for a hearing and may:

1. Refer the application back to the sheriff for additional investigation. 3

2. Require a personal interview with the applicant. ;

3. Require the applicant to submit additional information related to his application. +-and
4. If no further investigation is needed, the board may decide whether to gGrant or deny refuse

to-grant a license under the-provisions-of thisehapter. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.100 Issuance of license and automatic renewal.

A. Upon approval of an application for a licensee or all co-licensees connected with a

brothel, the board may issue a license for the brothel. The license must state:

1. The name and address or location of the brothel.

2. The names of all licensees connected with the brothel.

3.Any restrictions or limitations imposed by the board under this chapter.

4. The date of issuance of the license.

5. The date of expiration of the license, which is June 3 0" the end of each fiscal year.

6. All licenses are issued on a yearly basis and will renew automatically provided that
licensee is in substantial compliance with this chapter.

B. The board may issue a temporary license to an applicant for a specific period of time in the
case of death, disability or insolvency when there is no licensee to operate the brothel. The
temporary license entitles the person named in the application to take part in the operation of the
brothel and receive profits

5.16.110 License denial.

The board may deny refuse-te-grant-a license to any applicant atits-diseretion including, but
not limited to, the following circumstances:

A. The applicant, or the applicant's spouse or any other individual listed on the application
who may have an interest in the brothel, has been convicted of a felony;

B. The applicant is financially insolvent;

C. The applicant has a history of financial instability;

D. The applicant's stated financial condition is inadequate, insufficient, or tee-saspeet cannot
be verified as sufficient to operate a brothel;

E. The applicant makes any false statement of a material fact or omits any matcrial fact in any

Draft 1-5-15



application, notice, statement, or report filed with the board;

F. The applicant has any financial interest in, or connection with, any business or other
organization, whieh that is illegal where sueh the entity-business is located;

G. The applicant's license location under the provisions of this chapter would be contrary to
the health, safety, morals or welfare of Storey-County-Codes-or the county's residents;

H. The applicant is under the age of twenty-one years;

1. The applicant has been convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude, unless the board
finds, upon examination of the circumstances of the crime and the applicant's criminal history,
that the applicant does not present, and is not likely to present in the future, a threat to the health,
safety, morals, or welfare of the residents of Storey County, and will likely operate a lawful
establishment in full compliance with the letter-and-intent-of-all Storey County Code Orchirranees
and-Regulations, and the laws of the State of Nevada;

J. The applicant has past due child support;

K. The applicant's license issued under this chapter has been revoked for cause;

L. The applicant is a corporation, unless it is incorporated in Nevada, or unless it is a foreign
corporation which is qualified under Nevada law to transact business in Nevada;

M. The applicant is a person whose place of business is conducied by a manager, or agent,
unless the manager or agent possesses the same qualifications required of an individual licensee;
and

N. A person who is unqualified or disqualified to hold a license owns any interest whatsoever
in the premises, regardless of the qualifications of the applicant himself. (Ord. No. 09-227,8 1)

5.16.120 Reserved:5:16-125 License nontransferable.-site speeifie-Death, disability or
insolvency of licensee.

A license granted under this chapler is for operations conducted on the property described in
the application only, by the licensee or co-licensees only, and no licensed operation may be
added to or moved without a new license application and approval.

A. Ne 4 brothel license sranted-underthis-chapter may not be transferred, unless sueh the
license is transferred under an inter vivos trust where the licensee is the grantor or settler of the
trust and is also the trustee of the trust or unless there are co-licensees and the license is in good
standing and has not been suspended or revoked.

B. In the event of the death or judicially established disability of a licensee, the spouse, next of
kin, personal representative or guardian of the deceased or disabled person, or any other co-
licensee, must notify the board and the sheriff immediately of the death or disability.

C. Where the interest in a licensed brothel is the sole licensee and the interest held by a
deceased or disabled person would pass by operation of law to the person’s estate or (o any
other person other than a co-licensee, the board may authorize the spouse or next of kin or
personal representative or guardian of the person to continue the operation of the brothel under
a temporary permit, as a successor in interest, pending action on an application. The
application for a temporary license must be filed within 30 days of the date of death or disability.

D. In the event of the death of a licensee holding a license under an inter vivos trust, or whose
ownership of a brothel passes to a trust on the licensee’s death, the succeeding trustee or
trustees must be currently licensed as-provided-in-Seetions-5-16:020-and-5-16:090. I the
successor trustee or trustees are not currently licensed, the board may authorize the successor
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trustee or trustees to continue operation of the brothel may continue under a temporary license
while trustee prepare and submit an application for a license.. Written-notification-of death-must
be-provided-to-the-sheriffwithinten-(10)-days-of-the-trustee’s-death:

E. If the brothel license is held by more than one licensee, the remaining co-licensees may
continue to operate the business afier notifying the sheriff’s office of the change in licensees due
to death, disability or insolvency. If a co-licensee no longer has an interest in the operation of a
brothel and is no longer required fo be licensed, the remaining licensees must notify the board
and sheriff immediately that the person is no longer a licensee. The change in status of the co-
licensee is effective on receipt of the notice by the sheriff or the board.

F. The board may, if satisfied the action is necessary, issue a temporary license to an
applicant for a specific period of time. The temporary license entitles the person named in the
application to take part in the operation of the brothel and receive profits. A temporary license
may not be assigned.

G. A licensee may not permit any spouse, heir, next of kin, personal representative or
guardian to take part in the operation of the brothel or pay a person any part of the profits of the
brothel after the death or disability unless the person is a co-licensee or a holder of a temporary
license.

H. In the event a licensee files any petition with the bankrupicy court for relief as a debtor or
has a petition filed against it, or a receiver is appointed for a licensed business or an assignment
of a business is made for the benefit of creditors, the licensee, trustee, receiver or assignee, as
the case may be, must immediately notify the board of the change in writing. The written notice
must have attached a copy of the petition filed with the court, and any relevant court orders
including orders appointing trusiees, receivers, or assignees.

1. 4 brothel may not be operated by a trustee, receiver, or assignee for the benefit of creditors
until the board has licensed the operation. In an emergency situation, the board may issue a
temporary license for the continuation of the brothel operation.

J. A trustee, receiver, or assignee desiring to continue operation of the licensed establishment
must immediately make application for a temporary license.

K. Permission for a trustee, receiver, or assignee to continue the operation of the licensed
establishment may be summarily withdrawn at any time in the discretion of the commission
without the necessity of any hearing or proceedings for revocation or suspension.

M%mwmm%mmmmmw

3 : i —and-no-licensed-operation-shall-be-added
terea—mevedw&hmﬂ-maew—heeﬂse-appheaaeﬂ—aﬂd-&pmwal——(Ord No. 09-227,§ 1)

5.16.130 License fees, penalties for non-payment.

A. Every licensed operation must pay monthly licensing fee, set by resolution of the board of
county commissioners, in advance of the first calendar day of each month for the privilege of
operatmg a brothel in the county The-fee-forsuchlicense-shall-be-set-by-the-county
eemmmemfs pmwded—ﬂm%ba«ed—ea—a—uﬁ%%mla—&n&%ewﬂmm

: ‘wrther; that it shalt The fces must be considered at two eounty
commissioners board of county commissioners’ meetings before becoming effective.

B. No-tefunds-of adny license fees paid shall are nonrefundable. be-sade.

C-Al-fees-paid-under-this-chapter-shall-be-depesited-in-the-county-general-fund:
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C. All license fees must be paid to the sheriff: The sheriff must deposit all fees in the general
fund.

D. Delinquent brothel fees, including all accrued penalties are grounds for suspension or
revocation of the brothel license by action of the board. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.140 Compliance inspections for brothels--Implied consent.

A. Licensees or management of licensed operations witt must provide the sheriff access, upon
demand at any time, for purposes of inspection to ensure compliance with this chapter.

B. Anyone obtaining or renewing a license pursuant to this chapter impliedty consents to and
acknowledges the power and authority of the sheriff's department office to enter the licensed
operation's premises and principal office at any time for the purposes of examining the premises,
the brothel's books of account, medical records or work cards, to ascertain the truth or veracity of
statements made on the brothel license application and to determine compliance with the Storey
County Code and Nevada state law.

C. Refusal by a licensee, or his or her agent or employee, to permit a lawful inspection of a
licensed operation in accordance with this chapter constitutes a violation. (Ord. No. 09-227,

§ D

—B—Pemhw%m-neapaym%#bmﬂw#k&me%é&eﬁﬁéw—ﬂﬂ%haﬁwﬁh&u—be
w%ﬂaeédémqu%%&dm%#e&m%dew—m&eem#éaﬁeﬂewmu%&dm%
—&—Neﬁﬁawﬂeﬂkeﬁbmmd%%—m%wewe&m&mqum%%eﬁﬂmw
accrued-pena lties—shall be-groundsfor suspension-and/or revoeation-of-the-brothel-Hicense-by
aetton of the-bowrd:

546—%0—!55&&&%—04—}!%&-@9&(&}&-—?&%

he&m#%&bte&ael—w%%me—qhaﬂ-&w&a&e—

—A-The name-and-address-or-location-of the-brothel:

—B—the names-of all-licensees-connected-with-the brothel;

—C. Anyrestrietions-or limitations-impoesed-by-the-board-under-this-chapter;

—D-The date-of issuance-ofthe license:-and

—E-Fhe-date-of-expiration-of the-licensewhich-shal-must-coineide-with-the- > end of cach-fiscal
year-(June-30"):

—F Al icensesshatbmuss-be-issuedyearhy-

5.16.170 License issuanee—Rrenewal with taxes in arrears.
/\ Al I*wnse%wlhnu%&mueéem—yeaﬂ%asis%dﬁha#w#%namwmm%
B. Ne 4 business license shall may not be issued or renewed when at the time of application
or renewal, the applicant or the licensee is indebted to the county for any unpaid obligation,
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including real property taxes, personal property taxes, room taxes or business licenses, including
those not used in conjunction with brothel operations. The tax receiver may enter into an
agreement with any person so indebted to the county to establish a schedule for the payment of
sueh the indebtedness and any delinquencies and interest therees. In sueh the agreement, the
debtor shall must acknowledge such the debt to the county and shal must agree that if any
default occurs in the payment of any installment agreed to be paid thereunder an agreement, the
entire amount to be paid shalt becomes immediately due and payable. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.180 License revocation; or suspension.;-ecomplaint procedures.

The board may revoke, o temporarily suspend, or place on probation with or without
conditions any brothel license 55 : Jstons ofthis ¢ -for cause after a
hearing er-place-alicensee-on-probat th-or-wi -onditiens for any of the following
causes:

A. Any cause that would constitute grounds for denial of a license under this chapter;

B. Violation of any provision of this chapter by the licensee or any employee of the
licensee or any working prostitute at a licensed operation;

C. Willful refusal of the licensee to comply with any reasonable order of the board or of
the sheriff's department; :

D. The licensee knowingly permitting the existence of any health hazard on the premises
occupied by the licensed operation or employing any prostitute when such the person does not
have a valid health certificate;as-treguired-herein;

E. Change in ownership, leasing of the premises o an unlicensed person, or the addition of
any persons with any ownership interest in a brothel who is not a co-licensee shatl will
automatically revoke a license and-reapplication-shallwill-be-neeessary;

F. Any attempt by a licensee to permit an unlicensed person to operate a brothel under the
existing license shall-be is grounds for automatic and immediate revocation;-witheut-further
notee;

1. It is shalt not be-a violation for a licensee to employ a manager (who must be licensed or
just have a work card?) to supervise day-to-day operations;

2. Any prospective manager shalt must be an employee of the licensed operation, subject to
investigation, registration and all other requirements as provided herein this chapter.

G. Any other cause which the board may determine, in its sound discretion, to be deleterious
to the health, welfare, and safety of the general public; and;

H. If any written complaint regarding the licensed operation shall-have-been is received
during the current license period, the sheriff may cause the complaint to be placed on the agenda
of the next board meeting, at which meeting the board may review the complaint and the license.
The board may conduct a hearing, summon witnesses, interview the licensee, interview any
complainant, require additional investigation by the sheriff, or do any and all other acts which
may be necessary or appropriate for the board's determination. (Ord. No. 09-227,§ 1)

5.16.190 License revocation procedure--Hearing--Notice.
A. Before persaanently revoking any a brothel license issuee is-chaptet; 55

alternative procedure-is-clearly-specified-elsewhere-in-this-chapters the board shal must:
1. Conduct a hearing to determine the existence of the cause or causes of revocations-#
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Notice of whieh the hearing with wrilten specifications of the violations must be shal-have-been
served upon the licensee or posted upon the premises where the licensed operation is located at
least forty-eighthours 3 days prior-to-the-time-of such before the hearing;

2. Permit the licensee to submit evidence and testimony in opposition to the revocation;

3. Consider all evidence and testimony in support of and in opposition to the revocation;

4. Enter in the minutes of the board the findings of the board, and stating with specificity
the cause of revocation; and

5. Enter in the minutes of the board an order revoking or refusing to revoke the license.

B. Notice of revocation shet must be served upon the licensee or posted upon the premises

occupied by the licensed operation. Revocation shatt-be is effective upon service of the notice on
the licensee andfor posting of the notice on the premises. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.200 Exception to hearing procedure (emergency suspension of license).

A brothel license may be immediately suspended or limited without a hearing by a written
emergency suspension order signed by one member of the board and the sheriff, if in their
opinion, there exists an emergency or other immediate and present danger to public health and
safety which necessitates the immediate closure of the brothel. The order must state the reason
for the suspension or limitation and advise the licensee of the right 1o a hearing. Upon the
issuance and service of sueh an emergency suspension order, all brothel activity shath must
immediately cease and the brothel licensee may request a public hearing before the board within
three 3 business days. The hearing proceedings-thereafier-shall must be held in accordance with
§ section 5.16.190 of this chapter. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.210 Health examinations.

The licensed operation shal must comply with all State of Nevada Division of Health
requirements and Nevada Revised Statutes with regard to medical and health examinations for
prostitutes.

A. Exams required. Every prostitute working at a licensed operation shat is required to have
a weekly medical examination by a medical doctor licensed to practice medicine in the State of
Nevada or ihe doctor’s employee. Each medical examination shat must include testing to be
submitted to a state licensed medical laboratory and shalt must include:

1. Once each week, a culture to confirm the presence or absence of gonorrhea and testing
to screen for the presence or absence of chlamydia;

2. Once every week, a licensed medical professional shatt must perform an examination on
each prostitute for lesions. If lesions are present on the individual, rhe health care professional
shall must excuse said the prostitute from work until said the lesions have resolved and are no
longer infectious with herpes simplex II virus;

3. Other medically required or approved tests deemed advisable by the examiner for
determining whether the prostitute is afflicted with any infectious or contagious disease;

4. All medical examinations, pre-employment and post-employment, and tests shat mus
conform to the requirements of the State of Nevada, Division of Health, the NRS and the Nevada
Administrative Code;

S. Afier performing an examination on a prostitute, the examining doctor may not issue a
certificate if the person is found to be or suspected to be afflicted with a sexually transmitted
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infection or other contagious or infectious disease. The sheriff is to be notified by the licensee
of ineligibility of a prostitute to work, and

5 6. The expense-associated-with the cost of the required medical examination and tests
shalt must be paid by the prostitute directly to the medical providers.

B. In-the-event When a prostitute shat-have has completed the medical examination and tests
required, as-herein-provided, the results of said the tests shalt must be forwarded to a state
approved medical lab for review and approval.

C. Certification of work eligibility--Approval and denial.

1. After the State Medical Lab completes the required review of the medical examination
and tests, and forwards the certificate of clearance to the brothel's license holder, the brothel shatt
must retain those results to-file for review by the sheriff and shatt must certify to the sheriff that
the prostitute is eligible for a work card. The sheriff is-te must be notified by the licensee if the
State Medical Lab does not issue a certificate of clearance. —ofineligibility-to-work-and-ofany
subsequent cure-enabling the prostitute-to-return-to-work. Each medical certificate of clearance
shall must specify the date of the examination and shatl may be valid for seven days from the
date of the certificate. The expense-associated-with the cost of this review and certification shatl
must be paid by the prostitute direeth-to-the-doctor.

2. Ne 4 person who has ever been denied a certificate by the State Health Department, as
hetein provided, may nof again work as a prostitute in any licensed operation until sueh that
person has received and presented to the brothel a certificate of clearance from the state stating
that the cause or causes which resulted in the denial of the certificate have been cured and that
the person is now free of any vencreal disease or other contagious or infectious disease ("STD")
and has complied with all other requirements of this chapter.

D. Seizure of work card. Upon receiving information that a prostitute is afflicted with an
infectious or contagious STD or has not obtained a current medical examination, ashereh
required:-or is no longer entitled to a work card, the sheriff shakt must immediately seize any
work card previously issued. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.220 Work card registration required.

A. It is unlawful for any person te-be to work as an independent contractor or t& be employed
or for a licensee to employ or allow a person on the premises of a licensed operation, unless such
the person is the holder of a valid current work card issued by the sheriff. in-accordance-with-this

B. GVWWW(WWWWWGML%
registered-with-the-sheriff en-a A4 work card application —which shall must include:

1. The applicants's name, all current and former names and aliases, age, address, social
security number, physical description, and current picture identification of the-appleant. Forms
of identification acceptable are those issued from state agencies which require a certified copy of
a birth certificate. An actual social security card also must be produced. A reel state issued 1D or
passport may be allowed in lieu of a birth certificate and social security card,

2. A full set of fingerprints of the worker;

3. Complete employment record of the worker for the preceding three years;

4. All addresses of the worker for the preceding three years;

5. A complete criminal record of the worker, including all convictions, except minor

Draft 1-5-15
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traffic violations, such list to include a statement of each offense, the place of its occurrence, and
the date of its occurrence;

6. A complete sheriff's routine child support information form;

7. A waiver of release of medical information allowing the medical facilities and doctors
to provide to the county the results of the referred medical examination and tests of prostitutes;
and

8. An authorization to conduct an investigation into the worker's criminal history.

C. The work card shak must be renewed annually;

D. Except as provided in Ssubsection 5.15.220(F), all work cards are site specific, and must
be renewed cach time an employee changes places of work.

E. The sheriff shall investigate, through all available means, the accuracy of all information
supplied by any applicant on the registration form. The sheriff may issue work permil after an
investigation and the determination that the applicant meets the work permit requirements, or
the sheriff may issue a revocable temporary work permit for up to 120 days after the applicant
has submitted an application with proof of medical clearance and paid all required application
fees,.

F. The board sheriff may deny a work card to any person who is under the age of eighteen or
has ever been convicted of a felony offense, irrespective of jurisdiction, or for lesser crimes
involving:

A misdemeanor possession or use of a controlled substance within the last three years;
Theft, embezzlement, or misappropriation of funds;

Violence o£r the use of any deadly or dangerous weapon;

Any crime involving the illegal use of firearms;

Petty theft or shoplifting within the last year; ane-or

Willfully making any false statement or omission in the registration form required by
subsection A of this section.

G. The sheriff or his designee will have the authority to deny or revoke the work card of a
prostitute or any other employee who does not qualify under this chapter or who is found to be
otherwise violating the Storey County Code or Nevada state law. The person whose work card
has been denied or revoked may file an appeal with the board ef county-commissioners within
thirty calendar days from the date in which the work card was denied or revoked.

HE. All employees shall must maintain a current work card with the operator of a licensed
brothel and the licensee is required to maintain a work card for each employee. The work card
shall must be kept on premises and available for inspection at all times. A prostitute may change
place of work between twe2)-licensed operations under the same ownership and-approved-by
this-chapter by having brothel management notify the sheriff of the proposed change.

IE. Ne A prostitute or bartender/manager of a licensed operation shat may not possess
more than one work card at any given time.

J-G. Ne A bartender, manager, maid, or maintenance employee shal may not engage in acts
of prostitution.

K. Tradesmen or vendors who service the property or facilities periodically are not required
10 obtain work cards, as long as they are not employees of the brothel. (Ord. No. 09-227,8 1)

O L
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5.16.230 Violations by employee--Effect on registration and work card.

A. In addition to criminal penalties provided herein this chapter, any employee of any
licensed operator convicted of violating any section of this chapter or any regulation
promulgated by the board or sheriff's department will have his or her work card immediately
revoked by the sheriff and shalt must forthwith return the word card to the sheriff.

B. Unauthorized persons. It is unlawful for any licensed operation to allow persons on the
premises except for the owners, licensed employees, working prostitutes, potential customers,
authorized emergency, medical, county agents, employees or others with legitimate reason to be
on the premises for nonprostitution-related matters. No business or social organization shatt may
conduct official business meetings in a brothel. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.240 Violations--Criminal penalty.

In addition to penalties provided regarding revocation of licenses and work cards, any person
violating any provision of this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor. (Ord. No. 13-249, § [; Ord.
No. 09-227, § 1)

Proposed on , 2015.

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2015.
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Draft 1-5-15
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Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on 520185

Draft 1-5-15
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Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 5, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the Resolution 15-418 setting the fees for
applications for a brothel license, the licensing of brothels, and setting penalty fees.

2 Recommended motion: [ move to continue Resolution 15-418 to the January 20, 2015 meeting

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Storcy County code section 5.16.130 currently requires the fee for a brothel
license to be set by the board of county commissioners, provided that it is based on a uniform
formula and is not unreasonable or arbitrary, and that it be considered at two meetings of the board
of county commissioners before becoming effective. The existing code also calls for penalties for
nonpayment but doesn’t set an amount. This resolution sets the penalty for delinquent payments at
10 percent.

The request is to have the Board to consider the resolution and then continue the resolution to

the Board’s next meeting on January 20, 2014.
5. Supporting materials: Resolution 15-418
6. Fiscal impact: None

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Mnty Manager Other agency review:

0. Beoard action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r
L ——

Agenda Item No. l q



Resolution No. 15-418

A resolution setting fees for applications for a brothel license,
the licensing of brothels, and setting penalty fees.

Whereas, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners (the Board) has enacted
Ordinance No. 14-261 amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 regarding brothels.

Whereas, the ordinance requires that fees be set by resolution of the Board.

Whereas, the Board has considered the fees for application for a brothel license, the fees
for maintaining the brothel license, and penalties for delinquent payments, that are required to be
set by resolution after two hearings by the Board.

Now therefore, the Board resolves and agrees to set the fees and penalties as follows:

1. Application fee — $3000 per applicant or actual cost if more, payable before license is
approved. The fee is non refundable.

2. Licensing fee- $75,000 annually, payable monthly before the first day of the month.
The first 3 months fees are due with application. The fee is refundable if application for license is
denied.

3. Penalty- licensing fees that are due are considered delinquent if not paid in full on or
before the fifteenth day following the due date. A penalty of 10 percent of the delinquent amount
is due each month the fees are delinquent.

Adopted and effective this day of 2015 by the
following vote:

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners:

Nays: Commissioners:

Absent: Commissioners:

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of Commissioners
Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0-5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Approve Memorandum of Understanding between The Nevada Rural Counties Retired and Senior
Volunteer Program, Inc. and Storey County and authorize County Manager to sign the Memorandum
of Understanding.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of Memorandum of Understanding as presented on consent agenda.
3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin

Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: Storey County has been collaborating with the Nevada Rural Counties Retired and
Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) since 1973. The mission of RSVP is to provide high impact
Independent Living programs designed to keep low-income seniors self-sufficient and in their own
homes as long as possible. Storey County secured a Passenger Van from the Nevada Department of
Transportation (NDOT) in 1994 for the Lockwood (River District) community. This van was
procured through an NDOT 5310 program which provides formula funding to States for the purpose
of assisting private nonprofit organizations or Governmental entities in meeting the transportation
needs of the elderly and persons with disabilities. Since securing the van in 1994, Storey County has
provided regular maintenance, fuel and insurance for the van. RSVP has assisted by using their
trained volunteers to drive the van to transport senior to receive direct services. This Memorandum
of Understanding is formalizing the use of the van and the responsibilities of both Storey County and
RSVP in regards to its use.

5. Supporting materials: Memorandum of Understanding
6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: YES Fund: 001-116 Comptroller

7. Legal review required: “g \/ :
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Cmy_\ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
ENY ;Mounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [
[1] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

———
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Memorandum of Understanding
between

The Nevada Rural Counties Retired and Senior Volunteer Program, Inc.

and
Storey County

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to set forth the essential
elements of the collaboration between Nevada Rural Counties Retired and Senior
Volunteer Program, Inc. (RSVP) and Storey County. The mission of RSVP is to
provide high impact Independent Living programs designed to keep low-income seniors
self sufficient and in their own homes as long as possible. RSVP has been highly
recognized as an expert in this area of service for seniors in rural Northern Nevada
since 1973. This MOU will be in effect from January 5, 2015 to January 5, 2018.

Nevada Rural Counties Retired and Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) agrees to
provide:

SOk N~

8.
9.

Marketing and promotion of the programs offered in Storey County.
Perform outreach to recruit volunteers and identify clients in need.
Be responsible for orientation and training of RSVP Volunteers.

Provide the site for training of the volunteers.
Utilize RSVP Volunteers in accordance with RSVP policies and regulations.
Registered RSVP Volunteers will provide transportation to registered RSVP

clients in Storey County River District utilizing a van provided by Storey County.
Survey the RSVP clients who receive the direct services to determine if this
program has reduced their stress and improved their health.

Keep the client records and reports confidential and in a secure environment.
Provide Volunteer insurance.

Storey County agrees to:

1.

w N

Provide a van to be utilized only by registered RSVP Volunteers to transport
registered RSVP clients to appointments.

Provide regular maintenance to the van provided to RSVP.

Provide fuel for the van provided to RSVP.

Provide insurance on the van provided to RSVP.



The Nevada Rural Counties Retired and Senior Volunteer Program, Inc. and
Storey County may terminate this Memorandum of Understanding with a 60 day
written notice to each other, for any action which would seriously impair either agency’s
ability to carry out the program. Within 30 days of a significant change or modification
to this Memorandum of Understanding, the change will be made in writing with the
consent of both agencies.

Susan Haas Pat Whitten
Executive Director County Manager
Nevada Rural Counties RSVP, Inc. Storey County, NV

Date Date




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 5, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10 min. if pulled

Agenda: Consent [x] Regularagenda [ ] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Discussion and possible action adopting and approving the Second Amended Interlocal
Agreement for Western Nevada Regional Youth Center, an agreement between Carson City,
Churchill County, Douglas County, Lyon County, Storey County, the First Judicial District, the
Third Judicial District. The Ninth Judicial District, and the Tenth Judicial District, for the
operation of the Western Nevada Regional Youth Center to solidify the relationship between the
Center’s Operation Technical Committee (OTC) and Administrator and provide direction and
clarification.

2. Recommended motion: [ move to approve the Second Amended Interlocal Agreement for the
Wesrtern Nevada Regional Youth Center

3. Prepared by: Anne M. Langer, Deputy District Attorney
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary:

The substance of the “Second Amended Interlocal Agreement for the Western Nevada Regional
Youth Center” is primarily unchanged with the exception that it clarifies the role of the OTC and
chain of command addressing the relationship between the OTC and the Center’s Administrator.
(continued on next page)

5. Supporting materials: Copy of the First Amendment to the 2012 Interlocal Agreement, and
the subject “Second Amendment Interlocal Agreement for Western Nevada Regional Youth
Center”.

6. Fiscal impact: None
7. Legal review required: Yes A’M‘-’ District Attorney

8. Revjewed by:
K(g\y{maw Head Department Name: District Attorney
. County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [] Continued
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4 Staff summary continued:

The specific changes are: an evaluation of the Administrator’s performance will take place on an
annual basis vs. no set time frame for an evaluation of the Administrator. (See II. Administration
of Agreement (b)(vii.) of the First Amended Agreement vs. the Second Amended Agreement).
Further, II. Administration of Agreement (b) (vii.) of the First Amended Agreement section vi.-
providing for supply requirements was removed completely in the Second Amended Agreement.
The agreement will become effective on the approval of all the parties.



vev, Ly ZVIT I»vviim ny. | 2TV [V A

FIRST AMENDED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
FOR
WESTERN NEVADA REGIONAL YOUTH CENTER

This First Amended Interlocal Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) is made on this day of

, 2014 by and between Carson City, Churchill County, Douglas County, Lyon County,

Storey County (hereinafter “County” singular or “Counties” plural)', the First Judicial District, the Third
Judicial District, the Ninth Judicial District and the Tenth Judicial District (hereinafter “Districts”). This
Agreement is in regard to the Western Nevada Regional Youth Center (hereinafier “the Center”), which is an
arm of the First, Third, Ninth and Tenth Judicial Districts. This Agreement amends the Interlocal Agreement
for Western Nevada Regional Youth Center previously executed by the parties herein, a copy of which is

attached hereto.
RECITALS

WHEREAS, each of the parties hereto are public agencies as defined in NRS 277.100 and are authorized
under the Interlocal Cooperation Act, NRS 277.080- NRS 277.180, to enter into agreements with other public
agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the contracting agencies is

authorized to perform and to provide for the joint use of personnel and resources; and

WHEREAS, the First, Third, Ninth and Tenth Judicial Districts declare that the power of the Districts to

provide for the detention and care of juveniles is delegated, to the extent necessary to carry out the terms of this

! Ormsby County and Carson City consolidated into one municipal government in 1969. For ease of drafting, these parties shall be
referred to as “Counties” throughout this Agreement.
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Agreement, to the committees or individuals specified herein, but that the Districts specifically retain ultimate

control and oversight over the exercise of such power.

WHEREAS, by entering into this Agreement the parties will all be able to provide more efficient
services for the supervision and care of juveniles which will result in promotion of the health, comfort, safety,

life, welfare and property of the inhabitants of each of the jurisdictions.
AGREEMENT
THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth below, the parties agree as follows:
I Purpose

The primary purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the operation of the Center, which will be operated

as an arm of the Districts.

II. ADMINISTRATION OF AGREEMENT

a. Oversight Board. The Oversight Board shall be composed of one judge from the First Judicial District,
one judge from the Third Judicial District, one judge from the Ninth Judicial District and one judge
from the Tenth Judicial District. The Oversight Board shall establish the policies and objectives for the
Center.

b. Operational Technical Committee. The Operational Technical Committee (OTC) shall be composed
of two representatives from each of the Counties; a total of ten. The initial OTC representatives will be
the county manager from Lyon County, Douglas County, and Churchill County, the city manager from
Carson City, grepresentative designated by the Storey County Board of County Commissioners, and
the chief probation officer from each of the Counties. Different or alternate representatives may be
appointed by the Counties’ governing bodies. Each member of the OTC shall be at all times an officer
or employee of a party to the Agreement. If any OTC member ceases to be an officer or employee of a
party to this Agreement, a new member shall be promptly appointed by the chief judge of the pertinent

District. The OTC is authorized to perform all acts necessary for the efficient functioning of this
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Agreement, which are not contrary to direction by the Oversight Board, including, but not limited to,
the following:

i. Coordinating the organization and administration of the Center;
ii. Preparing and presenting reports to the Oversight Board and to the Counties governing bodies;
iii. Preparation of an annual budget for the operation of the Center;
iv. Coordinating applications for grants and assistance programs;,
v. Establishing staffing and training standards;
vi. Providing for supply requirements;,
vii. Evaluation of the use of the Center by parties to the Agreement or other entities at least once per
year;
viii. Direct supervision of the Administrator including, but not limited to:
1. Advising the Administrator on appropriate actions or objectives;
2. Advising the Administrator in the management of the internal affairs of the Center;
3. Determination of the programs of education and training for juveniles at the Center;,
4. Evaluation of the Administrator’s performance;

c. Governance and Meetings of the Oversight Board and OTC. Three members of the Oversight Board
or five members of the OTC, respectively, shall constitute a quorum for the purposed of transacting
business relating to the authority of the Oversight Board or the OTC and, unless otherwise provided in
this Agreement, the affirmative vote of a majority of these respective bodies, provided a quorum is in
attendance shall effect adoption of any motion, resolution, order or action of the Oversight Board or the
OTC. The Oversight Board and the OTC shall each select a Chairperson and a Vice Chairperson from
its respective membership who shall serve a one year term. The Oversight Board and the OTC shall
each appoint a Secretary who is not required to be a member of the Oversight Board or the OTC. The
Oversight Board or OTC may meet at any place within the boundaries of any of the Counties. The
Oversight Board shall hold at least one meeting each year, but may meet as often as the members deem

necessary. The OTC shall hold at least one meeting each quarter, but may meet as often as the
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members deem necessary. The Oversight Board or the OTC may adopt rules and regulations for the
conduct of its affairs that are not in conflict with this Agreement.

d. Center Employees. The Administrator and all employees are at will court employees. The
Administrator shall be selected by and serve at the pleasure of the Oversight Board. Employees of the
Center shall be appointed by and shall serve at the pleasure of the Administrator. The Oversight Board
shall determine the powers, duties and compensation or salary ranges of the Administrator and Center
employees and shall promulgate or approve necessary personnel policies and rules. The OTC shall act
as the direct supervisor to the Administrator, providing reports and performance evaluations to the
Oversight Board as necessary.

III. OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES

a. Funding and Budget.

i. Funding responsibility for the operation of the Center will be allocated among the parties. The
Administrator shall calculate the assessment owed by each County pursuant to subsection 1 herein
on or before March 1 of each year for the ensuing fiscal year. The assessment owed by each
County equals:

1. The total amount budgeted for the operation of the Center by the OTC, minus any money
received by another governmental entity to pay for fees for a child referred to the Center,
divided by the averaged total annual number of treatment bed days used in the preceding
three calendar years in all the member counties served by the Center, multiplied by the
averaged total number of treatment bed days in the preceding three calendar years in the
assessed county and multiplied by thirty-five percent (35%); and

- 2. The total amount budgeted for the operz.lti.on of the Center by the OTC, minus any money
received by another governmental entity to pay for fees for a child referred to the Center,
divided by the averaged total annual school population in the most current three school years

in all member counties served by the Center, multiplied by the amount that is the averaged
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total annual school population in the most current three school years in the assessed county

and multiplied by sixty-five percent (65%).

ii. Each County shall pay the required assessment to its treasurer of if the Center 1s operated by a

iv.

County, or to the administrative entity responsible for the operation of the Center, in quarterly
installments that are due on the first day of the first month of each calendar quarter. The money
must be accounted for separately and only be withdrawn by the Administrator.

The governing board of each County may levy an ad valorem tax of not more than 5 cents ($.05)

on each one hundred dollars ($100) of assessed valuation upon all taxable property in the county

" to pay the required assessment. The Counties may pay the assessment from revenue raised by a

tax levied pursuant to this subsection, any other available money, or a combination thereof.

The parties shall follow the provision of NRS Chapter 354 in preparing and executing a budget
approved by the OTC and the Oversight Board. All funding contributions are contingent upon the
availability to each County of the necessary funds. The obligation of each County shall be
extinguished at the end of any fiscal year in which the County provides notice of intent to
terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section IV herein and fails to appropriate monies for the
ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the performance of the Agreement; thereafter the Agreement
shall terminate for the nonappropriating entity. Any revenues produced by the operation of the
Center must be credited to each County or be deducted from the operating cost of the Center in

the same proportion as the funding contribution for each County.

b. Ownership and Disposal of Property.

i

Lyon County is the owner of the real property, including any buildings and fixtures for the
duration of the Agreement, and upon complete termination of the Agreement. If Lyon County
terminates its participation in the Agreement, the remaining parties may utilize the property at no
cost, and Lyon County may not do any act that would divest the remaining parties from the use of

the real property until such time that the Agreement is completely terminated.
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ii. Each county to the Agreement will be granted a pro rata interest in the personal property of the
Center based upon the average funding contribution of each entity over a five year period. This
interest is for the purpose of disposing of the property upon termination of the Agreement by all
parties.

iii. If fewer than all of the parties terminate their participation in this Agreement, the terminating
party will not be entitled to the recovery of any interest in any fees assessed for the current period
or person property interest created by this section.

c. Gifts, Donations, and Bequests. Gifts, donations and bequests of funds or property may be accepted
on behalf of the Center by the OTC or the Administrator if the OTC delegates that authority to the
Administrator.

d. Insurance. The Center shall provide property and liability insurance coverage in the name of the
Western Nevada Regional Youth Center for the Center and its operations. Each of the other member
entities shall be named as an additional insured as part of the coverage provided by the Center.

IV.  GENERAL PROVISIONS

a. Term and Termination. This Agreement will initially be effective for a period of one year and will be
automatically renewed from year to year thereafter unless a party provides timely notice of termination.
A party may terminate this Agreement by giving notice in writing to all parties hereto in writing, not
later than October 1, nine months prior to the beginning of the new fiscal year that the party intends to
withdraw, effective upon close of the current fiscal year.

b. Modifications. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and may only be
amended or modified with the mutual consent of the parties hereto, which amendment or modification
must be in writing, executed and dated by the parties hereto. |

c¢. Entity Relationships and Indemnity. This Agreement is not intended to affect the legal liability of any
party to the Agreement or the Center by imposing any standard of care other than the standard of care
imposed by law. Each entity agrees that it shall not commence or maintain litigation or lawsuit against

another member entity for any matter related to this Agreement. The Center agrees shall, to the extent
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provided by Nevada law, fully indemnify and hold harmless all the parties herein from any damage or
liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by the Center or its respective
employees, under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to or performed
by it under this Agreement.

d. Effect on Other Agreements. This Agreement shall not affect the rights, duties or obligations of any of
the parties with respect to other preexisting agreements unless expressly provided herein.

e. General Savings Clause. Inthe event that any portion or term of this Agreement is held to be unlawful
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms shall retain full force and effect.

f. Execution. This Agreement may be executed in counterpart.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed and become

effective as of the day and year first above written.

CARSON CITY BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS Approved as to form:
By: By:

Mayor District Attorney
LYON COUNTY BOARD
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Approved as to form:
By: By:

Chairman District Attorney
STOREY COUNTY BOARD
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Approved as to form:
By: By:

Chairman District Attorney
CHURCHILL COUNTY BOARD
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Approved as to form:
By: By:

Chairman District Attorney
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DOUGLAS COUNTY BOARD
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

By:

Chairman

FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT

By:
District Judge

NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

By:

Chairman

Ve 12TV

Approved as to form:

By:

District Attorney

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT

By:
District Judge

TENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

By:
District Attorney
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SECOND AMENDED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
FOR
WESTERN NEVADA REGIONAL YOUTH CENTER

This Second Amended Interlocal Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) is made on this day of

, 2014 by and between Carson City, Churchill County, Douglas County, Lyon County,

Storey County (hereinafter “County” singular or “Counties” plural)', the First Judicial District, the Third
Judicial District, the Ninth Judicial District and the Tenth Judicial District (hereinafter “Districts’). This
Agreement is in regard to the Western Nevada Regional Youth Center (hereinafter “the Center”), which is an
arm of the First, Third, Ninth and Tenth Judicial Districts. This Agreement amends the Interlocal Agreement
for Western Nevada Regional Youth Center previously executed by the parties herein, a copy of which is

attached hereto.
RECITALS

WHEREAS, each of the parties hereto are public agencies as defined in NRS 277.100 and are authorized
under the Interlocal Cooperation Act, NRS 277.080- NRS 277.180, to enter into agreements with other public
agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the contracting agencics is

authorized to perform and to provide for the joint use of personnel and resources; and

WHEREAS, the First, Third, Ninth and Tenth Judicial Districts declare that the power of the Districts to

provide for the detention and care of juveniles is delegated, to the extent necessary to carry out the terms of this

! Ormsby County and Carson City consolidated into one municipal government in 1969. For ease of drafting, these parties shall be
referred to as “Counties” throughout this Agreement.



Agreement, to the committees or individuals specified herein, but that the Districts specifically retain ultimate

control and oversight over the exercise of such power.

WHEREAS, by entering into this Agreement the parties will all be able to provide more efficient

services for the supervision and care of juveniles which will result in promotion of the health, comfort, safety,

life, welfare and property of the inhabitants of each of the jurisdictions.

I.

I1.

AGREEMENT

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth below, the parties agree as follows:

Purpose

The primary purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the operation of the Center, which will be operated

as an arm of the Districts.

ADMINISTRATION OF AGREEMENT

. Oversight Board. The Oversight Board shall be composed of one judge from the First Judicial

District, one judge from the Third Judicial District, one judge from the Ninth Judicial District and one
judge from the Tenth Judicial District. The Oversight Board shall establish the policies and objectives

for the Center.

. Operational Technical Committee. The Operational Technical Committee (OTC) shall be composed

of two representatives from each of the Counties; a total of ten. The initial OTC representatives will be
the county manager from Lyon County, Douglas County, and Churchill County, the city manager from
Carson City, a representative designated by the Storey County Board of County Commissioners, and
the chief probation officer from each of the Counties. Different or alternate representatives may be
appointed by the Counties’ governing bodies. Each member of the OTC shall be at all times an officer
or employee of a party to the Agreement. If any OTC member ceases to be an officer or employee of a
party to this Agreement, a new member shall be promptly appointed by the chief judge of the pertinent

District. The OTC is authorized to perform all acts necessary for the efficient functioning of this



Agreement, which are not contrary to direction by the Oversight Board, including, but not limited to,
the following:
i. Coordinating the organization and administration of the Center;
ii. Preparing and presenting reports to the Oversight Board and to the Counties governing bodies;
iii. Preparation and/or oversight of an annual budget for the operation of the Center;
iv. Coordinating applications for grants and assistance programs;
v. Establishing staffing and training standards;
vi. Evaluation of the use of the Center by parties to the Agreement or other entities at least once per
year;
vii. Direct supervision of the Administrator including, but not limited to:
1. Advising the Administrator on appropriate actions or objectives,
2. Advising the Administrator in the management of the internal affairs of the Center;
3. Determination of the programs of education and training for juveniles at the Center;
4. Evaluation of the Administrator’s performance on an annual basis;
¢. Governance and Meetings of the Oversight Board and OTC. Three members of the Oversight
Board or five members of the OTC, respectively, shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of
transacting business relating to the authority of the Oversight Board or the OTC and, unless otherwise
provided in this Agreement, the affirmative vote of a majority of these respective bodies, provided a
quorum is in attendance shall effect adoption of any motion, resolution, order or action of the Oversight
Board or the OTC. The Oversight Board and the OTC shall each sclect a Chairperson and a Vice
Chairperson from its respective membership who shall serve a one year term. The Oversight Board and
the OTC shall each appoint a Secretary who is not required to be a member of the Oversight Board or
the OTC. The Oversight Board or OTC may meet at any place within the boundaries of any of the
Counties. The Oversight Board shall hold at least one meeting each year, but may meet as often as the

members deem necessary. The OTC shall hold at least one meeting each quarter, but may meet as



